Haringey Council

NOTICE OF MEETING

AUDIT COMMITTEE

MONDAY 28 JANUARY 2008 at 19:30 HRS
Civic Centre, High Road Wood Green N22

MEMBERS: Councillors Rahman Khan (Chair), Bull, Davies, Gorrie, Mallett (Vice-Chair),
Vanier, Whyte and Wilson

AGENDA
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2. URGENT BUSINESS:
The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late
items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be
dealt with at item 12 below).

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST:
A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the
interest becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member's judgment of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent,
license, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct.

4. MINUTES: (PAGES 1-10)
To confirm and sign the minutes of the Audit Committee held on 29 October 2007.

5. DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS

6. UPDATE ON 2007/08 AUDIT AND INSPECTION PLAN: (PAGES 11 -12)
Report of Grant Thornton UK.

7. QUARTER 3 PROGRESS REPORT FOR INTERNAL AUDIT: (PAGES 13 - 64)
Report of the Chief Financial Officer to inform the Audit Committee of the work
undertaken by the Internal Audit Service for the third quarter 2007/8 and reports
outstanding from 2006/7.



8.  AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS 2006/7: (PAGES 65 - 72)
Report of the Chief Financial Officer to update the Committee on the final outcome of
the annual audit for 2006/7 and report on issues raised by the Audit Commission.

9. HOUSING BENEFIT QUARTER 3 PROGRESS REPORT: (PAGES 73 - 80)
Report of the Chief Financial Officer to advise and update Members on the Counter
Fraud performance of the Benefits and Local Taxation Service from 1 October 2007
to 31 December 2007.

10. RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE: (PAGES 81 - 84)
Report of the Chief Financial Officer to inform the Audit Committee of the work
undertaken to implement the Council’s risk management strategy during 2007/8.

11. INTERCEPTION OF COMMUNICATION COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE INSPECTION
REPORT: (PAGES 85 -112)
Report of the Chief Financial Officer to:

(i) Inform the Audit Committee of the inspection visit made to Haringey by he
Inspector from the ICCO and the recommendations made as a result.

(ii) To inform the Audit Committee of the actions taken to address the ICCO
recommendations in order to ensure that these are appropriately
addressed.

12. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS:
To consider any new items of urgent business admitted at ltem 2 above.
13. DATE OF NEXT MEETING:
Monday 28 April 2008, 19:30, Civic Centre
YUNIEA SEMAMBO NICOLAS MATTIS
Head of Local Democracy & Member Services Principal Committee Co-ordinator
River Park House Tel: 020 8489 2916
225 High Road Wood Green Fax: 020 8489 2660
LONDON N22 8HQ nicolas.mattis@haringey.gov.uk

www.haringey.qov.uk

18 January 2008



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 29 OCTOBER 2007

Councillors: Rahman Khan (Chair), Bull, Davies, Gorrie, Mallett (Vice-Chair), Vanier,
Whyte and Wilson

Apologies: None.
MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

PRAC27.l APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence received.

PRAC28.| URGENT BUSINESS:

None.

PRAC29. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST:

None.

PRAC30.| MINUTES:
RESOLVED

That the minutes of the previous meeting, held on 23 July 2007, were
agreed and signed by the Chair as a true and accurate account.

PRAC31.| DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS

None.

PRAC32. PROGRESS REPORT TO THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FROM THE
AUDIT COMMISSION: (TO FOLLOW)

The Committee was given an update on work undertaken since the last
Audit Committee, as outlined in the Report. The Committee was advised
that there continued to be a smooth handover of external audit measures
between the Audit Commission and the Robson Rhodes (now Grant
Thornton). The Committee noted that future progress reports would now
come from Grant Thornton unless there was a specific need for an Audit
Commission report. Committee was also advised about the harder
test framework for 2007 (single tier authorities), stating that the AC
believe that the minimal changes to the existing framework and a
consolidation of the approach will ensure that CPA continues to
provide clear picture of councils’ performance and support
continuous improvement over the few years prior to the
implementation of Comprehensive Area Assessment from April
2009

RESOLVED




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 29 OCTOBER 2007

(i) That the report be noted
(i) That thanks be expressed to Sheila Hill and the Audit
Commission for their assistance over the last period.



Page 3

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 29 OCTOBER 2007

PRAC33.

AUDIT COMMITTEE UPDATE FROM GRANT THORNTON

The Committee was advised of the process for handing over external
auditing from the Audit Commission to Grant Thornton. Grant Thornton,
as highlighted in their report to the Committee, noted that discussions
continued between them and senior officers of the Council with particular
focus on risks in the 2007/8 period especially on health inequalities and
the ALMO.

The Committee was also advised that progress made with the deed of
variation on the PFI contracts would continue to be fed-back to the
Committee and that close working between Grant Thornton and the
Council on this issue was on-going. The Committee noted that all
tangible outputs from this working relationship would be highlighted in
future update reports from Grant Thornton.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

PRAC34.

PROGRESS REPORT ON COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY RELATING
TO HOUSING BENEFIT AND COUNCIL TAX BENEFIT - REPORT OF
THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER:

The Committee was given an update on the counter fraud performance
of the Benefits and Local Taxation Service (BLTS) between 1 July 2007
and 30 September 2007. This included details of the May 2007 DWP
Benefit Fraud Inspection which had made 20 recommendations for
improvements in the fraud investigation process and benefit
administration. The Committee was advised of counter fraud activity in
the second quarter against its targets. In respect of overpayments, the
Committee was informed that this figure stood at £413,545 to date
related to fraud.

There were a number of questions put before the Committee and in the
response the Committee was advised that the three assessed
performance measures that are used to score the effectiveness of the
BLTS security performance was as follows:

PM10 - There would be shortfall on the target of 30090, likely to
be 21818 during 20078. This was reduction only, not
including change of benefit.

PM11 - This target of 90% would be comfortably achieved

PM16 - Target was on-target to be met by the end of the year,
currently at 2.65 against a target of 3.4 successful
sanctions per 1000 caseloads.

In respect of the Inspection’s 20 recommendations, the Committee was
informed that the BLTS would go through a restructure to ensure value
for money and quality work is achieved in order to ensure targets are
met. Further, the Committee was informed that the current IT databases
were being gradually replaced and that a robust




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 29 OCTOBER 2007

procurement/specification exercise was taking place to achieve this. In
respect of QB50 notebooks, the Committee was informed that a
business case had been made in April 2007 for these.

The Committee was further advised that in respect of work to avoid
prosecutions, the BLTS had measures in place to target this with a
proactive approach. It was reported that current arrangements were
reasonably well managed to ensure pro-activeness, but that the
resources in place were set within the budgets given which are paid for
by the Council. The benefits of countering fraud and overpayments went
to the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP). From April 2008,
when the Benefit Fraud Inspectorate merges with the Audit Commission,
these wider aspects would be looked at centrally.

Maijority of the members of the committee expressed concerns over the
emphasis of targets on fraud rather than on increasing benefit take-up.
The Committee was informed that the DWP were setting the targets and
that there were some 19 altogether — the three reported on relating
specifically to fraud. Further, upon merger with the Audit Commission, it
was unlikely that all of the targets would change despite the Council
lobbying the DWP over its target setting policies. The Committee was
informed that income maximisation in respect of benefit take-up was a
Council priority and that processes to increase this were being looked at
by the Director of Urban Environment who would report back to the
Committee as necessary. The Committee was assured that progress on
20 recommendations would be reported back in due course.

RESOLVED

That the report and work being carried out by the BLTS in relation to
counter fraud activity, upon being considered, be noted.

PRAC35.

INTERNAL AUDIT 2ND QUARTER PROGRESS REPORT - REPORT
OF HEAD OF AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT:

While taking up this report, the Chair stressed to the meeting that
this report is very important for this committee as through various
appendixes it outlined the position/ progress etc in respect of the
following issues on the basis of internal Audit Reports by the
external & internal professionals:-

a) The activity of Deloittee & Touche for the 2™ Quarter to date.

b) Position of outstanding priority 1 recommendations from 2004/05
and 2005/06.

c) In-house Team Fraud Investigation / irregularities/ claims of non-
receipt of Council cheques.

d) Details of disciplinary suspensions / And or actions taken.

The Chair then asked the Head of the Audit to formally present the
Report and after her presentation the Committee Members were asked




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 29 OCTOBER 2007

to come forward with their queries & comments on the report.

The Committee was informed of work undertaken by the Internal Audit
Service for the second quarter 2007/8 which involved a total of 25
projects completed to final report stage against 29 planned for this
period as detailed in the report before the Committee. The Committee
was advised that in respect of fraud investigation/irregularities, the
second quarter had seen a number of allegations from fraudulent
applications for housing, misuse of position for personal gain, and
misuse of a disabled parking badge. The Committee noted that major
issues for the attention of senior management highlighted in the
Quarterly Report’ Priority One recommendations list and a number of
questions were answered on various entries within the Report and the
statement of responsibilities.

The Committee was informed that equalities data was monitored by HR
management for trends and policy development. Further, that reports on
irregularities were turned around within a given time-frame and that this
was monitored for performance purposes. The Committee noted that
disciplinary cases were high and this was being monitored by risk
managers. In respect of Value for Money (VFM) entry on the Audit
Report, the Committee was informed that this would report back to the
Committee in due course once all issues had been resolved. It was also
informed that the external auditors continually looked at VFM on all
resources matters. In respect of energy supply, the Committee was
informed that the level of un-metered electricity supply to the Council
would be fed back in due course. The Committee thanked the Acting
Director of Finance and the Head of Audit and Risk Management for
reducing the number of outstanding Priority One recommendations from
25 to 12, noting that the remaining 12 would be reported back to the
Committee in due course. In future, these recommendations would need
to be listed with target dates.

At the end, the Chair highlighted particularly the following points from the
Auditors report on different heads, which he commented as not
representing good practices and thus fraught with serious risks that
needed to be monitored by the respective officers of the council, such
as:-

a) Project Management Assurance Work: - “The governance structure
for the project has not been formalised-- no risk register is in place &
there are no change control procedures in place”™—“A formal change
control process should be developed.”

b) Cash Receipting: “Monthly Bank Reconciliations are not always
signed by a second officer as evidence of review.”

c) Creditors: “Authorised signatory form are not updated regularly.”

d) Debtors: “Invoices and credit notes are not always evidences as
authorised.”




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 29 OCTOBER 2007

e) Compliance with Council’s Procurement Procedures-Parks: The
internal audit noted that,” we are unable to provide assurance over the
Tendering Procedures and Assessment of best value- registers are not
maintained for tenders, quotations and waivers.”

f) Unannounced Spot Checks & Establishment Audits- Adult
Culture & Community Services: Internal Audit reported that “no asset
register is maintained.”

g)Building Schools for the Future Procurement:-Finance Auditor
reported that “there were no terms of reference for the Board.”

h) Accounting & General Ledger: The Auditor noted that, “Line
Managers do not always notify the Finance systems team—when
an agency or temporary member of staff leaves the employment of
the Council.”

i) Sure Start Early Years: “There are no minutes of meetings
undertaken by the Local Partnership Board for this financial year.”

From the above, the Chair concluded that the lapses, mentioned
above, some of them he believed were of the same nature of the
lapses, as detected by the Audit Commission in their Tech Refresh
Review Report, which caused massive overspends. As such
needed careful attention by the appropriate authorised officers of
the Council.

RESOLVED

(i) That the audit coverage and progress during the second
quarter 2007/8 and on the reports outstanding from 2006/7 be
noted.

(i) That the progress and responses received in respect of
outstanding audit recommendations be noted.

(i)  That the appropriate officers of the Council should guard
against happening of the referred lapses henceforth, as
pointed out by the chair from the reports itself.

iv) In the Quarterly reports, the positions of the outstanding
recommendations be outlined, with target dates of any one remained
outstanding.

PRAC36.

REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE -
REPORT OF HEAD OF AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Committee was advised that the level of compliance with the IPF
Toolkit in relation to local authority audit committees and their
effectiveness was high. It was also provided with the results of the
Review and options for discussion and approval to ensure that the
requirements of the IPF guidance were fulfilled, and that the Audit
Commission feedback in relation to the Use of Resources assessments




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 29 OCTOBER 2007

was appropriately addressed. There were a number of actions drawn
from the Review as highlighted in bold within the Report before the
Committee. The Committee received a summary of the main comments
from Members during the Review as well as the timetable for
implementing the outcomes of it. In respect of the external audit fee, the
Committee was advised that this would be considered by the Committee
in future once it had been negotiated by officers.

The Chair quoted from the toolkit for Local Authority Audit
Committees, page-35, Section 8- Heading-Administration, that, “for
an audit committee to make effective use of its limited time it needs
to have a secretary, who ideally should be a senior officer of the
organisation so that the audit committee’s influence continues
between meetings.”

He also of the firm conviction that for proper scrutiny of the budget , a
committee, independent of the Cabinet should be engaged for the proper
certification stating the affairs of the authority were managed
economically, effectively and effectively

RESOLVED

(i) That the outcomes of the Review and current level of
compliance with the IPF Toolkit be noted;

(i) That the actions to address the outstanding issues be agreed
as the product of the Review, conducted by the Head of the
Audit and as suggested by the Acting Director of Finance to
agree an Action Plan the meeting agreed the following
course of actions:-

(a) to get advance clear time table and agenda,
(b)to make use of more informal meetings,

© to send out the summaries of the audit reports on a monthly
basis,

(d)to use members’ interest/skills/specialists knowledge etc,
(e) to make reports more user friendly,

(f)to use the audit strategy as a discussion item, enabling
members to have an input into the audit planning process,

(g) to publicise the work of audit committee, in addition to annual
report to full council and

(h) to have the support and cover of a dedicated secretary for the
Audit Committee, in conformity with the best practice guidance as
set out by CIPFA and IPF.

PRAC37.

RISK MANAGEMENT - PROGRESS REPORT - REPORT OF HEAD




Page 8

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 29 OCTOBER 2007

OF AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT:

Apart from the circulated report, the Committee received a presentation
by the Head of the Audit ,outlining the progress made in implementing
the Council’s risk management strategy and was referred to the CIFPA
guidance and IPF Toolkit in this respect. Members of the Committee
noted that there would be Risk Management training for them on 19
November 2007. In respect of the Council’'s risks registers, the
Committee was informed of the key issues facing risk registers at the
business unit, departmental, and corporate levels. Before allowing
members to ask questions / comments on the officers’ report &
presentation, the Chair gave his own presentation to the Committee,
(quoting from the CIPFA Solace current guidance booklet”, Section 7,
particularly 7.3, Section 8.2 & 8.7 and reported to the meeting that in
order to scrutinise the authority’s’ risk management, it was required by
the committee to examine the corporate risk register along with the
supporting series of departmental/ services risk registers to understand
in a totality the logical and systematic method of risk management to
minimise loses and maximise gains for the authority. In this task, as total
picture was not available to the committee, he said that he was getting
the impression that the Councils’ departments/ business units as a whole
had not yet developed appropriate Risk Registers, without which it was
not possible for the Committee to scrutinise the Councils’ Risk
Management, as required under the guidance and Terms of Reference
of the Audit Committee. So as a way forward, he suggested that the
present Committee Clerk would write to the councils’ designated officer
for risks management to reply on the formatted questions, as per page-
22 of the Toolkit, as supplied to the Committee Clerk at the meeting & on
receipt of reply from the Councils’ Officer to the questions laid around to
them (Appendix A of these minutes), would write to all members of the
Committee.

The Committee was informed by the Head of the Audit that all risk
registers were now in place, but more revisions were needed.

At this, the Chair requested that all registers be inspected by Internal
Audit and submit reports to the Committee, enabling the committee to
discharge its duties and responsibilities, as laid down in the terms of
reference of the Committee . The Head of the Audit advised that there
would have to be objective assessments of the registers in order to
make them valuable and effective. There would also need to be proper
monitoring and feed back from relevant Corporate Directors on specific
risks highlighted within each register. In reply, the Chair maintained the
position that the Report outlined in point 6.3 stated that all current Risk
Registers, in hard copy format would be over 500 pages register, but
when a copy of that 500 pages register was forwarded to chair, the chair
found only 281 pages of the 500 pages register, in that circumstances,
the position became confused to him. However, some member wanted a
brief report, outlying the full picture. As a way forward the Acting Director
of Finance assured the Committee that in due course he would present a
report, outlying the full picture of the strategic registers, supported by the
other registers. The meeting agreed with that suggested way forward.




Page 9

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 29 OCTOBER 2007

RESOLVED

(i) That the full picture of the Councils’ entire Risk Registers be
presented to the Audit Committee at the earliest, meanwhile
the latest version of the corporate risk register, as presented to
the committee be noted;

(i) That any changes, new risks and actions be reported to the
Committee;

(iii)That meanwhile, the committee clerk would write, with the formatted
questions to the Councils’ designated officer for risk management and
would circulate the contents of the reply letter, as and when received to
all members of the Audit Committee;

(iv) However, on the basis of assurances by the Head of the Audit, the
Committee expected that the Council Officers were managing the risks
of the council adequately & effectively. However, an update of the risks
management be reported to each quarterly meetings of the Committee.

PRAC38. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS:

None.

PRAC39.| DATE OF NEXT MEETING:
RESOLVED
That the following dates were confirmed:

. Monday 28 January 2008, 7:30pm
o Monday 28 April 2008, 7:30pm

Councillor Gmmh RAHMAN KHAN
Chair, Audit Committee 2007/8

Date:




Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 11

Update on 2007/08 Audit and Inspection Plan

Agenda ltem 6

Grant Thornton %

As the 2007/08 Audit and Inspection Plan was issued in July 2007, we thought it would be helpful to
provide you with an update of the key areas that we intend focussing upon as part of this year’s work.
Given that many of the risks detailed within the 2007/08 Plan remain relevant, these have been
included in this document with an update on their status. In addition, we have included any new risks
relevant to our audit work that have been identified since this Plan was presented to the Audit

Committee.

The 2007/08 Use of Resources scoring and Data Quality work will be reported to the Council by the
Audit Commission as this was part of their remit as the outgoing auditors.

We are required to carry out an audit of the Council's Best Value Performance Plan and also to report
whether it has been prepared and published in accordance with legislation and statutory guidance.
We are pleased to report that we were able to issue an unqualified opinion on this by the end of

December deadline.

Key audit risks

There is a potential conflict between Building
Schools for the Future programme and
existing PFI schemes that are in place.

A strategy for improving the health of the
community that brings together the initiatives
that are taking place, such as ensuring health
inequality issues are being addressed.

There is a risk that the ALMO in charge of
Housing services may not deliver its
objectives and offer value for money.

The Council has recently had an Allocation
and Lettings Inspection undertaken by the
Audit Commission.

We understand there have been
complications over the granting of a lease to
the current service provider at Alexandra
Palace.

Ensuring better use is made of the investment
in customer services and ICT.

Update at January 2008

The Council has evaluated the options in place
due to the conflict between the BSF programme
and the PFIl scheme and is currently working hard
towards finding a solution with Central
Government. We have had several updates with
management to discuss the options that the
Council has put forward and assessed the impact
of these as part of our Accounts and Use of
Resources work. We are also currently discussing
some of the detailed accounting entries in the
context of both the 2007/08 accounts and the
future years implications on PFI of the introduction
of International Financial Reporting Standards.

We are currently undertaking a study on Health
Inequalities in conjunction with the Haringey PCT,
and will report our findings to the Audit Committee
when this work is completed.

The Housing Inspection report has been issued
and concluded that the services provided were
good with promising prospects for improvement.

We will review the results of this inspection as part
of our 2007/08 audit work.

We will continue to monitor developments in this
area as part of our 2007/08 audit work as there is
a risk that this could have a financial impact upon
the Council.

As part of our interim audit work we will undertake
a high level review of the controls operating within
the IT systems. We will discuss the results of this
with management and, if appropriate, will look to



Page 12

Key audit risks

International financial reporting standards
(IFRS) will come into operation from 2008/09
and there will be a requirement also to restate
the 2007/08 comparatives. Also, there are
changes in the SORP 2006 that will apply to
the 2007/08 accounts such as the introduction
of the revaluation reserve.

An overarching approach to regeneration
brings together key quantifiable outcomes to
enable the Council and partners to measure
progress.

The Council has a significant capital
programme and will need to continue to
develop corporate control over all capital
projects.

The comprehensive spending review is likely
to impact upon the Council and put additional
pressure on budgets that are already
stretched, such as the costs of housing
asylum seekers.

The Council is required to restructure
children's services as required by legislation.
There is a risk that these arrangements may
not meet the requirements.

Recruitment and retention is a risk in some
areas of the Council such as youth service
and children's social care.

Update at January 2008

undertake a more detailed review as part of our
2007/08audit work.

We have undertaken a workshop for all our Local
Government clients to ensure they are fully aware
of the latest accounting developments. However
we would note that the timetable for the
implementation of IFRS has been pushed back to
2009/10 but with Whole of Government Accounts
implications for 2008/09.

The Council recognise that an overarching
approach to regeneration should continue to
develop and we will continue to monitor progress
made by the Council in this area as part of our
2007/08 audit work.

We will consider the adequacy of controls over the
capital programme as part of our interim audit
work and will also seek to place reliance on the
Use of Resources scoring judgments undertaken
by the outgoing auditors.

We have discussed the results of the
Comprehensive Spending Review with
management and we understand that this has
been incorporated into the financial and business
planning process. We will continue to monitor
progess and in particular the arrangements for
delivering the 2008/09 budget.

We understand from management that there has
been good progress on integration within the
Children and Young People's Directorate. We will
also take into account the implications of the most
recent CSCIl assessment as part of our Use of
Resources work.

We will continue to monitor the Council's progress
in ensuring that this risk is mitigated.

We hope the Audit Committee finds the contents of this letter useful and the audit team are happy to

discuss any of the matters raised.



Page 13 Agenda ltem 7

Haringey Council

Agenda item: [No ]
Audit Committee On 28™ January 2008

Report Title: Internal Audit Progress Report — 2007/08 Quarter 3

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): N/A

Report of: Head of Audit and Risk Management

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose

1.1 To inform the Audit Committee of the work undertaken by the Internal Audit Service
for the third quarter 2007/08 and reports outstanding from 2006/07.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the Audit Committee notes the audit coverage and progress during the third
quarter 2007/08 and on the reports outstanding from 2006/07.

2.2 That the Audit Committee notes the progress and responses received in respect of
outstanding audit recommendations.

2.3 That the Audit Committee confirms that the actions taken to address outstanding
priority 1 recommendations is appropriate.

Report Authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

3. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

3.1 For access to the background papers or any further information please contact Anne
Woods on 0208 489 5973.




Page 14

4. Background

4.1 The purpose of this report is to advise the Audit Committee of the audit activity for the
third quarter of 2007/08. In addition, the report updates the position on those reports
from 2006/07 which remained outstanding at 31 March 2007.

5. Performance Management Information

5.1 Although there are no national or Best Value Performance Indicators, local
performance targets have been agreed for Audit and Risk Management. These form
part of Corporate Resources’ reporting processes, but are detailed below for
information. The table shows the targets for each area of audit activity monitored and
gives a breakdown between the quarterly and cumulative performance.

Pl Performance Indicator 3™ Year to Target

Ref. Quarter date

A1l Audits completed vs. Planned 90% 92% 95%
programme

A2 User satisfaction (1 = low, 5 = 3.4 3.4 3.75
high)

A3 Time taken to complete 10.5 12.6 12
investigations (2007/08 weeks weeks weeks
referrals)

6. Deloitte and Touche
6.1 The activity of Deloitte and Touche for the third quarter of 2007/08 to date is detailed at

Appendix A. This also includes details of all reports outstanding from 2006/07, which
are separately identified. For 2007/08, a total of 64 projects was planned for the first,
second and third quarters, including school visits. To date, 36 projects have been
completed and issued as final reports. A further 23 projects have been completed and
draft reports have been issued. At this stage of the year, the percentage of completed
projects and final reports issued to date is significantly above previous years’
completion rates and it is anticipated that the 95% target will be achieved by the year
end.

6.2 The programme of planned follow up audits is also reported at Appendix A. For follow

up work in relation to 2006/07 audits, a total of 141 recommendations have been
subject to follow up. Of these, 61 have been implemented including 12 out of 34 priority
1 recommendations. A further 35 are in progress and being implemented and 11
recommendations are no longer applicable. In total, a 76% compliance rate has been
achieved, which is substantially higher than previous years. The higher profile of the
work of internal audit and the new reporting requirements to the Audit Committee have
ensured that managers take greater responsibility for implementing recommendations.

6.4 At the previous Audit Committee, further details of all outstanding recommendations

reported when the follow up work was undertaken were provided. Since July 2007, work
has been ongoing, in conjunction with the Chief Financial Officer, to ensure that
Directors were aware of the required actions necessary. As a result, Appendix A also
contains a detailed explanation of the status of all priority 1 recommendations from

Page 2 of 3



Page 15

2004/05 and 2005/06 which were reported as ‘not implemented’ when the original follow
up work was completed.

6.5At the last committee in October 2007, there were a total of 12 priority 1

7.

recommendations which had not been implemented. As a result of work undertaken
during quarter 3, this has now reduced to 8. Of these, which have been agreed by
managers, all of them were in the process of being implemented and a revised deadline
for completion has been provided. Directors have been kept informed of progress at all
stages and Internal Audit are satisfied that managers are taking appropriate action to
address the issues raised in the original recommendations.

In-house Team - Fraud investigation/Irregularities

7.11n accordance with the Council’'s Constitution, Internal Audit investigates all cases that

fall outside the remit of the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team and the
Information Security Policy. Appendix B details the individual cases that were
completed by the In-house Team during the first three quarters of 2007/08 and brought
forward from 2006/07.

7.2Within the third quarter, eight new cases were referred to Internal Audit for investigation,

and six cases were completed during the quarter involving Council employees. To date
in 2007/08, 24 new cases have been referred to internal audit for investigation, and 18
cases were brought forward from 2006/07. The cases investigated during quarter three
covered a number of allegations from fraudulent application for housing and council tax
benefits, identity fraud and fraudulent extension of PSL leased properties. During
2007/08, the average length of time taken to investigate all allegations is 12.6 weeks.

7.3 The In-house Team also investigates claims of non-receipt of Council cheques. To date

in 2007/08, there has been one new referral for investigation. Improvements in
procedures, including the introduction of ‘positive pay’ whereby the council’'s banking
team receives information on cheques before they are cleared, and new cheque
security measures have substantially reduced the level of fraudulent activity in this area.
When a cheque fraud, or attempted encashment of a fraudulently altered cheque, is
reported to or by the bank, the total is classified as a ‘saving’ as this is the potential
amount which could have been lost. The council has not lost any money, as the fraud
was detected and the cheque was not cashed.

7.4 Appendix C details the number of disciplinary suspensions and/or action taken in the

third quarter of 2007/08. The data is taken from SAP and the information has been
provided in line with council statistics reported elsewhere. In addition, better
management information is now available to assist in monitoring and reviewing
outstanding cases in order to improve processes across all directorates.

Page 3 of 3



Page 16

V XION3IddV

Q007 Arenuef
"PIT NPNY [RUWIdIU] J0309S I[N AYONO ], 2 N0

AJSULIBH JO Y3noJa0g uopuo|
8007/L00T

110day 3pny [euadjuy ¢ J93rend)
jpny jeu.juj



Page 17

80/L00T Hoday ¢ Iareng) — upny [BUIU] A9Sutief] jo ySnoiog uopuor|

L Anqisuodsay Jo Justerelg
L 90/S00T — SUOEPUSIIIIONSY | AJLOL JO df) MO[[O
Qg s S0/P00T — SUOTRPUSIIILO0aY | AILIOL Jo df) MO[[os
g £0/900Z 21981 dn-amo[o,
g s S[00YDS UI PIEPUR]S JUSWIASRURIA [FIOURUL] — SHIPNY [0040S
s R0/L00 - € 1911eng) :SSUIpUL] pa[ed(
OSSO0 0000000660000 TP SUSIYSIE 1PNy
ddeq

SJUUO0))

V XION3ddV 80/,002 LJ0Od3d LIANV ATIILIVNO - 1IANV TVNY3LNI 31110713d



1 98eg 80/L00T Woday ¢ 1o11en) — 1pny [ewiu] A9SULIBY JO YSN0Iog UOpuo|

SIo)jewl JoUIU - € Aot g
U008 JUSWISSBUBW [BJ0] I0] SUOHEPUSITIIOIAT IS0 - ¢ Ajionag
JUS WSS RUBLL IOTUSS JO UOT)UD)IE Y] 10] SanssI Jofew - [ Aqr0144

'S911080180 SUIMO][0] 9} 0} SUIPIOIOE PAsHLIOLId oI SUOIEPUSTUTIOIAI N0 “IOPUISI B Sy

"s110da1 Ipne [RUIOIUL ISI[IBS Ul PA2ISE SUONIR Y] [n] 0} JusweSeuew oy} £q saInjiey AU 1noge 910U y

pue {SI03IpNE [BUISIUI Y} O} WISOUO0D JO a1 YDIYm sasuodsal juswoSeueu AUe NOqe 9)0U Y

SUOTIRPUSWIUOIAI € PUB 7 AJLIOLL] [[B JO Alewng

‘SUOTIBPUSIWIOIAI | AJLIOL [[B JO S[IB1ap [N

:K1039180 A)u1011d yord Ul SUONBPUSTIIIIOIAI JO IOqUINN]

190URINSSE JO [9AJ] AU} JNOGE UOISN[OUOD [[BIDAQ)

3Ipne 9y} Jo soAn[qO

'S}IpNE [eLLIojuL

pajerduwoo oy o Yora 10§ S[1eI19p SULMO[[O] 9} SPNJOUT [[1M M ‘,80/L00T 10F ASo1enS pue ue[d PNy [BUISIU] Jei(], INO YIIM JuIl] U]

"9OPIWIIOY) 11PNy Y} 0)
paytodar A[snotasid jou asoy) a1e ploq ut pYSIYIIY S}IPNE oY, 'OPBW U2dq OABY SUOIEPUSWIIOIAI ‘A}LIoLid 10MO] “IYI0 JT 918)S [[IM
ATewruns oy} ySnoyi[e ‘OpeUr SUOHRPUSWILIOODI | AJLIOLJ AuB apnjoul pue sSurpuiy Loy oy oq o} a8pnl ipny [ewsoiu] 1eym ySiysy
ATUO SOLIBWILUNS 9], "9 IWUO)) JIpNY oY) 0] pajtodar pue panssi st 1odax jeury oy awin) oyl Aq S100LJ0 [10Uno)) £q pajuswardun
129 dARY Apeal[e ABW SUOLBPUSWILIOIA] PUB IIPne oy} JO OUIl} 9y} Je SWR)sAS Y} JO SNIe)s Sy} J09[Jol SOLIBWIINS Payorle oy,

Page 18

‘sjrodaz
JIpne [eUulj [eNPIAIPUL O] Ul Pafre1ap Aqny a1e ‘uonejduiod 10y auI[peap oy} pue I90GJo a[qisuodsal oy SUIPN[OUL ‘SUOTIEPUSITIOIAT
U} SSAIPPE 0} SUOIOR SISJIJ() PAaISe U9aq dArY Modar 1y} unpim pajySySIy SoSSOUyeam [OIU0d AUB SSOIPPE 0] SUONBPUSUILIOI]
[[V "pansst Suidq 110dax [euy oYy 0) 1o1id passnosip ore sondsip Aue pue ‘SIOONJO [10UNO)) YA PIdISe oIe SUOTIEPUSUIIIOdDI [

"0INJONIS 91BI0}0AIIP snoladxd oy ur
poodal oxe /(/900¢ 10§ SIPNE Y} S[IYM DINJONIS 9JBIOOAIIP MAU 1) Yiim ul] Ul payrodar axe §(/,0(¢ 10] SHpne oy -ofels [eulj Je

AOU dI€ YOIy SHO0da1I [[€ JO S[IB19p SUIPN|OUL J18aA [BIOUBUL §()/L00T Y} J0J 9P IWIO)) JIPNY Y} 0} 1odax 1o11enb piry) Ino St siyJ,

uondnpouf

SIYSIYSIH ypny

V XIAN3ddV 80/.002 LYOd3Y 1INV ATIILEVND - LIdNV TVNY3LNI 3111073d



7 988y 80/L00T Hody ¢ 103rend) — 1pny [euru] AeSuLie Jo ySnolog uopuo|

Page 19

"a1qeordde 103uo] ou a1om 9,8 pue pojuswerdwir Aped useq aary
%P ¢ ‘porustuadur usaq Jou dABY %67 ‘PAIUSWL[dUI USDq AR % JRY} PUNOY PUB SUOHRPUIWIIOIAL [{] U0 dn PoMOJ[O] SABY M

L0/9007 AN mofjoq

Jsanbax uodn spodar yipne mo o sa1dod [0y yimm papiaoid oq OS[E [[1m 99)IWWO.) oY} JO SIOQUISJA

V XION3ddV 80/L00C 1¥0d3d 11NV ATH3LYVNO - 1IdNV TYNY3ILNI 3L110713d



Page 20

€

o8eg

80/L00T Hoday ¢ 10p1end) — Ipny [BuIaiyu] A98uLief o ySnolog uopuoy

"800T Ateniqgo, K[1ea ut panssi oq [[im Hodor JeIp v 'g007 Arenuef
Jo pus oy} Aq pajo1dwiod 2q 03 anp ST PuB PalIe]s Sey JIOMP[OLf 11PNy

"91e1030211(T 9[d0ad Suno X pue uaIp[Iy) Uryim sjej 100foid sy,

swrwrea3o.ad eyde) Arewrig

"800 Arenue[ ur pansst
oq M podar yeip e pue pojo[dwiod Ua9q SBY JIOMP[RY PNy

"01RI0JORII(T JUSTUUOIIAUY UBGI() oY) UTYIM Se} joofoxd sty

saoedg wadQ pue udd10) Jursoxduy

'800T Arenuef 87 £q
onp st asuodsal juouwoFeurw Y], "g0()7 Alenue[ § U0 jUSWIOSeUR

0] ponsst sem 310doI Jyeip v pue pejo]duwos useq sey YIoMplay Ipny

030 paeoq 1osfoxd
‘s1osuods 100(o1d 21 ‘[oA9] YSIYy ® 1B 2InjoNnIs
[euonestuedio joofoxd oy} Jo  MIIAIAQ e
's100(01d jo dn 395 o3 03 spaedar yum
SeaIe JUIMO[[O] Y} IOPISUOD [[IM SIIPNE [BNPIAIPU]

‘suonjoe pue Surodos AousFunuoo
pue ‘100(o1d 2y} Jo AISAIOp 2INSUD 0} SUODY o
pue ‘yied [eonLr) oY) Jo SULIOIIUON e
{Anpiqisuodsar Jo uoneSoe(q e
‘om] o) usamiaq
UOIOUNSIP Y} puR ‘Sansst pue sYSU jo pedw] e
‘paAerap 10 juads 19A0/10pUn
Suraq s199fo1d yo sreudis A[1es Jo uonedHUSPI
pue Suuoyiuow pue 123pnq [eyded o) Yury e
‘sunodar pue Suniojiuow 109{01] e
JuowdgeurIy 100lo1g
[rounoy) oy} jo Surpuejsopun pue uonediddy e
:89ss9001d Aoy Surimorjoy a3 jo uoneordde
o) Ssasse pue AJuapI 0] 23S [[Im 1Ipne yory

"01BI0300II(] dwreidord oous[[o0x9 N0
$901AIG AJIUNUILIOY) 29 21NN YNPY Y} UM s[[ey 10ofoxd sryy, | Suiaomygor pue ueid [OUN0d o Jjo KIOAT[OP oUBINSSY
[[e10A0 o) jo ied se [OUNO) 9y} Aq poynuULpI JoweSeuey
(Tenyuapisay) 4393e¢ dae) Aranwwo)) | se ‘spooford Koy IOpISUOd [[Im Iom JIpne AyJ, 1oafoig
SHLVIOLOHYIA 1TV
Joueinssy | sduipuyj Aay/snjels adoag BaIE JIpny
80/L00T - € YALAVNO :SONIANIA AATIVLAA
V XION3ddV 80/2002 LJOd3Y 11ANV ATHILHVNO - LIANV TVYNYILNI 311107130




Page 21

v a8eg 80/L00T Hoday ¢ 103ren) — 1pny [ewiau] Lo3uLRl Jo y3nolog uopuo|

JO L1 yia ‘uonjejuawmoop suntoddns Jo yoe[ [BIouo3 B SI QIS e

pue
‘syrwut] reaoidde 11oy) papasoxo pey siosoidde o) ‘sases oy up e

‘sosuadxo
yseo Apod oaoxdde 03 ‘proooy ArojeuSig pestoymny oY)
urgim ‘Ajuroyine Kue 9Aey jou pIp sioAsoidde oy ‘soseo UsAdS U] e

PAYIIUSPI SIOM SISSOUNBAM SUIMO[[O] oY,
"pordures axom ()GzF Iopun swre]o asuadxa yseo Ayad (g Jo [v101 v

S421ono 4 ysv) Apag
:M0[9q pa[IeIap SI S3UIpULy INO JO AIRUWIUInS

SY L, [Iounoy) ay) ssoIoe ‘ajep 0} 9007 [Udy | woi swiepo ssuadxo
Jo opdures e 3unss) 01 pieSol Yum NIom INo pajo[dwiod 9ABY 9

:PNBI] 9ANOY 01

"SeoIe YSII
USTY JO MOIA OPIM UOPUOT PUB UOISSIWIWIO)) 1PNy
9U} pue SANENIU] Phel [BUONEN 9Y) JUNOJ0E OJul
oye) OS[R [[IM 9A\ "SOSeO pnelj snoraald usaq oAry
QIoY) QIoUM ‘SBale MSU YSIY JOA0O [[IM SHOM InQ

‘[ouno))
oy ssoroe oonoeld jusmnpner Ajnuopt o) jdwoje
0] ‘[ouno) oY) M padide 9 0} “SOIBIO}NAII(]
[ENPIATPUI UTY)IAM SBAIR YSLI Y31 uo Sunsa) o3o[dwoo
os[e [[IM 9A\ ‘ASSULIRH IOJ SOWOH pue S[O0YdS
opujoul os[e [[IA pUe ‘[IoUNno)) oy} JO SIJBIOJOII(]

[le ssoloe seaie A9y 3JuLOA0O osIoloxe Sul[yold pneyy-nuy
V/N sasuadxy | pnery oyl Jo uono[dwiod Ipn[our [[IM oM QO dANIR-0IJ
"'uonnjos Ay} supuowo[dulr Y3im Sonss] e
pue
oureisoxd / 10ofoxd oy ur pasn ASojouyos] e
‘soinpasoid pue
S[OIIUO0D JUSWS[qRUS pUR JuoWOTeuew o5uey) o
o010 109foxd o1 Jo [0y e
JuotoFeURW YSLI U0 SMOIA
SiuowoFeur 9y} pUL JUOWOTBUBWE JO SS9001]
quowaAjoAur Apred piry; Loy e
'S[IYS JuBAS[aI pue wed) 10ofoxd oy Jo s[rele(q
‘100(o1d oty unyIIm SYSUI A9y
oy pue ‘a1ep 0 190(o1d 9y} JO MOTIAISAO JOLIT e
‘osed
SSOUIST( 91} 10] [33] B J25 pue ‘ssaulsng oy} 0}
100(o1d ayj Jo AjiTeOonIIO oY) JO SUIpURISIOPU[] e
UBINSSY sgurpuyj £3y/smyels adoog BIIR JIpNY

V XION3ddV 80/.002 LJOd3d LIANV ATIILHVNO - LIANVY TYNYILNI 311107130




Page 22

¢ a8eg 80/L00T 1oday ¢ 1opend) — upny [euieju] AoSurief] jo 4ynoiog uopuo|

"BAIR ST} UI S[01U0 dA01dwl
01 djoy prnoys yomm ‘suorepuatiooal 7 Ayorid omy
pue [ Ajuotid 901y} pasTel 9ABY oM ¢ SHIOA INO JO }[NSol B Sy

‘JuawiAed 10] passasord Sureq wreld oy} 03 Jotid ‘190150
pasuoyine ue Aq [eaoidde Jo 0oUOpIAG OU SBM 0I9Y)] 0SB0 SUO U] e

pue ‘wred ayy dn yoeq 03 ‘sydiedar
se yons ‘uonejuowmoop Sunioddns ou sem 210y} SOSBO OM] U[ e
‘POIJIIUAPT 2IOM SISSOU[BAM
Surmor[oy oy [, "pajduues a1om ()G7F JOA0 STUIR[O SasUadxa [oABI] XIS

u]) sasuadxsy jaand |

"}I0M 0] oWy woly 95ea[Iwl 8y} JO UononNpap
OU SeM 2I9(] ‘90UDISJUOD B 8 90UepUa)ie 0} Sune[or ‘9sed suo U] e

pue
9ISqoM Y 9} WL POUIe)qo 1By} JO SS90X9 Ul SeM Paseq sem

wre[o oyl yorym uo Aswmol oy} I0j oFea[Itl oY) ‘SISEd OAIf U] e

‘Koumol
oY} Jo uoneduwiod 2y} I91. SYJUOL USASS OPBUL SBM WIB[D OU() e

‘Kouanof swes oy} 10J OPR 210M SWIB[O 9Jeor[dnp ‘Sosed oml1 U] e
‘Kouanol o) 10J uoneoynsnf pue suoseal

9y} ULIJUOD 0} papiaoid a1om S[IRIOP JUSIOLJNSUI SISBO OM] U] e

‘PAIJTJUSPI 2IOM SISSOUBOM

Suimoroy ayJ, -pojdwes orm swied afes[lwr (] JO [BI0] VY

SuIIwy) 23V

"patoRIIR S9010AUI 10 5119021 ou SuIARY SWIR]O 3Y)

"SO[OIYOA
PIUOPUBQY UO YIOM INO JO UOBNUIIUO)) e
pue
Ajpifea 103  s93peq onjq,, jo ojdwes e Junssy e
Trouno)) oy} $SoIoe Swie[d asuadxo Jo Junsay, e
‘$)unoosip Aouednooo o[3uls xe [ [1ouno))
pue syuad Suryied sjuapisoy o3 Sune[ax
9SI0I9X0 JUIYDJRW BIEP INO JO PIBAIOJ AIIB) e
{SoIey AIBUOISSOOUO)) e

:opnjout osey ], ‘1no padoos
Us9q 9ARY JIom JO seale [enusjod Jo toquinu

QueInssy

sguipuij A3y/snels

adoog

Baae jipny

V XION3ddV 80/.002 LHOd3Y LIANV ATIILHVNO - LIdNV TVYNYILNI 31110730




9 a8eq 80/L00¢ Hoday ¢ 1911en) — upny [eurou] A28uiieq Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

"ANATIOY SunyeuIyousyg

pUE {JUSWISISE [BN}OBIIUO))

‘sonsst feuorjerddo pue sjonuoo Aoy
£10J0B1UOY) 9y} JO saumpeoold pue samIoq
‘[rouno)) AsSuLey Je saInpadold pue SaIdIo

'O SNO0J [[IM PUB SI[IIYI A PIUOPURQY UTYIIM
sampao01d Jo SSOUDATI0RJS oy} YSI[E}So 0} PSuSISap S Jipne oy,

"AIeniqga,] ur ponssi aq [[1 j10dal JJeIp ® pue 00T
AIenue( 17 UO 1B} [[IM JIOMPIY IPNY "90/S00Z UT pa1ojduod sem
UOIyMm SO[OIo A POUOPUBQY UO YIOM INO JO UOHIBNUNUOD B ST SIY ],

SORIYI A pauopueqy

Page 23

‘asodind jey 10y J1uwur ® pajesore
SI oym pue suornoesuen) asuadxs oroxdde o3 Ajuoyne ayy Suiaey
Se P1029y AI0JRUSIS PASLIOYINY 9y} Ul Papnjoul sI oy IIJIJJo
ue Aq juowked 10j pasoidde oq Auo prnoys swied osuodxy e

pue ‘Aswmof oy} Sunerdwos 10J suoseax
oy apnjoul prnoys yomm ‘pasoidde 3ureq wrepo oyy 03 Joud
ssouoje[dwiod pue AdeINJOER 10 POYOdUD oIt swIe[d ofeouu
Jey) 2IMSus 0] POPUIDI dg P[NOYS SIAJYJO SUISLIOYINE [[y e

JOULIRH UO d[qe[IeAR
spew pue podooasp oq prnoys ‘swe[o osuadxo jo juowked
pue [eaoxdde ‘Suissaoord oy Suroa0d Aorjod opIm-[IOUNO) Ve

:SMO[[OJ S 2Je SUOTIEPUSIIIO0aI | AJLIOLL oY T,

QuUBINSSY sgurpury Aoy/smels ] adoog BIJIE JIPNY

V XIAN3ddV 80/.002 L0433 LIANV ATIILEVNO - LIdNV TVYNY3LNI 3L110713d




Page 24

, 33egd

80/L00T 1oday ¢ 1eyrend) — ypny [euru] LoSuLiel] Jo y3noiog uopuo|

waysAs oy Ind YOIYm SISSOUBOM OIB QIOU} WAISAS o) UNIIAN

“Juoweseuew 10J spodar saonpoid
pue Fuuojuow douewiofod Apyoom sojo[dwios 201AI0G oyl e

pue {Spaau ZUTUTRI) SUIULIdIOP 0] Pasn
aIe s[esterdde sourwojrad pue sSunoow dUO-0}-0UO JO SINSIY e

‘porrad
uoneqoid yiuow-oa1y) 1oy ulyym paje[dwoo st uruien JjeiS e
:MOT2q POJSI 218 YOIYM JO QWIOS
‘Auoroeysnes Sunerado 9q 0} POAISSGO 219/ S[OIUOD JO IOqUINU Y

JSLI 18 $9A102[0 wd)sAs oy JO owos

‘Bunaodar juowaSeury e

pue ‘SULIOIUOW QOUBULIOJID o
‘uors1aold 901A19s JO SULIOIUOTN
(‘Sururen pue uononpuy JjeiS e

[enuesqg nd yorym ‘sossouyeam OIe QI ], ‘WAISAS punos A[[eorseq v sI a1y, :apnpour JIpne oy} Aq paIoA0d 9q 0] SeaIe Aoy howwomwmﬂw
JUSWIUONAUG URqQl) e
pue {S321AI0S ANUNWIWIOY) 29 2MMI[N)) ‘I NPY e poLyIIUAPI
‘o[dood SunoL % udIp[iy) e S[ONUOD 3} JO SSOUGAIDQJJO dY) SSISSB JO/pur
‘s001Mosay ojer0dio)) e paynuapl sjonuod Ay} jo Adenbape oy ssosse YsLI
oy} oFeuew 0} sjonuod SurpieSor adiApe opiaoid
'POYBIP U93Q AR SISIFL SLI 21LI0J0AXI(] BUIMO[[OF SY, | | oo [ am ‘oeudordde oxoyp  SYSH KoY o
01 pae3a1 yum yJom jo owweiSoid € 9013w [[im op
"91BI010911I(] YOBD IO SYSLI [BNPISaI IsaySIy ()| 9y Surmoys
poredord oq [[m SI0)SISOX MYSLI 97RI010QII [ENPIAIPUT ‘sio)siSer | -ojeudordde arym ‘syusunieda( ssoroe sdoysszom
Jium ssauisnq oy jo juswogeuew Aq [eaordde pue uons[dwios uodn) | juowssessy  J[OS  YSIY [0HUO) JO  UOHE)IIOR]
9U} 9AJOAUI OS[E [[IM SIJJ ‘S9JBIO}ORIL(] S [IOUN0))
2IMONIS [IOUN07) MoU oYy yjim | O} JO SIMIdNNSAI oY) Jo Jnsdr € se ‘s1e)siSor 110ddng pue
surf uy s10)s1301 Ysu mou dofoadp ‘ereridordde aroym ‘pue soysigex | ISH JO Awepdn oyy Suneyjowy o} preSal YIM | uawdopasg
Jysu Supsixo mowy Sunepdn M WOy JSIsse 0} Sjei0joaxp yoes | [PPUNOD A SS0I0E Juswredaq Yowd 10] SIOYFO | yawmaSeuey
UM S)un ssoutsng [enpiapur o3 Joddns opraoid o) anunuoo ogy | POYEUIUIOU oY} YIM ISIBI [[IA M 1834 9y Suln(g SRy
RUBINSSY sgurpuly A/ smeig adoag BaIR JIpNY
V XION3ddV 80/L00C LYOd3Y 11ANV ATHILAVND - 1IANVY TYNYILNI 3LL10713d




Page 25

g a8eg

80/L00T Hoday ¢ 1911en) ~ Ipny [Buiaiu] LoSuLief] Jo ySnoiog uopuo]

V/IN

ur sunynsar 9[qeorjdde 195uo0] ou ST UOHEPUSWILIOIAI ¢ AJLIOLIJ SUO
pue pajuswsydwr Apred usoq sey UOHEPUSIWIOdI 7 AILIOLL] SUO
‘paruowoduil US3( 9ABY SUOTEPUIUIUIODI 7 AJLIOLLJ 0A) JBY) PUNOJ
pue £(/900¢ Ul pasiel SUONBPUSWIIOII InoJ oy} dn Pamo[[o] o\

OJUEBWISAOL) pUB [RUOIES[UBSI() OWWRISOI] e

:pepnjout
upne oyl Aq paIdAod seare oyl Moder jpne
[euwrour /(0/9007 9y} Ul pasiel SUOBPUSUIIOAI
oy dn  Summooy  oajoAur  [Im SIYL

dn-mofjoq
—amny 3y}
J10J sjooyds
Suipping

"8007 Arenuef [¢ 0} uomoSeurw
Jo 1sonbar oy je ‘popuoixe Woq sey osuodsar juowoSeuRw
oyl JI0J QUIPedp OYJ L007 IOqUIDdS( H U0 juswdSeuRW
0} pansst sem 110dax Jyerp & pue pojo[dwod usaq sey JHoMPIaLf 1Ipny

‘[rouno)) ay) ssoxde syuswedop
fenpraput urgum Aorjod o3 yypm  souerjduwod
Sunsa) opnpour [[IM  pue  AOI[0J UOI0dI0IJ
Ble(] [BHUSD S JIOUNO)) AU} ISA0D [[IM JIpne Sy,

»v
011993044

ele(q

‘a[qissod
se uoos se sonaed ojqisuodsor e Aq pouSis pue pasieur
oq p[noys siouped 901AI0S M SIUSWOAISY [9AQT 90IAIS [[V e

:SMOJ[0] SB ST UOIBPUSTIIIOAI | AJLIOLLJ O],

“JUSWIUOIIAUS [01JUO0D
oy) oaoxdwr o1 djoy pnoys Yomym ‘SUOTIEpULWIIOddI 7 Ajuiouid
om} pue | Ajuonid oUO PAsIBI OABY oM “JOM INO JO JNS3I B SY

"SI0JIE)S MAU JO JIJoUaq
a1} 10J 90IAIRS 9y} 10] 9oe[d Ul 2Ipoo0id UOHONPUI OU SIk IOY], e

pue 1891 (JAYD) yawadeuey drysuone[oy
Iowoisn) oY) possed pey A9y} Jey} WUJUOD O} 90UIPIAD
AIRjuowinoop ou sem 010y} ‘pojduues SI0pe)s MSU OUIU I0] e

‘pauSIs pue pasIfeUI USA( 10U PBY dUSIS11S pue AoFuLiey]
I0] SOWIOH pUB SIJIAINS JOWOISN)) USIMIDG  SIUSUIDAISY

[0AQT 9DIAIDS O} NIOMP[OY JIpPNe [BUIOJUL OU}) JO oW} oY) 1Y e

:9PN[OUL PUNOJ SI0M SISSOUNBIM AIAYM SBAIR 3], JSU I8 S9A10a[qo

AuUeInssy

ssuipuij A9y/snjels

adoog

vl Jipny

V XION3ddV

80/L00¢C LYOd3Y 11ANV ATIILHVNO - 1IdNV TVNYILNI 3L11073a




Page 26

6 23eg 80/L00T Hoday ¢ 101en() — 1pny [ewiaiu] LoSuLIe Jo YSnoiog uopuos]

"SUOTIRPUOTITIOND]
Ioyuny Aue posiel joU 9ARY oM YIOM INO JO JNSAI B Sy

"s1qeordde 123U0] OU o8 SUOTEPULTUIO0AI T AJLIOLLJ SUO
pue | AJLOLJ dUO pue pajuowD[dWl Ueaq 9ABY SUOIBPUSLIUIOID]
T Aoud oAy 1eyy punoy pue joder jipuy  [BWSIU] £0/900T

[rouno)) oy} Jo Surpuejsiopun pue uonedrddy e
:s9sso001d
Koy Buimol[oy oy3 Jjo uoneordde oY) ssosse
pue Ajnuopt o) 1ySnos ypne 2y ooueInssy 10901y
U0 SI0om 9pIm [ouno)) oyl jo ued se ‘uonippe uj

"Ajoyine Jo uone3oo( e

pue

‘saunpadoid jonuo)) a3uey)) jo uoneorddy

‘sanpadoid jonuod a3uey)

198pnq s swwrerdord ayj jo Suntoday

198pnq s, oweIS01d oY) JO SULIO)UOA]

‘reaoxdde pue uoneridwos 3o8pnq Surpnjout
108pnq s, owureISo1d 9y JO UORUIULIDID( o

:pepnjout

upne oyl AqQ pareAod seare oy], -poder jipne

[eUISIUl /()/900T 9Y} Ul PIsiel SUOLBPUSUIUIOODI dn-amogog —
VIN INO UL posrel SUOHEPUSIHIUIOIdI USASS oY) uo dn pamo[oj ap |9y  dn  SUIMO[[O]  9AJoAUI  [[Im  SIYL Suroanosuy 1
800¢C
AJ1ea ur sgunpow preog oy jo auo je asodind pue sajo1 ‘odoos 1oy anUe)) U0, XIS KoBULIR Jo SULONUOp e
ouIuIalep 0} ndul ue se asn 0} pIrog 9y} I0J PIPIWGNSSI o [HE'S ’ ' o
90UQIRJAI JO SULID) POISI33ns Jey) saje)s asuodsar juswadeuew oy, PUE SI0MOWEL] JUOWSSeURy 10001
"SIOQUISUI PIBOE [[E O} PAJEOTUNUILIOD ‘(O[S [eroURUL SUIPN[OUL) JUSWOTRURIA JSTY o
9q USY) pInoYys o0udIdJel JO suuw) pasoidde oy Teaocidde .
1oy preog a1 01 pajuasaid oq prnoys ‘saniiqisuodsar pue sajo1 o -(e1ep 03 puads jo
‘odoos s)1 Surreiop ‘pIeOg oY) I0J IOUSIYAI JO SULID) JeIp oy e | OLHOHUOW SuIpn[oul) SIUSWIBULLLY [PIOURUL] e
'SMO[[OJ SB SI UOIIRPUSTIIOD3I 7 AJLIOLI] POSIeI-a1 9y, SSWIBUELIY AY[IqrIun00oy pue Sunoday e
"UOT)BPUSTIUIOI POSIBI-O1 OUO ‘amonng
dueanssy ssurpury E\mgﬁw adoog BaJae JIpny

V XION3ddV 80/.00¢ LJOd3N LIANV ATIILIVNO - LIANV TVYNYILNI 3LL10713d




Page 27

01 28eq

80/L00T Hody ¢ 1e1rend) — 1pny [euwiu] LaSuLiey jo y3noiog uopuo|

[enuelsqng

[BUL] U} Ul PI[IBIAP I8 S2INPa00id UMOP 9SO[0 pua-I1eak oy,

pue ‘siseq A[JuoW © U0 FuNeoUl preog JUSWOSBURIA SATINOIX]]
Jory) oY) pue sSupesw juswdSRUBW 123PNq Y] JB POMOIADI
st s1q) ‘ojqeorjdde axoym sjurod uonoe SUI[IR}Op PUE SOOUBLIEA
Surdynuapt ‘poonpoid st 1odar juowadeuew j98pnq A[qjuowr y

IeoA [erouRUL U} JO JIBIS oY) ' 108pnq oy} 92188 0}
SIop[oy 103pnq Aq pasn sI wioj justwsaise 108pnq euoj-oid v

‘s1apjoy
198pnq 01 pajestunwod st uoneredord jo8png uo oouepinn

‘s3uneatu wies [, JuswoSeue A
soueury ojerodio)) oyy ySnomyy parojiow st ssarfoid pue
as1oIoXa unas 103pnq 60/800¢ U3 1oy doerd ul s1 o[qeoun}

:MO[3q PIISI] 218 YIIYM JO OWIOS
‘Ajuojoegsiyes Surerado 9q 0) POAISSqO 219 S[OIUOD JO IOQqUINU Y

"SI 1 S9A1}09[qO wa)sAs oy} Jo ouwos
mnd yorym ‘sossoudrom I8 2JOU ], WOISAS punos A[[eoIseq e st a1y,

SUOTJEPUSIUIONY
Npny [eurelu] £0/900¢ Jo dn morjo.

pue $2INpad0Id UMO( 3SO[))

‘Sunroday] juswedeuey 91e10dio))
‘SJUSUIDITA

‘Bunaoday juowageur|y [ejusuntedo(]
‘SISATeuy 9oUBLIE A pUE [onju0)) A1ejedpng
‘3urpeg 198png

:Seare SUIMO[[0] ) Ul JUSUIUOIIAUD
[OIIUOO 9y} SSOSSE 0] USYBLOpUN Sem NIOM JIpny

[o.3uo)
A1eyadpng

2 JUdUSRUBIA
[eoueuly
21391808

SIWALSAS TYIONVNIA AT - STOUNOST ALVIOIN0D

‘suonoe pue surntodor Loua3unuo))

pue Joafo1d ayj Jo AI2AI[Op 2MSUD 0} SUONOY
pue ‘yjed (eI Y} JO SULIOIUOIA
{Knigrsuodsail Jo uonesaa(

‘0Mm) 9] Us9MISq

UoIounSIp JY) PuUL ‘sansst pue sysu Jo joedury
‘Buniodai pue Sunojiow 19901
JuaureseuRA 100f01g

QUBINSSY

sdurpury Aay/snyels

adoog

BIIR JIpny

V XIAN3ddV

80/.002 LJOd3N 1LIANV ATIILYVNO - LIdNV TYNYILNI 311107130




Page 28

I

o8eg 80/L007 1oday ¢ 101ren() — Npny [euraiu] A93uLiel Jo ySnolog uopuo|

PUNOJ 9I0M SISSIUNBIM QIdUYM SBAIE OUJ, MSLI JB SOANI0[qo WIdISAS
o) Jo owos jnd YOIYM SOSSOUNBOM OIB 01} WIOISAS Y} UIIIA

PRAISSGO a21om BIEP O] SJOIIUOD SS3008 E@um%m MwOMwOA [

pue ‘uone[sisa] ym pardwoo
upne [eumdjul oy} Suump pojod[ds suodor jo ojdures oy e

‘ooueuioyad

MO]J USEd Jou S, [Iouno)) 2y} JO UONBSIWIXBW O} Yl )SISSE -dn Mmoo
0} siseq Je[n3al & uo poonpoid SI UOHIBULIOJUI [BIOUBULJ JUBAD[OY e pue ‘AJmoos 11 e
{sjossk [1ouno)) 199301d djoy 01 ooe[d ur SJoNUOD 01 Q1Y ], e Bupiodoy e
{SJUSWI)SOAUL PUE SUBO[ JO UOTRI[IOUOOY o
‘sjuotaImbal oATIR[SISo] ‘3unseooIoy Mo[J yse) e
s oouerdwod ainsud djoy o3 ooejd Ul wW0ISAS B SI Q19U e ‘819sSE JO AJLMI2S e
‘soapoaooid pue Aorjod ‘Uone[SIToT e
:MO[2q PIISI[ 2B YOIYM JO OUIOS :S9A1}99(q0 [01U0D pUR SBOIR JusuSeury
[epuE)sqns ‘ATuojoeysnes 3urjerodo 9g 0) PoAIdSGO AISM S[ONUOD JO JOqUINU Y | SULMO[[O] 9} JOA0D 0] UINEHOPUN SBA JIOA 1IPNY LInseaiy,
"BOIE SIY)
ul sjonuod aaordun djoy [[ia yomym ‘UonBpULWIIOdI ¢ AJLIOL]
QUO PISIel 9ABY oM BIJE SIY} Ul JIOM }IpNe INnO JO }NSal € Sy
"S}IUN SSAUISNQ UIYIIM
SJUSWIOIIA JI2A0D JOU O SJUOWIRIIA UO soInpodold juolmnd oyl e
:ST PUNOJ SBM SSOUYBIM Y} 2IOUM BAIR OU ], SLI B S0AN03[qO
wo)sAs 9y} Jo ouo sind YoTym SSOUEIM B ST 210U} WIISAS O} UTYIIA
“wres J, 9oueUl 9y} Aq sompadord umop 9sojo
uo siopjoy 398pnq 03} papraoid sI Jumiel} pue s9oU SIUNOIIY
uUBINSSy s3urpuy Aay/smels | adoos | BaIE JIpNY
V XION3ddV 80/200Z 18Od3¥ 11ANV ATHILYVND - LIANY TVYNHILNI 31110730




Page 29

1 98¢eg

80/L00T ¥oday ¢ 1iend) — upny [eurau] LoSurie Jo y3noiog uopuo|

"800T ATeniqo]
 AQ onp st asuodsal justusFrurwl oY, “JUSWOSEURU 0] PINSSI U0aq

sey podor Yeip v pue poje[duiod uoaq sey jipne oy} I0J JIOMP[OL]

‘stewnof Jo SuIp10oa1 2y uone[duwio) e
‘Anuoevie e

:SBaIR FUIMO[]OJ Y} SULIDAOD S[ONUOD JUBDIJTUSIS
pue Aoy 1joq Jo 3upsd) pue  ‘UONHBIUSWNOOP
Surpnpoul pue  ‘SUONBPUIWIWIOIAI JIpne  snoradxd
Jo dn-mof[oy Jurpnpour ypne wolsAs [0A9] YSIyg

JAZPIT [RIUID)
2 Jupunody

“UOTIRI[IOU0IDT WIOISAS

pue suononpap [[0iked

‘Aed 01 syuaunsn(pe 2y suoneLIE A

USRS RUBIA 90UBWLIOLIOJ

{SI10ABY]

‘smuiof

‘sjuowked

{SPI02aI
pue suonoesuer} Jo AJU3oul 29 AN[IGeIY e
‘uone[si3o] pue sampaoold ‘so1drj0g e

:seaIe SUIMO[[O] Y} SULIDAOD S[OIUOD JUBDTUSIS

8007 Arenigay | pue Aoy yloq jo 3Junse) pue  ‘uonBIUSWINOOD
¢ Aq onp st osuodsal JuswaFeuLW Y], JUSWIOFTRUBW 0] PANSSI U29q | SUIPNJOUT pUB  ‘SUOTIBPUAWIWONAI Jipne  snoiasid sasuadxy
sey 110da1 yJeip v pue pad[dwod ussq sey jipne Iy} I0j jIomplar] | jo dn-mofjoy Surpnpour yipne wWolsAs [0A9] YSIH » [o1keg
"BoIe
ST} Ul sjonuod sAoxdwr djoy [[1m yoIym UOTRpUSIUIIOAI ¢ AJLIOLIJ
OUO PasIel OABY 9M BAJE SIY) UI HOM JIphe INO JO }[NSdI B SY
"UMOUS
SABM[EB 10U ST 9JBD MOIAJI O} ‘SIOMIIAQI oY) Aq poudis a1k [[e
ysnoyjje pue pajdures oIom SUOIIRI[IOU0I0I Jueq A[JJUOW SAL] e
-opnjour
dueINsSSy SsuIpulj Ady/sneis adoog _ BvaJIR JIpNY
V XION3ddV 80/200Z LYOdIY LIANY ATYILNVND - LIANV TYNHILNI LLI0T3A




Page 30

€1 9%eqg

80/L007 1oday ¢ 191en) — upny [euiaiu] A9FuLIel] Jo YSnoliog uopuo|

-UOU JO [OAQ[ AU} JBY} O0USPIAY OS[e SI 219y "MSU je saanoalqo

WRISAS NVHAL 91 woyy s1opio oseyoind oruo1osp

poyury wo)sAs Ay Ind 0} s yons aIe S[ONUO0D JO WIDISAS Y] UL SISSIUNBIAN | JO SUISIBI O} IOAO S[ONUOD Je OO [[IM IIpne SIy], VAL -
JUAURINJ0IJ-H
INANHAND0Ud HLVIOdHOO ~ SHOUNOSHY HLVIOdd0D
"AI9A009] I9)SBSIP 29 AJLINJAS “SS9008 J| e
pue ‘sainpadoid pue so1oIog e
{SJUOWISSASSE Sjjoudy e
SOOUBMO[[E PIOA e
spunjoy e
‘103po[ [RI0UAS )IM UOTBI[IOUCIYY e
{S0JRI UOI}I9[[00 JO SULIOJIUOJN e
JJOANIMN e
{uornor AI10A00011G9(J  ®
{sjunoodoe asuadsng e
‘s1okedxe; worg s)droosy e
Suig e
‘suonedrjdde uononpar 29 JUNOJSI(] e
a8
UOTJBN[BA PUE 112D USOM](Q UOTIBI[IOUOJDY e
juowAed Jo SPOYIOIN e
{2IMONI)S [BUONBSIURSI() o
:seare SUIMO[[0F oY) SULIDA0D S[O1UO0D JUBDIJIUSIS
pue Aoy yloq Jo 3Junsd) pue  ‘UOIBIUSWNIOP
"800 Atenue[ Ul JUSWASBURL O} PONSSI 9 | SUIPN[OUl PUB  ‘SUOIBPUOTIIOIAI JIpne  snoradxd
[[1a 11odar yeip e pue paja[dwoo usaq sey jpne oy} 10J j1ompai | jo dn-moqjoj Surpnjour 9ipne wojsks [oa9] YSIH XE.[ [uno))
"AJOA0I3I IQ)SBSIP 29 AJLINDAS ‘SSA00B J] o
pue {103po] oy} Jo armonns e
{UOIIRI[IOU0IAI JUNOJO. [ONUO)) e
{108paT 2y} 0} Indul pue WOISAS JOpPd,] e
:paonpold s310dal 29 UOBULIOJUL JUSWOSBURIN e
uUBINSSY sguipury Loy/smels , adoog _ B JIpNY
V XION3ddV

80/2002 L4043 1INV ATIILAVNO - LIANY TVYNAIILNI 3LLI0T3A




Page 31

p1 98ed 80/L007 10day ¢ 101end) — Upny [ewraiu] A9ZuLie Jo ySnolog uopuo]

UOIEa1)) 90I0AU] Y} USAMIOQ UOLRI[IOUOIDI JO YOB[ B SI QIOUL e

pue sayig
031ey00y] [RUINO[ S} ISUIETE POYIYD JOU AIB VS 0} S3unsod e

"3
UONBOI)) IJI0AU] pUB SO[I{ 93IeYI9Y [BUINOf JO SUINIOYD pue
Surssoooid oy Surpredar aoe[d ur sammpaooid Jo Yor[ v IR QIO e

‘pousSIs J0u SeM AVELL UM JUSWOAIT Y [0A0T 90IAIOS AU e

:apnjout
PUNOJ 9I9M SOSSOUNEOA OIOUM SBAOIE OYT "SI 18 S9A103[q0 wo)sAs
o1 Jo owos jnd YOIYM SOSSOUNBOM OIB QIOU} UISISAS o) UIYIIAN

‘NVHL
Aq o pomed Juraq sem uoneuwojul 1orddns Jo UOEPIEA e

pue ‘paonpoid arom syrodar
oIn[Iej Q0BJISIUI pue 9jep-0)-dn sem FO[ o0BJIOWUI JVS OYL e

‘pojordwod arom
SYOOUD VA Pue sadtoaur Arewuns 1oipddns oy 0} pajouodax
o1om pojdures syjuow 991y} Y} 10J SO[I] 931eYooy [BUINOf Y], e

:MO[0oq PISI] o1
yorym Jo awos ‘Sunerodo 2q 0} POAIISGO 3I9A S[OIIUOD JO JOquuUNU

"SUID)SAS O} UTYIIM S[OIIU0D JO Sunse) pue
uoreneAd oy} pajojdwos pue ‘soansefqo [onuod oy} aad1yoe 0} djoy
PInoM UIIUYm S[ONJUOD SUNSIXd PIYIIUIPI oAy "90e[d UI SWoISAS o)
ure}0ose 03 sastald YL POMSIA oM JIpne [euIdiul Ino jo yed sy

“ISLI 18 $9A1309[q0 [o1u00 oY) Jo swos nd Aew souerjdwod

"PaI[1q Sunowe Jo
SSOUQqBUOSEaI O} 2INSUD 0} SI[IJ [(dH Y} SAIepIjea
oIBMYOS UL  VIADIS ‘QIBMPOS JUSWISRUBIA
A310U09 S,JNVHL ol popeopdn ore pue solIs
[ouno) As3uwrey [ Aq uondumsuod ASiUd JO
S[1eIop urejuod so[y [ oYl 1q toded jeuonipen
& uey) Joyjel ‘o[ () 93ueyoIoiu] Ble(] dMUonddg
ue Aq WVHL 01 juos are swiddns oy jo yoeo
woy s[[Iq ASmuy (py1 Adusdy Sunipny AJiouy)
WVHL woy uonouny juswodeue]y ASoug ue jo
uorstaoid oy} 10 [10UNO)) Y} JO J[EYSq U0 10BIUOD
B OJUl PaIoue JuowaInoold ojerodio) umpim
weo ], juowadeurjy ASI0Uyg oY) 9007 1990100 UI

910N

"$03 18021 JO 3UISSA001d e
pue

‘{(uoreI[IOU0D2I SUIPN[OUL) JVS I J0BJIOJU] e

{SOOIOAUI JO JUOWAR] e

‘SOOIOAUI JO SUISSAI0IJ e

{SIOPIO JO SUISSA01] e
:Sea1e SUIMO[][OJ 2} IOA0D [[Im }IpNe SIY [,
{(sjooyos 03 No-081eYd
sopnpour ssad0id ‘pred pue possoocord ‘siorddns
Ann - woxy  A[[EOTUOIO0[O  POAIOOAI  SOOIOAUI
- wolsAs  uonensiurwpe  pue  Jurq A3iouy)

JJUBINSSY

ssuIpulj Ady/smels

_

adoog

|

BaIR JIpNY

V XION3ddV 80/.00C LHOd3Y 11ANV ATIILHVND - L1ANV TVNAJILNI 311107130




Page 32

G1938eq 80/L00¢ 1oday ¢ 11end) — NIpny [euIaU] A93uULiel] Jo YSnolog uopuo]

‘Ajuojoejsiies Sunerodo 9q 01 paAIdsqo 210m S[ONUOD JO JOqUINU

‘{AIOAT[IP IIAISS JO SULIOJUOI o

“YSLI JB $9AN02[q0 WI9ISAS 3y} JO SWO0S ‘SjuowoIINbaI 901AI0S SUIYSI[qRISH e Surpiooy
[enueIsqns md yorym ‘sassouzeom oI 910U ], "WIDISAS punos AJ[esiseq e sI 1oy, :opnjout j1pne o) Aq paI2A0d 2q 0 $assao01d Koy JIUSUIISRUBIA]
’ dIseA
INANNOYHIANE NVEIN
‘SIUdWAg UL
KI9A0221 12]SeSIp / AJINUIUOD Ssouisng e
pue sompoodoxd dnyoeg e
‘renIpny e
‘saoeyIOIU] e
‘sjonuoo Furssoooxd pue jndino ‘nduy e
‘wo)sAs o) Jo uoneIn3yuoo
'8007 Arenue[ [¢ 0] PIpUIIXD AJLIND3S PUE S[OIIUOD SSAV0L [BOISOT e
u29q sey asuodsar juowaSeurwW 2y} I0] SUI[PEIP o) uotraSeurw {0INJONI)S SSO00B OS]
Jo jsonbar oyl IV L0007 Ioquede@ f Uo juoweSeurw o) :59A1309[q0 [01UOD puE SBAIE (ZIHMdAD)
pansst sem odar Jeip e pue pajo[dwod usaq Sey JI0MpP[ay 1PNy |  SUIMO[[O] oY) JOA0D 0} USBLIOpUN SEA SI0OM 1PNy JUWIDIOJUH
[BIUIWIUOIIAUY
SLIANYV LI - SAOYN0SHY HLVHOdH0)
-o1qissod se uoos se sonaed yjoq Aq pousis
2q poys NVHL pue [ouno)) AoSullel Usomioq VIS oYL e
'SMO[[OJ SE SI UOT)BPUAWIW0021 | AJLIOLIJ OU ],
"BaIE O} Ul sjonuod saoxdur djoy
[[1M YOTym SUOTBPUSWILO0IAI 7 AJLIOLIJ SUIU PUB UOHBPUSUIIOIOT
[ A0l OUO PosIBI 9ABY oM JHIOM 1IpnNe InO JO }[NSdI B SY
"pagreyodal
9q 0] S)UN JeUI9IXS PUB S[OOYIS JO IdQUWINU OY) pue So[ij
ueInssy suipury L3y/smyels M adodg | BOJR JIpNY
V XIaN3ddV 80/.002 1Y0d3Y LIANV ATIILAVNO - LIANV TVYNY3LNI 3111073a




Page 33

91 98e(g 80/L007 Hoday ¢ 1o1end) — 1pny [euiu] LoSuLiel Jo y3noiog uopuo|

pue ‘owoyds SuI[oA0al B AQ POAIOS oI
sonadod Ao3urrey 10J SOWOH 000‘ST JO 0009 ATuo juesard 1y e

qouno)) oY) AQ paynRId u22q 19K 10U 9ABY
L00T ACIN pUB UOIB]A US0M]O( SOOIOAUI PIO0dY AoSULIRH oy e

{00T0AUL J9JR] B WO POJoNpap junowre oy
SI p1020y A23uLey Aq pa2ide SI SIY} uoym A[UO ‘pue [IOUN0))
oy Aq pred s1 junowre pandsip oyl pr] ploody AeSuuey
Aq papTuIqns 99T0AUI AJJJUOW JY) UO PIsIeI SI andsip e o10YA, e

;IR
pUNOJ 9I0M SISSIUNBOM 2IOUM SBOIR O} JO SUWIOS “YSUI I8 SOA103[q0
wasAs o) nd yomym SISSOUNBOM QI8 Q10U ‘WSISAS oY) UIYIIAN

"y3noiog 91} JO SJUIPISAI 0] SAWAYOS
3urjoAo901 192135-U0 pue dojsioop Jo ofueI B SISJJO [IOUNO)) AU e

pue {LIOJA Aq A[[enuue JJeyaq s, [Iouno))
oyl uo popdwioo o1 uUONORJSIES ISWOISNO JO SAOAING e

‘pajuI pI02dy A9SULIRH PUB 90IAIS JUSWOTeURIA
9JSBA\ S JIOUNOD) OU) USIMIDq POy oJe s3unoowr A[JIUOIA e

‘sowayos
SurpoAoor pue JFumuea[d 100XS UONOSI[0O asnjol Jo Ajenb

9y} U0 S)oayd A[rep 210]dwod S1901J() SULIOIIUOJA] JORIIUO]) & ‘SOIARS SUIOKOY @

it 23D AJlep 2)9] JJO SULIOHUOIA }0BIUOT) SY], e PUE ‘661 JAS Ya oouedumor) e

{Pa1oNpu0d aIe JUIUBI[D J0OIIS PUE UOIIOS[[0D Mmzoﬁmcm\, WE[UOD e

osnjoI [[e Uyomym Aq Aouonboy oY) soUIULIOp pue ySnoiog ﬁ syuawked penuo) e

oy} UMM SPBOI SOUIJUAPI JOBNUOD JUOWIASBUB]A 9ISBAN OU] e -SI0M JO UONIEOYLIDA @

{UONoeJSIES IOWOISN))

L : MO[9q PIISI[ 2B YIIYM JO SUWIOS ‘sunoow pue syiodor sso1501] e
JdueInNssy suipuy Ay/Smels ~ adoog * BAIR JIpNY

V XION3ddV 80/L00C LAOd3Y 11NV ATIILHVND - 1L1dNV TVNY3LNI 31L11073d




L1 98ed 80/L00¢ 10day ¢ Iayend) — Jipny [euraiu] AoSuLiey Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

Page 34

"Pa101sal
9q ued Sy} Jery os eep Iyl dn Supoeq 0} pi0doy AoSuleH
Aq UoAI3 9¢ OS[B P[NOYS UOIBIIPISUO) 'USQIIS ()] UB UO
somg3y sAe[dsip yorym ‘waisAs suoydalo) eAeAy oy} JO aInjie]

JO JUDAD 2y} Ul AJ[BNUBLU PIPIOOAI BIRP JO PI0O0I AIBJUOWINOOP
B SUIR}ol p1090y A0SULRH JBY} 9INSUS PINOYS JUSUWISSRUBIN e

pue ‘syroda soueuroyod
Jo uononpoid oyl YIIm 1SISSB 0] PI0JOY AQSULIBH 1B W9)SAS
osuAeIA 2y} uo popeojdn oq p[noOYs UOHBULIOJUI P[OYISNOF, e

:SMO[[O] SB 2J8 PAsIel-01 SUONEPUSUIIOddL | AJLIOLJ oY,

"SUOTEPUSTLIUOIAI | AJLIOLIJ om] Surpnjour
‘SUOT)BPUSIUTIOIAT PISTRI-A1 dALJ U Surj[nsal ‘pajuowo[dil ueaq jou
aAey anoj pue pajuswa]dur Ajued ussq sey suo ‘pajuswerduur ATy
U92( 9ARY SUIU jey) punoj am pue jodol Jjpne [ewIOUl (/9007
A1) Ul PasIel SUOHBPUSWITIOIAL ] oY} dn Pamo[[o] OS[e 9ABY 9

“uonjejuowO[duIl 10§ SUOIoR
oreridordde suruialap pue ‘sojeiss Jursnoy AoSuLiel 0 SOWO]
01 surq SuroAdar pue ur[dAda1 dojsioop jo uoronponuUI A}
10y owayos jo[id 9y} JO SINSII oY) MOIASI P[NOYS [IOUNO)) OYJ, e

:SMOI]OJ S ST UONEPUSITI0091 | AJLIOLIJ oY ],

"BOJR O} UI S]O1)U0d dA0I1duul
djoy |[IM YoIym SUONBPUSWIIOAL 7 AJIONJ QUIU pue | AILIOLL]
QUO PAsIel JARY 9Mm BAIR SIU} Ul MJOM }IpNE INO JO NSl ¢ Sy

'suig IodedsmoN pue syueq SuLg
[ENPIAIPUL WOLJ PA)IS[[0D JUNOLUR S} MOYS A1} Op IOU ‘saInSiy
s d8oA snorasid o) i paredurod jou st suy) g ‘paonpoid
9Ie PIO[OAdAI pUB POJOS[[00 S[BLIBIEW JO SONSHEIS A[JIUON e

dueINssy s3uipuyy Loy/snjels | adoog | BIIR JIpNY

V XIAN3ddV 80/.L00C LAOd3d LIANV ATIILYVND - LIdNV TVYNY3LNI 31110713a




Page 35

Q1 98ed 80/L00T Hoday ¢ 1auend) — 1pny [euisiu] AsSuLiel Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

"A1eniqgaj ¢ £q anp s1 osuodsax

"s[oxu00 a1y} Jo uoneordde ay; 0}
SB 90UOPIAD UTeS 0] 23S [[IM om ‘Surisa) 10 o[qe)ms
3uraq se passasse a1k Jel]} soss9001d [onU0o 9y} 10,]

"JUAUDTRURW AQ 9PBW SJUSWUSSOSSE
pue PayIIuapI S[ONUOD JO SUIPUR)SIIPUN INO JOYD
0] JUSWIDSRURW YIIM XLIJBUW O} UO SJUSUISSISSE Ol
SSNOSIP 1M 9M . ssa1So1d ur 1om,, 10 S9sS9001d
paysi[qe}so are Aot} 1oyjoym o[duwexs 10j ‘S[OIU0D
POIUSPI 2Y) JO SNIEBIS JUSLND Y} JO 9Fpajmouy
Ino jo junoodoe ayej [[im 3] -oonodead ur poarjdde

aIe $9s889001d [011U0D JRY) IOUSPIAS UIeS 03 10)siSor | Sunsa], 1938130y
JuouIdSRURW AU ], 'R00T ATeNUE( G| UO juowoFeurl 0} panssi JYSU SOOIAIOG UOUEAIRY oY) UO S[ONU0D A9 | SR — SIOIAIOS
sea Hodar JeIp € pue pajo[dwiod Usdq sey IOMP[aY JpNe AL Jo opdures © o Sunso) 199IIp UO Paseq q [[IM ST, T ELERREN
SHOIAYIS ALINNINWINOD ® #0110 ‘L'11aV
'S JJO QILIM o
pue [owWodUI J0J SUPUNOIIY »
{OUI0JUT JOA0DDI 0] UOIIOR JO UOIB[BISH »
1qop Surpuejsino jo dn mo[[0,] «
TUOTJO9[[0D SUIOJU] »
{SOO0U JIOPUIWAI JO 0SS o
‘onp 2wWodUI JO UOTIBOYIIUIP] »
'SO[OIYaA PoI0)SI3aIun I0J $1930N JO SUINSST «
‘S, NDd JOo 3uInssy « JUIWADIOJU
"800 Alenue( Ul JUSUOTBUBUL O} PONSSI ‘soinpaoo1d pue soIoI[0d . surpnpour
9q [1m 110dar JJeip e pue pajojduiod uooq sey NIOMPIOLJ JIpne oY [, :popnoul 9q 03 $3ss9901d Aoy ‘Sunpaed
dUBINSSY ssuipuly Aady/smels ~ adoog | BAIE JIPNY

V XION3ddV 80/L007 LHOd3Y 11NV ATIILHVND - L1aNV TVNY3LNI 3L11073d




Page 36

61 95ed

80/L00T Hoday ¢ 1011en() — 1PNy [BUIdU] A93ULIE JO ySnolog uopuo|

pauyop AJJEa[d 10U 2Iom UONJE dn-mo[[o] 10J sanI[iqisuodsoy

‘swnjel Aj1o1enb pue 108pnqg pokejop
10 j001100Ul 10] uonoe dn-mojjoy Sulrejop sprooar aje[duroouy

‘uowoSeURUL JOTUAS Aq
8/L00¢ 1oy suonedo[[e 393pnq [0oyoss jo [eaordde [ewwrof Jo yoe|

:apnjout
PUNOJ 0I0A SOSSOUNEOM 0IOYM SBAIE JYJ, MSUI JB SOA100[qO weIsAs
oy} jo owos nd YOIYm SOSSOUNBOM OIB 0IOU} WIISAS oY) UIYIIAN

"puUNOI UOT}EOO[[E.
Surpuny 8/,007 2y} 0} Jourd poynsuod Sem WNIO S[OOYDS YT,

pue ‘s3a8pnq [00YOS [ENPIATPUL
oy} 03 jooyspealds e[NULIO oY) WOI] PILIJSURI} A[}09II00 SIoM
suorneoo[[e Surpunjy ayj} Jey) 2InNSuS 0} JNO PILLIED 0IoM SO

¢8/,00¢ 10J B[N0} JuIpunj oy} UI pasn pue
DSV1d 12221 }SOW 9y} WO paule}qo sem ejep Joqunu frdng

‘e[nuLIoy
Surpury oy} Suisn poje[noEd d1om  sZpng [00Yds 8/.00T

:MO[2q PAISI] TB YIIYM JO JWOS
‘Aruroyoeysnes sunerodo 2 01 PAAIISqO dI9m S[ONUOD JO Ioquunu Y

"‘uonensuo)) .
pue SUOTIBINO[BD JO UONRIIJLIOA
s]00Y08

Aq parjddns uonewrojur Jo SULIOJUON  » Surpuny
“YSLI Je $9A102[q0 WISAS Y} JO QWOoS ‘sanpaosord SHJ( jo uoneorddy . Irey /suipuny
[enuEIsqns nd gorym ‘sossoudeom oIe QIO ], "WO)SAS punos AJ[eoiseq e s a1y, :9pn[oul JIpne oY) Aq PaIdA0D 9q 0} S9sseo01d Aoy B[nULIO
HOIAYIS SH'IdOHd DNNOA ® NHIA'IIHD
duUBINSSY u sSurpuiy Aoy/smels adoog | vaIe JIpny
V XION3ddV 80/.002 1d0d3d LIANV ATIILHVNO - LIdNV TVYNY3ALNI 3111073d




Page 37

0T 98ed

80/L00¢ Hoday ¢ 1011en) — ypny [y A33uLiel] Jo ygnoiog uopuo

01 padojaasp suejd uonoe Yim ‘pojnuIw pue proy aIe sSureow
Sunojuowr 10enuod A[193enb pue sunosw [euoneiodo Ao, e

‘poaoidde pue pojuowINOOp QI8 SUOTIBLIEA JOBIJUO)) e

‘sAeH
pue [ouno)) A3uLiel Usomioq aoe[d ur st 10eRU0d Poulis Y e

:M0[0q POJSI] oI [YOIYA JO SUIOS
‘Ajuojoeysnes Sunerodo 9q 0] PaAIOSqo d1om S[ONUOD JO JoquINU Y

‘o)epIpued Jo 3unsif-1oYys e

{S910U0F R JUSUNINIOAT

YJIM UOSIBI] PUB SJUSTIOSILIDAPE JO JUOWAOR]J
‘uoresuoyIne pue uonisinbay

‘uoneoyroads ssaooxd pue qor

‘sjuowaImbal 9[01 puR PaoU JO UOIBIIIUSP]
‘ooeJIAMUL JVS

‘sAeH 0] sjudIARg

‘SuLiojuow 1oB1UO))

TUOIRULIOJUT JUSWSSRURIA

® o & o ¢ ¢ o o

ANWI)D)
‘uonodwoo [enoeNUO) e 30.IN0SO
"SLI 1B $9A102[q0 woIsAS 1) JO QWOoS '$9A1199[q0 [013U0D PUR SBAIR Lresodua ]
[enueIsqng md yorym SossoU[Bom SIB JI9Y ], ‘WAISAS pUnos A[[eoIseq € SI 919U ] | SuIMmO[[0] oY} IOA0D 0} USYLJIOpUN SeM JIOM 11PNy foSunieg
INTIWdOTIAAA TYNOILLVSINVOYO » A 1d0dd — FALLADIXE JATHD
"JeoA
[eroueuly yoes I0J s1a8pnq [ooyss [[e aaoidde A[[ewioy pnoys
(oueur] 901AIDS S UGIP[IYD) JO PeoH) JUSwRSeurw IOMUSS e
‘SMO[[O] SB ST uonepuawodal | Ajuond oy,
“BoIR
oY) ut sjonuod aaoxduwr djoy [[im yoiym SUOHEPUSTIIO0IaI T AJLIOLL]
9011} pue | AJLIOLIJ SUO PAsiel 9ABY dM JOM JIPNE INO JO }NSAI B Sy
"2Inpaood
uonedO[[e SuIpunj [00yds oy} JULIDA0D SO)0U 2Inpaooid Jo Jor] e
pue ‘opew SUOHR[NI[ed JO A0BIN0oE Y} 2INSUd 0}
BINULIOJ S} UO JNO paLued syooyo poddns 0] a0USPIAS JO OB e
‘uaye) uorjoe dn-moj[oJ 1940 Ajurelrdoun ur Sunnsal
JdueInssy sSurpuyy Loy/smels adoog BIIRG JIpNY
V XION3ddV 80/L002 LYOdIY 1IANV ATIILAEVND - 11ANV TVNY3LNI 3111073d




Page 38

17 98ed 80/L007 voday ¢ 101end) — Upny [ewIdiu] Ad3utiel Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

pUB WRISAS V'S S,[I0UN0)) Y} USIM]IO( 2IBJIDIUL OIUOIIR[ UY e
:SMO[[O] SE SI UOTJRPUSWILIO2 | AJLIOLL] oY,

"BoIe U} Ul S[oNU0d dAao1duir

diay 1M yoIyMm SUONRPUIWIWIOIAI ¢ AJLIOL OM] pue 7 AjLIoug

Inoj ‘1 AJLIOLIJ SUO PIsTel JABY oM MIOAM }IPNE INO JO }NSal € Sy

"Aa11od [1oUNO)) YIIM SUI] Ul pesLIoyjne
jou orm JuowAholdwo jeys Amiodwd) 0] SUOISUAIXS [[V e

pue ‘AouedeA gof oy) pasuoyine pey
[eNPIAIPUIL 100LI00UT O} 0I9UM PIYTJUSPL 30UBISUI SUO SBM 10U, e

Jge1s Arerodwa) Jo uonooyes pue
SurmarAIayur o) 03 PIeSal YPIm Ao1[od OpPIM-[IOUNO)) OU ST JISY], e

‘so3reyo
Jyeis Arerodwo) 10j sod10Aul JsureSe S}ooysowil} pue SIOPIO

Jo Sumyojetn 21001099 2y} I1of ooe[d ur ssaooxd ou SI QIAY] e

:9pNJOUl PUNOJ I9M SISSIUNBIM QIOUM SBITR O, “YSLI I8 S9AT)03[q0
wasAs oYy nd yormym Sossoueom oIe QIoU) WIISAS oY} UIYIIA

‘[ouuosIag Jo
peay oy} Aq UOp SI S3UL{00Q-21 PUB SUOISUSIXO JO SULIOJIUOJN e

pue ‘JuowAordwd jye)s SUIPULIXd 0} PIBTAI YIIM
sompasoid sapnjour jjeis Arerodway Jo asn ayj uo Aorjod oyl e

‘Aorjod [1oUno)) YIm QUI| UL OPBW JI8 “90IN0sal
Arerodwo} SULIOPIO USYM  ‘QINSO[ISIP ) 0] SIsonboy e

‘oourwoyIad 100d ssaippe

"SUOISUI)XD PUB S[RMIUIY
pue S}0910 gD
‘ojepipued jo yuounuioddy e
S9)ePIpPURD JO UOIIIJ[2S e
‘SUIMOIAIOI] e

Jaue.INSSy

sgurpuyy Aoy/smels

adoag

BaJE JIpnyY

V XIAN3ddV 80/,002 LYOd3Y 11NV ATIILIVND - L1ANV TVNY3LNI 3L110713d




Page 39

77 98eg 80/L00¢ 110day ¢ 1o1Ien() — Ipny [ewIdu] AoSuLiel Jo ySnolog uopuo|

0U2951221)S JO I01021(] JUBISISSY 2Y) 0} poplemlo] uaaq sey rodar ‘(Sururei], Surpn[our) saIpaoold pue SAIOIOJ e
[eulj oyJ ‘posHeuy u29q sey Jodor oy} puB PIAIIdOI USOQ MOU
sey osuodsor juswoSeuew dY ], "L007 10qo100 L] UO juowoSeurw :59A1)93(qO [ONUOD puUE SeAIR

0} panssi sem jiodor yeip e pue pojo[dwiod uoeaq sey ppne 9yl | SUIMO[[0] oY) JOA0D 0] USNBLOPUN SeM SHIOM JIpny Su)SAS ALDD

"OSI0I0X? 189) ¥ d
o] WO} UOoTjepUIIGIal OU PIsIel 9ABY M HI0M INO JO }NsSal e Sy

"1S9) 9} SULINp POA[OSAI PUE 9}IS UO P[IOU0IAI
sem sIyy, ‘unx Surdq dn yoeq oyi 01 Joud sprodoal ased pojepdn
OABY pInom yomm wojsAs juowAed ouoydore; pajewone oyl
Y3noIy) paAIodal sjudwAed 01 onp sem 90URIJIP oY} 1By} AJIUSPI 0) "3UI)S0) WOISAS JO MITIADY e
o[qe 21oM S\ 'Pred se padIew oIom [OIYM SPIOOAI ¢ JO OOUSIOLJIP
e sem 010y} ‘uoissorord jo so3eis SnoweA jB WOISAS oY} UL
$9SBD JO JoquInu U} S[1eIp YoIrym ‘prodor ouo Jo 9sed oy} uJ ‘woIsAs
KoSULIBH 9AI[ 9Y) WO UoME) SPIOJO2I Y} 0) (ojewl JOBXd UB dIom {0STOIOX?
suodar oy} Jo X1§ "sp10oa1 Jipne jo ojdwes € pue weisks AsSurey O} UI PIAJOAUL JJe)s A3y UIIM UOISSNOSI(] o
oy} woly suodal UsAds pojoalas om ssaoold Funsey oy jo ued sy

pue ‘2s1010x2 Jurso}
oy} 10y weysuruurg YN 18 0UBpUY o

{S0A1102[q0 A10A0001 O} JO UOTIEOYTIUSP] e

1591 AI9A00Y :K3o[opoyjowr
1ysesiq o) 03 soud Aep oyl U0 J[Ing SeAM ISAISS AU pur YN £q Surmorpog ayy Suisn siy) pajo[dwios ap
1891 A19A009 191SBSI(] Y} JB 2JB}S [[1] B O] PAIOISL Sem WDISAS O], "981010Xa A19A0001 a1} uo uoturdo juspuadapur
ue opraoid 01 pue s$sa001d A19A0021 d) yoeg oyp

‘uoneorjdde Sunjed | Ul JUSWOAJOAUL JIPNY [BUWISIU] 10 [ Woif jsanbax Smw@www“wwm

BOIALD) U1 JO AIDA0D91 9} PIAJOAUL 1$9) AI9A000Y I19isesi(] 9yl | & Suimojjoj podojoaop sem toeordde jipne oyf,

VIN J9)SESI(] BIIAL)
MAOM LSANOTH
‘Jye1s
Areioduio} J0J S9JI0AUI PUB $)OQYSOUWIN ‘SIOPIO JO UOHRI[IOU0ISI
oy} Jo ued se ooepd ur ind 2q pnoys wosAs moppom SAeH
durINSSY sSurpuiy Loy/smels adoog BAIR JIpNY

V XION3ddV 80/200Z LYOd3Y 11ANV ATHILAVNO - LIANY TYNAILNI ILLIOT3A




Page 40

€7 938

80/L007 Hoday ¢ 1o1en) —1pny [euu] LoSuLiel Jo y3nolog uopuo|

"panssi Suraq 0} Joud [eacidde 10j

JduRINSSY

"3urp100ay pue Suntodoy] Juspou] e

pue Juowogeuey ode] e
“WO0Y [0IIUO)) 0] SSA00Y

‘uonen3ay pue uole[SISoT e

sSuipuy Loy/snyels

adoog

gaae jipny

V XION3ddV

80/L00C LAOd3Y 11ANV ATIILEVNO - LIANV TVYNYALNI 31110713a




Page 41

7 98ed 80/L007 1oday ¢ 1drrend) — upny [ewrdju] LoSuLIey jo ySnoiog UOpuo|

"9INIWIWO)) JIPNY 1X3U 3t} 0} papiaoid oq [[im sjuswaimbar SISIAL oy jsureSe soueuioptad s[ooyos Jo Arewwns [[0)

19w uraq
ST pIepue)S SY] IoY}oym SSISSe 0} YOIBA pue AIRnIqa, Ul S[ooyds asay) je 1sia dn-mojjo] € Suruuerd a1e ap “o[qissod se uoos se pajuswojdur
oIe SUOLBPUSWIUIONSI A9Y Iy} JINSUS O} PIBPURIS Y} JOUWI 10K JOU OABY JBY) S[OOUOS AJBUWIlL] PUB AIEPUOJAS JUBASDI )M SUISIEI] oI 9p\

‘pIepue)s
3} 9ASIYOE AU} 1Y) SINSUS PINOM O IDUSPIAS parmbai oy} opraoid 03 S[ooyds o[qeus o} pamojje Suteq SI own Joyuny ‘doueping SIS
I 90UBPIOOOR UI YSnoy)[e ‘PIepue)s oY) SUNOOW JOU SB PISSISSE U9( IABY S[OOYDS UMY "PIEPUR)S oY) SUNSOW SB PISSISSE U0d( OARY
S[OOYDS INOJ pue PIISIA U9aq Apealfe 9ARY S[OOYDS /] 95ay} JO (%11) S[OOYDS /7 SIOA0D §(/L00T Ul S[OOYIS AIBUILLJ O] S}ISIA JO S[nPayos InQ)

'010T YOTEIA ISTE oY} £q S[OOUIS JO %07 @
PUE £600T YOIBIA IS [ € 9U} £q S[0OYS JO %01 e
‘8007 UPIBINL 1STE U3 Aq S[O0US JO %0p o

‘SMOTJOJ SB SIBOA 901Y] O1f) IOAO PISSASSE o [[IM S[OOYDS 9sayj} Jey) pauue[d ST 1 SIY} 9ASIYOR O, "010T
YOIBIN 1€ Aq pIepue)s Sy} Jo sjudwoLnbal oY) 109w A3y IOYIOYM 0] SB Passasse oq 0} I S[ooyoS [eroadg pue Jomun( ‘sjueju] ‘Arewid [[V

'LO0T UITBIN 1€ U1 Aq prepue)s
oY) 2ASIYOE S[00YDS AIepuodds [[e 1.yl (SHJA) SIS pue uoneonps 1oj justmredo( oY) Jo juowolmbal e sI )] paAdIyore Sursq st (SIS
S[O0YOS Ul pIepuelS JUSTUSSRURIA [RIOURUL] S} JB) 90URINSSE YIM juawoSeuews opiaoid 0} £(/9007 Ul POIISIA SI0M S[OOUDS AIBPU0AS [[V

"(SISIALY) s[ooyds
Ul pIepue}S JUSWSSRURIA [BIOURUL] ) JO sjuswanmbar oy) yim oouerjdurod Sum{oayo uo pasnooy sey §0/L007 PU L0/900T SuLmp jom IO

(SISTAA) [00Y9S Ul pIepue)S JUIWATLUBIA [IoUBUL]
S}IPNY S[00YDS

V XION3ddV 80/.002 14043 1LIANV ATIILEVND - LIANV TVYNY3LNI 3111073d




gz 98eg 80/L00¢ 10day ¢ 18uend) — npny [ewoiu] LoSuLiel jo ySnoiog uopuo
S ! 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 3 £ | ! [JUOWUONIAUH-A}0JeS pue yieal
[4 4 0 8 0 3 S 14! 0 L L pajiuly JUSWIASEURIA] 9IS
JUIWUOATAU
JaSeueur 10BIUO))
wes ], 10}03S 9JBALI]
Jo juounurodde jo
Surwy vo juepuado(] L 0 0 € I 4 0 0l 1 ¢ 9 payrwry QWYY SUISBYT UONEBID0SSY SUISNO]
ré 'y 1 I 0 I 0 L 0 S 7 | 1enuesqng siredoy Suisnoy Arerodwa],
(SHDIH) se91a10§ Juowdmby
€ S z v | 0| ¢ 4 vI | 1 | 6 | v poywIy Ayrunuo)) payerdau] AeFurrey
SIDIAIIS [B100S
0 0 0 [4 1 1 0 (4 1 1 0 [BOuEISqnS XB ] [IOUnoy
0 9 0 S | 1| ¥ 0O | IT | T |60 pajIIy sasuadxq 2 [[0iked
! 0 0 [4 1 ! 0 £ [4 ! 0 | Ienueisqng Jonuo)) Arejpdpng 29 A 0I891enS
N 0 I 0 ré 0 7 0 € 0 ¢ 0 | renueisqng JUOWOFRURIA AINSBAL],
“_” 0 ! 14 ! ¢ 0 S 1 14 0 | renueisqng SI0PaID)
W 0 ! 0 14 0 4 0 S 0 S 0 | Tenueisqng 3undeday yse)
I 4 0 1 0 ! 0 9 0 S ! [enueIsqngy 81019
dueuly
t ! 1 I 0 1 0 9 0 9 0 | Ienueisqng sonifenby
a3uarey)) Juspuadopuy Sunrodoy
0 0 € v |0 14 0 L 0 | 9 | 1 | Ienueisqng |jonuo)) 195png 2 je3png swureIsold
% 1 0 I 0 1 0 9 I ¥ 1 fenueisqng | jusweSeur Ay JUOWNOO(] PUE JOBIUO))
*SIANNIIXY JOIY)D
syuomuio)  |ssaadoaq uyf *dwpioN | V/N [I810L] € | € I JeoL) € | 2 |1
pajudwdrdu] L103318)
[9A9]
SUONEPUIWTI0INY ueinssy vVAYV LIdav

V XIAN3ddV

L0/9007 dn moffoq

80/.002 1d0Od3d LIANV ATHILYVNO - LIdNV TVYNY3LNI 3111073a




97 28ed

80/L007 10day ¢ 191ien) — 1PNy [ewaiu] A93uLel Jo ySnolog uopuo|

SUOTIEPUSLITHOI1 JO uonejuatujdul paiie)s oAty s1oonjo — pajoudwrduar Appaed

“U9YB] U239 10U SBY UONIE QATJEUI)]E ‘PIsSSeIPPE USaq J0U Sy UOIRPUSIUTLO3I 31} ~ pajudwdfdur joN

"YSLI 9} SSaIPPE 0 UaYe) Uaaq Sey UONOR dALIRIIN[E 10 TalsAs oy} ut saSueyd o} anp ayqeorjdde 108uo] ou ST HOREPUSUIUOII 3T — V/N

"$95U0dsal Jo S[dWes © POIJLIOA JARY DA, "SUOTIEPUIUNIOI2]I JO ssarfoxd oy; uonesynIed-J[os YSnoiy) pajedipul sey SI901jo ~ pajuswrapdury

(4 0 0 6 0 14 S 11 0 S 9 V/N SINIUNWITIOT) 10} [Ba(] MIN
Ja0Mm 3sanboy
€
D 0 [4 0 4 0 [4 0 14 1 € 0 | [ehueisqug oges) [rewy
S sppny 14
JuowRgeuRIA 100f01d
! 0 1 [4 0 [4 0 L4 1 € 0 | lenueisqng — oImn,f 9} I0J S[0OYS SuIp[ing
I 0 1 [4 0 C 0 L4 1 € 0 | Tenueisqng $[00Y0g JO SULIOJTUOJA [RIOUBUL]
! 4 [4 1 0 ! 0 8 [4 4 ¢ | lenueisqng s1eo X AJIef :11e)g aIng
SIIAIIS S, WAIP[IYD
[4 0 0 ¢ 0 3 0 S 0 14 ! [enueIsqungs JUSTIOOIOJUH PUE [0XU0)) Sulyied
SOOIAIOS
sjuowwo;) ssaadoad up| 'durpjoN | V/N |1810L| € 4 I j1®oL| ¢ 4 !
pajuwfduy A108918)
[9A97]
SUOIIEPUIUII0INY dueINsSsy vidyVv L1y

V XIAN3ddV

80/.002 LHOd3Y 1INV ATIILYVND - 1IANV TVNY3LINI 3111073a




17 98egq

80/L00T 10oday ¢ 101rend) — pny [euwIou] A3SuLIey jo ygnolog uopuo|

‘108eURM
oy} 0) 9SOy} SpuULS puE
wiIoy o) o} s3draoar ay
soyoene ookoldwo oyy -

‘o 11 syunid
pue ULIO] OUIUO ue
sojordwod sokordws oy, -

(Jo41U07) D L2IDUDIY)
mLg. o ugop

112uN0)
Aa3urapr 1o soy. -
(123punpy 1oddng v g)
pag oLy
Aqreusuo

s Jo uoneuofdun
o3 1oy uefd e Sumernuiioj ur
ISISS® []IM Jel} WOIJ SOUI0OINO
oy, -Surofuc Apuermd sI
18Y} MOTAQY SSO00I1J SsouIsng
oYl Wl popnpur aq o} st
ssaooxd ojoym ofJ 'oq pnom
ssa001d U} JeUM UO OpBUI Sem

:2q p[nom mofj sseooxd (pereoIpUy UOISIO9p (B0 ou jnq [[oiked TUS)SAS
ayj swrepd oy} ofeuswr 190130 oqisuodsay] 10N oy ySnomp pred oq pnoys | [joiked oy ySnoxyp passecord og
01 [[oiked 10} padojoasp Aysnoraaid) pouswayduuy sosuadxg ey 10ofoid JvS | pinoys syuswhed wieo asusdxo sasuadxy
Suraq st sseooid auruo uy A 60/300T 1ON 90/¢/1€ | 9 Jo ied se posiSe sem 3 | [[B JEYl POPUSWUOIDI ST ] [oadeq 7
“Papasu joU I8 9SG} 2IOYM
pue pasn 2q PINOYs SIOpIo
oseyond  oroym  saoumsUl
Amuaprt 0} poonpoid
ore syrodoy ‘permbal
se  ‘poroyiuowr Jureq aIe -oouerjdwod
s1op1o aseyomd Jo asn oy pue FuLiojuow Yjoq asoxdun
< [[IA 9seqejep I9)SBUI IOpUSA
< ‘s1opi1o oy jo digsroumo pauueid o
Q| poseq 199foxd 107 TMS - (1001 BunLodas 41g s pardnoo sy, Jusuniedap
w pUB {PIAJOAUL a3 fo uoyviuawadus Aq waysAs oY) JO 9sn 1021100
0| o SUOHNQLIU0D ayj 3u1225.4940 oyl A[esop LA  SuLoONUOW
JuaIld a1oUM 10f a1qisuodsa. 4201ff0) aq [ Justuamooid eyerodio)
S9OIAIAS MNPV 10} ¢ - UIA\ ANy *STI)SAS Junsixs s
rounoy) 9y} syasn AQ POLFIUAP! SOLNOIIP ‘Juasaxd aq os]e p[noys
SSOIOR SIASN ()6 SWos Aq (123vuppy o) Jo Auwvwl sossaIppe eyl | pairmboijou aIe sIOpI() 9sEYOIN]
uoyepopun  Surseyomd S)Uno22y Jo juatdng) aopmdjul  Furiopro  poAoldwil | 919UM SQOUE)SUI 9yl SUMULIGUOD
Jo fuofewr oy 10] NYS - [PrIABD) AIBIA] ue - JN¥S no  Suaror | 151 uonduoxe  pIjuSWINOOp
:apnjout Apwanmd ore pue juswaimbar | v csjuetmaedop  AQ s1opIQ
pue  pauowwdwr Ay ;1021330 o[qIsuodsay ST} s souerdwod | oseyormngd Jo osn oyl pIodal
US3q MOU QABY SI[MPOW aao1dun 0} payiom | pue IOJUOWI pnoys A[esopo
Jwowomooid  dvS 94l N V/IN Suro3uQ 90/€0/1€ | sAry Juowomdold djerodio)) | yun  SJWSWIAR  [eRUY)D) Y] SI03IPA.L) *]
‘ pa.ainbau aulpesq aurpeaq
aepdn uondy JudwIdeuRy posiaay snjelg [euIdLio asuodsay juowadeuey UOEPUIWIUIOdNY BO.IV JIpny.
S0/$007 ‘Suonepuawwody | Aurond jo dn moroq
V XIdN3ddV 80/.002 LYOd3Y 11NV ATIILEVND - 11aNV TVNAY3ILNI 3111073d




Q7 9% 80/L00T Hoday ¢ 1ouen) — 1pny [ewu] KefuLiey jo y3nolog uopuo|

Page 45

01 PAIBOIUNIIIIOD 2q
0} 901ApE JunyeIp SI 2JIAIIS
[[oiked oy} ‘SmnuEdwW 9y} uf

‘seale
o se [om se ‘sasuadxo
I0A0O M pue  (901AIAS
JIos  juowdSeurly)  SSIN
/(@31a128  JjoS  2okordwry)
SSH pores st joafoad
YL "60/800T Ieak [eroueuyy
oy w pojorduron  oq
112 31 16y 3deoxs ‘papraoid
3Q UBO 9[BOSOWI} SANIULJOP
ou pue (1Seuepy 109lorg
— An9yD epuey 308IUOD 1)
1I Aq unx Juraq st 100foad
oyy, ‘Hes pue siofeuew
0] $$000® Iopoq opraoxd
[ qomgm  ‘wasks  gv's
Jyl o3 safueyo jo adeyoed
mau opoym e Jo jed oq
I1im ssaooid aurfuo pesodoid
oYy} Jey} pajeIs uoug, () WO

80°10°11 23epuy)

‘Aed 1xou 1ot y3noryp
20ho1dwa oy Aq poaAtodal
st quowdAed -~  wiep
oy ssoooxd Jorhed H -
pue ‘xoqjrewu [[oiked/
ogmwads B 0]  ulIo]
oy sprewo 1oSeuew oyl -
‘our[uo 1)) uo
oUOp UQaq Sey Sl 1Byl
suujuoo  1afeuewt oYl -
‘wrepo
9y} SolIIoA IaSeuew O], - "UOLIBPUSUIIIIOIO]

paambau auipea(q auipeaq
aepdy uonOY i uB iy pasiaay SnIBIs s asuodsoy Juaageus iy UOLIEPUIIUO0DFY BV JIpNY

V XIAN3ddV 80/.002 LJOd3d LIANV ATIILHVNO - LIANV TVYNY3ILNI 3L11073d




67 93eg

80/.007 1oday ¢ 1auend) — ypny [ewrdiu] LoSuLief] jo ySnolog uopuo|

Page 46

“PIaY $19SS® [[€ JO S[IB1ep
109[J01 01 Ssiseq 3uroguo
ue uo pajepdn oq [m smp
10y} POULIUOD SBY JIOLLIRL]
1SN ‘padojoaap ua9q
Sy JUSYSI[qe}Sa ) I8 pley
S}asse JO ISI[ AIOJUaAUI UV

A23puppy

1S 124 21 YIm
SOM L10da.4 213 wioLf
Annqisuodsad jpurdiio)

(WLOF] S, UDAP[IYD) Y40
AoBULIDY — 423DUDY)
BoLLIBH [ION

:Aniqisuodsay

N

VIN

pajuswapduay

UOAID)
QUON

Jusuwdeuew
[}M UOISSNOSIP UI [[IIS 918 9 A\

‘AIOJIQAUT U0 FUIPIOOAT

pue sjesse Jo SunjIew A11InooSe
pue ‘sjesodsip

10J SUOSBAI JO BUIPIOOIY @

‘8J0sse JO [esodsIp Jo SpoyIoN e
‘sesodsip

Smaoxdde 107 oyIny e
£[o9Y0 [enuuUE UL JO

uonerdwos 10y Aypiqisuodsaye
‘KiojuAut oy Jo

aourud)uIewW 10] AIIqisucdsaye
‘parmboe
aep pue 1arpddns 9s00
‘uonjedso] ‘Anuenb ‘roquuinu
[e11as ‘uondLosap ‘pap1ooal

9q 0] 12SSE [oro JO [1E13(J@
{AIOJUOAUI UO §)a8SE

JO uoisn[our 10] AJI[eLIoJE]A @

:A101U9AUL 91} SUTUIRIUTEI
pue Suno(dwos ueym Surmol[oy
9Y) ISPISUOD PINOYS 901AISS O]

‘19151391
josse 21ep 01 dn ue urelUTEW pue
JUSUIYSI[qeIS? oy} I8 P[oy siosse
[[e Jo Azojuaaur oarsuayaidurod
e 019[dwos pnoys 2o1AIes Y],

QWO
S IPIYD)
Ared
AdBurie °¢

"SIOPIO
astel 0] posn ST TOISAS
jwowemdol VS oy
Jey} 2INSuS 0} pue yseo Aned
ydnomp  swiepo  osuadxs
donpail o} op prhoys A3
1eUM U0 Jeym uo sriafeuswa

aepdn

paamnbai
UoNIV JUUIASRUBLy

aulpeaq
PAsIASY

smeg

uipeaq
[euIslIQ

asuodsayy Jusuaseuey

UONEPUIIIOINY

By JIpny

V XION3ddV

80/.002 LJOd3d L1ANV ATIILIVNO - 11ANV TVYNYILNI 31110730




o€ 98eg 80/L00¢ 10day ¢ 1011eNnQ) — 1PNy [euiou] A93uLieq Jo ySnoiog uopuo]
WNWIIUNT  JO  UORRIYUSPI
oy pue SyIRUIYOUaq
apujour 03 popuswe

og [[IAM SIUAWINOOP JJRIp AYL

‘JJo-usts 10} 8007
YOI Ul JPUIqe)/dINAD 01
pouasard oq 01 onp oIe 2SI
‘ue]d premio] oyl ym our uf

"$288230014 Sunxoddng e

Page 47

"800¢7 Arenue[ 4] SUIOUSIUIOD ‘Teaoxdde pue

yoom g w dnoin 29IUIIOD juotramnooid | Guowdo[esa(] sumueiSord e
Supyiopy sroquioly  AeBulrel] 10/pue GNED ammbai sury e
oy 01 pouasaxd oq jm pue uoyl [[IM  pue UOHEINSUOD JUSWAINDO0IJ 9[qBUIRISNS ®
padojoaap wa2q ARy ‘sanssi (TUIUBANIOLT 0] mo st A3aens  oyJ :SONSsI
J[qeureisns  I9A0D  UOIYm Jo pvagn ‘Aianoe juouromoord Aue jo | Swimo[[o] oyi ssaIppe pnoys
‘A301eng JUAWIAIMO0I] SB [[oM POOA [BETIHA SWITe UIBW 3y SOUI[NO Yorym | SIy],  “A0Ij0J  JUSWISINO0IJ
se ‘AD1[0J JUSAIMD0I] 3JRIP ¥ (3007 ‘pammnbar st Aorjod e jeyy pue | pue  AS9jeng  JUOWIRINOOI]
Aqisuodsay Arenuef padojaasp aq pinoys AS0jens | ofqeureisng Jeip 9y SSI[RULIo)

S0°1°11 21epd(} Arsnotaoxd) | pajuorepduy JuatamooId Slqeureisns | prnoys juswiomooid jerodio) | AjpiqeuIgisng

A 8007 UYoIeN Apred 90190 v ey osmGodar ) JdD | 1By} popuUsINOddI ST ] ‘S
"JUBAD]2I 2q P[noMm
suopemoour uoym I1oydroop
IsuIeJ | 0} 19PI0 Ul MO][0] 0} sieSeuril
ssouisngl WH ‘sewreqg aIe[) | J0] souijopmd pojers A[Iedo
pue 1dFeuBp WBeH INn0oQ | gum Aorfod e oq prnoys a1oyy

"SI0 MIJ IXOU Y} ‘odreys  ueyqorg uonoy

1040 s1ofeuel JUBAQRI [[B O} (221fJ0 gicti] "SUOTIR[NOOUT 10J WIed} )oY
pojesiunuIuod aq [[im Adyod | yiwap uonpdnad() dn posord oq ues wonoe sy | [euonednoo() oy 0) seare Ysu
oy} jeyy pewguod odieys'g adaeys ueyqolg "VdH 1824 mou Jo raprenb 35T Surmp | ySiy ur yiom jeq seakopdurs
vdH Aq posoxdde uooaq Aq Aorjoq u pasworpqud  oq [y 9say, | [[e Sutsyer jo eoueyrodwr oy
sey Ad01[0d UOLBSIUNII Y], :19013j0 d[qrsuodsoy | omesmunwwy ‘SAATRLIUL 20I0JIom Ayi[esy | Jo woy Surpurwor siofeuew
Jjo Teaoxdde Jo mqumu e FwmdopaAdp jo | [ 01 N0 JUAS SI JB[NOID

S0°T° 11 a1Epd)) N 01 J00(qng Suro3uQ) 90/€0/1¢ | ssoooid oy ui a1e opy (poeidy | € Byl POPUSUIIIONII ST )] PuuosIRg 'y

paambau uijpeap aunpesq
ajepd(y | uondw JUIWISRUBIA pasisay sniels [pUISLIO asuodso yuswofevuey UONEPUIUI0INY BAIY JIpnY
90/S00T :SUONEPUIWWO0INY | A1oLid Jo dn moqoq
V XIAN3ddV 80/.002 1Y0Od3Y LIANV ATIILHVNO - LIANV TVYNYILNI 3111073a




1¢93eg

80/L00T Hoday ¢ 1a11en() — 11pny [ewou] LoSuLIel Jo ySnoiog Uopuo|

Page 48

2007 [udy poiusureyduu ur o1e fepowr uonenjead pue | juowrdoaaa(g J]qeuIB)SNg
80°1' 11 93epdy A Aq 2oerd Uy 10N 9¢ unyf ISIP[OAYD  [BJUSWIUOIIAUS UV | oY) IBY} PIPUSUIUOAI SI I]
"1o3eue]y justrdolaaa(]
Jlqeuteysng  jou  “I90YJO
Jual[d 2t Jo Aypiqrsuodsor o
3q PInOYS SUOHIPUOD JOBIUOD
SuLIoIUOJ  "POMOI[O] 9q TEDd
18t} suoneoyroads  sAemydiy
aary ‘gvim S0 ‘Aqeuroixe
s|qejreae  Apeaze 2Ie  9soy)
Jo swog ‘pasn pue padojoasp "Hoe[SI3o]
9q  pnoys  suopeoymoads | 10 uonmemSor  wr  soSueyd
SWIOOINO 1B} PAPUSIIUOIAI | AU JOJ[JoI 0} “ISU00S JO ‘SIseq
‘8007 [dy ST 31 0S ‘UOLBAOUUI J[JUIS URD | [enuuUE Ue U0 POMIJAdL pue
WO SUels USMmam ‘Jueinsuod suoneoyroads pISi ‘IOASMOY] | SIOOHJO JUBAS[AI 0) POINGLISIP
oY} UM JOBOUOD I UIYHM 9q pmoys sampooord [y
j[ng 9q UBD SPIEpPUL)S JUBAS[OI ‘JUQIDTIINS
jeyl  I9pIO UL JUBINSUOD 2q pnoys sasnep aouerdwods "uorEN[RAd pue
uonoNnsuod s Jouno) 9 Aloren3a1 prepuels osimIayjo | uwoneoyroads asodmd 107 1] e
UNM Py oq [im Jupsowr v ‘papnpour  2q pInoys Ao pue ‘ZuLiojuow
, e | Ajdde suonpen3or juepodurr | pue  SUOUIPUOD  1OBLUCO e
*A391e1S JUSWAIMNO0IJ (o220, wdopaaap | oroym  ‘pedofesdp oq [im ‘sanss1 AJIjIqeureIsns
p pue Ao[OJ JUSWISINOOL] o pvor) 3uro8uo | suonIpuod PEHUO)) AWM | 03 spredor Y oouepms e
ap Jo [eaoxdde g POOM. PRI % 900C | 92U} UO UOLBULIOUI UO SI0INOS
Jo Yoeq 21 uo ‘sjuowrarnmbar / s1agdruey IoquIoda(] | JUBAR[RI JOYIO 0} SYUI[ UM :Suimoriog
Apqeuresns JUBAD[2I | JIu[) ssouisng A9 SUO | ‘JOULIRE] O] PIPUSIXa aq PINOd | 92Uy} opn[our  pnoys  yorgm
[fe opnpour o1 ‘pajepdn oq (L00T neoryoads | SHL PaMO[[0] 9q P[NOYS PUE | JUSWAINOO0L] s|qeuTeISNS
[[IA [enUBWL JUSWAINIOIJ Y], Anpqisuodsay IOqUI2AON ¢ | yenuewr juowamoord oyl uwr | wo saInpoooxd dotoasp
Ksnoraaxd) pajuoswspdwy | suonrpuod | pepnjour Apeaie sI souepms | pnoys justamool] orerodion)
80111 9sepd) A Q007 advy Apreg joenuo)) | juswdoressp olqeureisng | Jeyl  POPUSUTHONDI ST 3]
“19130 yoeo yoddns sordorens
oM} 2} Jerp amsud djay o3 pue
uonemsuod orngnd yim aur|
ur ‘A3s1e18 YInolog 159U0aIN)
oy} jsurede pojepijeA 2q Os[e
[[im A391eRS JUSWIN00I] SY L
‘spiepueis
padinbai aulpeap aurpeaq
arepdny | uonow JuSWISEIEI pasIAay sneig [euIslQ asuodsas juswageury U0 EPUOUITI0IIY BV NPy
V XION3ddV 80/L002 LJOd3d L1ANV ATIILHVND - LIANV TVYNYILNI 3111073a




7€ 9%ed

80/L00¢ 1ody ¢ 191en) — 1pny [eurojuy L33uLiel] Jo y3nolog uopuoy -

oy ‘pauodar Ajsnojasid sy,

[rews
Aq Suimol[0] o) POULIIUOD

(tosiapy 1oddng
SUi002]a L Ao1as)
A0 113q1V

JUBASJI 0} papraoid
29 Juswodeuel Yim poeaide oq
Im drgsioquuowt pue Sururer],

T3 ], SUOT) BOTUNTUTIO33 ],

:Sutpnpout ‘A3ayexs oy
Ul POpn[oul 9q PINOYS Sansst
JUBAS[2I IV [IOUNOD 9}

(105eue]y ElR(] 2 QOUBINSSY (80/L00T oYy} UIYIIM  SONSSI  90INOSAI | JO SPAdU XN PUe JUALMO JIf)
Aiend))  Swpiel]  sowef | - :SIAJJO opqisuodsoy ¥ 1o1rend) SSaIppe {14 siy) paredonue st | 30921 03 dn umerp oq pinoys uoned
Asnoraoid) 11 pue amyonnsal e 3utodIopun | AFojens  SUOHEBOIUNUIUOOI[D] | [UNUIHOIINI],
801001 3epdf) X {007 dunf SuroguQ 9099 | Apusmmd ST SO0IAIOS I | B IRl PUSWILIOODI  OM ‘9
“PaYSI[qe]Sa 3q p[noys "PassaIppe U22q
"800 11dy w pajurodde aq (1uou1a.1n20.4q sjjo-udis jo ssaooxd ' pue | oAwy sonsst Ajjiqeuielsns jey;
0} onp JULHMSUOD UOIIONISUOD Jo pvag) juowodedus Apres 1o [odojoxd | amsus 0} se os uonedwiod sy
MU QI M UONBINSUOD POOAN [SRIPDIA Vv Ajeanocedsonar papnpoul | [HUN ‘99PIIITIOY) JUSWIDINI0LJ
ur padojeadp aq [ ‘sseocoird ore  spodse  juowdopossp | oy o3  pajussard  Suraq
po-udis e pue juoweSeSue | /SIdBEURIN Yafoag a[qeuILISns omsus | 10ofoxd oy o3 rorxd ‘vonenu
Apres  Surpnpour  quSWINOOp - Jf] ssouisng 01 J[NOLIIP AI9A ST I SB SIPeW | wol  ‘000°00S3 JO  onfea
[ocojoxd B jey)  pouLIguod juswdoranap s]qeure)sns | poysony) ) saoqe syosfoid w
juswanoold Jo pesHy oYL :Kiqisuodsay ur poodustradxaul ST I9OLJO | PIAJOAUI oq pInoys rofeueiy
fo)) 2007 tdy pouawajdun wolord o3 g1 Apemonaed | juswdopoaa(g o[qeurelsng
< 80T 11 91epd) A Aq 9oe(d ug 10N ojerpow] | quiod jueiioduir A10A € SISIYT | 9Y1 18U} PAOPUSWILIOIDI SI 1]
n%a ‘s3unyelropun justrdojeAsp “9OTIUITIOY) JUSWAINO0I]
@ ojqeureisns wo pommbar se | oy} Aq  peaoxdde oI
a sIoquuawi o0} Yoeq Jodar pinoys | jeyl soSeuepy j0efoirg oy Aq
SIOBNUOD  /  SJUB[ASUOD | }9S SUOIIPUOD Jo SurIojuow
noyr Aq popiaoid uoneuiojur | 9y}  opnpour 0}  UAAIS
Bursn ‘sofeuewr 100lo1d "9[0I | 2q OS[E PINOYS UONBIIPISUO))
oouerduiod e wo oye) 01 WS
o) JOJ 90INOSAI JUSIOLJNSUL ‘uonem3al pue UonE[SISo]
SI 910 'Sy pue sddo | ynm Joueduiod ue
Q:m.:&x:opi [enbs m%wonmmm mm@con aq Mou:wemzommoh ﬁﬂcoﬁobzﬂm@a
Jo prow) pnoys uoneIapisuod awes oty | Lorjod AyIrqeure)sng
'800¢ [1dy ur payurodde aq POOA PRI ‘sonsst oouer[duwoo Aroje[ndar | SANUAPT ISIPOAYS Y, "dep
0} anp JUE)NSUOD UOIONNSUOD ISYI0 pue  [BJUSWIUONAUS | PUE [ENIUI U AQ PaduapIAd aq
MU AP UM  pOSSNOSIp /s1eBeury 19fo1g Jo swie)l up  juewdo[aadp | pnoys ooy oyJ, ‘srofeueiy
9q [[IM  UONEPUSLIIIODAI Hup ssomisng o[qeureisns jo spoadse | 10afo1g Aq patardwod
sy} Iopun suopoe 12410 10400 0} padooAsp oq | SISHYOaYD [EIUDTUUOIIAUD
pormbar oy} jeyl poWIHUOd [[is SHY], "PaMO[[0} aq pInoys | jo ajdures e wo }ooyd Appuow
JUSWIAINOOIJ JO PBI[ oyl :Lpqisuodsay pue jenuew juswemooid oy | e wiropad pnoys  1eSevuepy
paunbai aulpeap auipeaq
ajepdp} | UOUOE JUANLISBURIA pasiaoy snjels [BUIBLIO ASUOASIL JUSIISRURIA HONBPUWHIONNY BV NIPNVY
V XION3ddV 80/.00C LYOd3IY 1IANV ATIILHEVND - LIANV TVNY3LNI 3111073d




¢¢ a8eq

80/,007 Hoday ¢ Iouen) — 1pny [euaju] AoSuLief] Jo y3noirog uopuo]

SI YoIgm ‘(/'7 UOISIOA) THIISAS

[few-3 - PassaIppe — pastey

Ay} Jo uoIsea  papeiddn (jonno)) -:umoroy oy
ue juaweldur o) jusweSeuewt | Juwppng fo pag) apnjour pue spIepuels 66//Se
£q sueyd a1 a1y JOATIAL qog (L00Z odar | ULIOJUOD  Pnoys  8soyJ, Surauerg
Apuormyy uendwod g6/ /.Sq 129010 yipne Sunreme o1eSYLION Yim wopeorddy  Sumuejg-e oy -3 pue
jou st Ajmooes  promssed | 11801550 S1qisuodsey =Y paster pue ypne oy} 0} 10Hd | yypim aoed w ynd 8q pynoys uoneardde
oy e poSpomoyoe Apsnoraaid) Pagpa[mowy "SI JesyHoN S[onuoy)  ssa00y  [eordor] uep 1
SI 31 Juowowr oy} Iy A 2007 Puny Surosup woAIS oy | UM PUeY UL Apeal[y "paaIfy paaoxduwy Jey} PUSUIIOIDT 9 ‘L
" Jeaoxdde
I0] poumuqns oq [[IM  9sed
ssaursng pue piq jeides e jonid
ay) Jo uonsjdwioo Fuimorjoq
"800¢ sunf pus jo puo 2y}
01 uni [jim pue (Jonpoid 3s9je]
s Joriddns oy} jo aSeiueape
oqe} 01 panpayos AjeurSuio
ueyy zape] Apysdis) Arenuep ur
O douduoo o) pouueld mou st
LO)| 1o1id ® 100f01d a3 Jo o[e0s pue i (Muifal
@ 2doos oy Surkynuepr ur sisse pue sastraxd [rouno))
O) ol ASojouryosy mou 2y} 03 I9[[ewus 0] SUONOAUUO)) e
© pyers SunerSu Jym uonjerado pue
o A[rep  JUSIIMO oY)  UIRIUIBLE ‘(sToquunN uOnEoIUapP]
01 sey jeyy 1oofoxd aSrer e st [eUOSIoJ Sk yons
Auoydorer 141 Sunuowoyduuy $2IM1BI] UOISUIXA JO asn
y3nony; "3'9) 51500 I0)UOW
"Auoydarel 141 pue [o1uoo 0] AN[IQY e
punole paseq aq [[Im [orgm {SOIUAD JOBIUOD
‘AZe1EDS  SUOEOIUNUIIIOOI]S) (4aBvuppy vivc se yons syuawrdo(oaap
o} opN[OUL [[I PUE SIRIA SALJ | B 2oUDANSSY Avney) "100LZ OSI 01 JUSWIUIIACS-0 AUY e
— J9If} JX3U 2y} I0] UOTIOLIIp SurpJey sowep 109fo1d uonisueny 6./ Sg pue | ‘souoydalol o[iqow Jo aS[} e
ASorouysa) atp Surdynuapr oq Hie(ehis poford Suromos ur se0IATRg {SMOTADI UOTIEPOLILOIE
1w Aarens o], "R007 YOIBIN | - POAIS9aI asuodsay Il 9y1 Suunp uonuM  oq Aue 01 SYUI]
Jo ayep uoneosiqnd pejeumsa [ sampadoid pajuelIndo(y cuerd 10 £301enS
ue yim ‘wes] juswadeusy (Lrof ‘ueld o[doad o) pue | SUOLEOIUNUNUOD € O} SYUI] e
LI o 107  SQRISAID | 423puUbpy suouvLade) suerd j10om JJeis [enpiarpur xod ‘(JIoA
Ao ® st ASoreng ] Mmou ABIINIAT POY Se Jjels SUuoneOIUNURUOIR[R], | '30) ASa1ens I ue 0} SYUI] e
V paambax Julprap Juipeaq
a1epd) | uond® JuoUREBUBIA pasiaoy snjeig [BUIBLIO. asuodsal JustioSeur UOIIBPUIUIOIDY BOIY JIpNY
V XIdN3ddV 80/L00¢ LYOd3Y 1INV ATIILHVND - L1ANV TVNAEILNI 31110730a




¢ 98ed

80/L00T 1ody ¢ 1ap1en) — 1pny [euioiu] KouLie] jo ydnoiog uopuo|

Page 51

o3 Jurssaooe 210Joq
ISIJ WRAISAS [ouno)) 9y
YSnomp oq 0} Padu $88008E
sopeiddn oy WM Joyuny
pauolsn  oq M s
y3noyie ‘woIshs o uryiim
Aumoos  Apealje st 9IdyJ, -
60/800¢C Ul
1 Idrend) st pajuowojdun
g 0} sapeiddn
oy 1oy Sumun peojadxyg -
“UOT}RPUSTUIN0]
o jo  uoneuowajduun
[ty Sy ur Jnsar pmoys
saperddn omy ay3 pue ooe[d
urynd oq qjim §°g ore3yrioN
01 opeiddn  mou vV -
"passnosIp 9q [[im apeiddn
oy} uoyM YIoMm IXOU 10} ]J
s pauued st Sunoowr v -
"PaIse} usaq
104 jou sey inq aoepd ur st
opeiddn oy] ‘1] AeSuuep]
ynm uoneynsuod paxnbax
siyp pue xopdwioo st /7
aedyuoN o3 opeiddn ayy -

:umorjoj
oy pauLIuod (Tonuon
Supying jo pesH) 1AW qog

80°10°01 23epd()

‘staei8ord
o1eSYIION  9U} O  S[OIU0D
piomssed jo juswdopossp

oy uodn juopuadep Ajjoym st
[01u0d Sy o uonejusweyduul

“SYIIM
OM] UIYIIM PaSDDIaL — ISP
jpun  doay  Ajundas  mou
YIIM Y22M S1Y] JNO JULOD OF /7

upad v 40 Ino usaq — (sung o
[HUN 24D3]) ISNAYO) UDLID(]
-~ Z'['9°7 uoisioa 01 Suipv.3dn

‘SI9j0eIeyd JSLIauInu

pue onoqeyde
yoq jo posuduod
spiomssed o o

pue ‘sydwope

[nyssaoonsun
sam  IYye o
J}0O0] JUNOJOE 1SN e e

‘spiomssed 9
Jo A1o1sTy piomssed @ e

‘sAep

06-09 Jo 23uey)
@go\&mmnm @oouo.wzo ® [

s1a108IRYD 9 JO
yI3US] WNWIUN pue
WoISAs Y} $59008 01

oyl uerdwos  66//8d paurerqo souspuodsario | PAHNDaI piomssed e e
paambaa aulpeap autlpea(q
muwmzwb uonoe uﬁugwwmﬁwg PosiAy snjels mﬂﬁwmmho asuodsoa wﬁ@E@Mﬁﬂ&g uonepuauImuodINyg Ay jipny
V XION3ddV

80/L00¢ LYOdIY 1INV ATIILIVND - LIANV TVNYILNI 31110730




Page 52

g¢ a8eg 80/L00T Hody ¢ 1031en) — 11PNy [BUINU] AAFULIEY JO YSN0oIog Uopuo|
(Sa.47127) 2.4nS1277 XTIOL Y} 3unosjje 12)sesip
:SUIMO[[0] oY} PSULIGUOD | [0 ppafy witiopuf) UONEIUSWNOOp PUE $2INPd0Id | ¢ 15 Juoss o wr ponunuos
seq  1oSeugpy  Aununuo)) sg8ng Apuy ) o y3nos oq [[Im 2ouepIng 2q weo ; poys (s)enus)
ssoursng 3 Suruuelq pue paSuelle Usaq SeY Sunosw amsIe] 9y} JO  ssauIsng
KouoSIowy) OO MAIpUY | 1190130 s[qIsuodsay gpooq | B 0j)py  juswarmbar | gy, ‘SISBQ JBYM U0 pPUB ‘moOy
Jopuo oty | HerodIod e st (dOg) Suruueq IOPISUOD PINoYs jusweSeurur
80°T0°01 repdn N V/N pajowaduy | jeyerq | AMMUBUOD ssouisng PR | ypry  popuownuooos st g
“moxo0] 198} Surotojuy
pue  suofoT popegy  JO
MmaIAy pue Surpioosy spnjout
panqns suoneoyroads
justudojaasp oYL
“1a1pddns axemiyos
oy} jo digsroumo jo aSueyo (221f]0 "MOIAI
a1 03 onp ureSe juss uaeq | poddng pusmdopadac 1epun weld juowdopaaap ayy ojur
sa®y jng panmuqns Ajeuwisuo ssouisng) — areamjjos | toneIodioour xay) pejsonbor
suonjeoyoads oy} se  ouies AV pABYINY xo10] | PUB 2I9( pajou  suonsadins
oyl ore 0soy] -eAnwiussardox 01 paredafa(y Jo aseopor | OYoads u paplemIoy
dnoi3 1osn SIN'TL Mou Sur | Apuonbosqns aaey op - dew
o) 0}  Aumoss  promssed (sa43ua7) 2418187 yuowapdun | PeOI, 1onpoid 1reys ut papnjour ‘syduroye
) Surpredar SJUSWIOOUEYUD | f0 poapy witdony) omsio] | U99q  MOU  seq SR B | goFo;  preawm  eapnedar
10] s3senbox oy perROIUNUIIOD s§8ug Spuy pue | ¥ou 03 paseayd o1 pue dnoin) Fummoroy ssoooe juoasid Ajny urdsAg
-a1 oIB) preyory sorpddns | 1981 XI0L d3 BIA AJINO3S | o) 1ap1o ur weysAs oy} 1001100 | JuSUIdSRURIA
:1001370 ojqistuodsay oremjjos | U WSOl 01  sjuswosordur | swofpddns  oremijos oy 2unsy
80°T01 epdfy uo Ko | Wy3nos Asnoraard | yoanhoy poys juswadeury XTIOL
A 2007 AeN gwogup wopuadacy | 2ABY oM opdiounid ur paaify Jey}  poOpuLWIHO2al ST ] ‘8
“s10139] [ews pue [endes
ouswmu  eydie  ‘ouowmu
Jo omyxmu e 3q Pp[noys
yorym Fuo] sisjorIeyd § 1589
je 8q 0} paxmbar are spromssed
[fe o1 oovid ur o S[ONUOD
Krojesuadwion  :2j0N  9sBII
"ONSST UL ¥ SIY) PISIBI 9ATY
s1o3euewr ou os[y (waysAs
poambai aulpeap aulpeaqg
ajepdn | uonow juouSEURI PISIAdY smels [puiduo asuodsaa juowafeuey UOHEPUONIIOdNY BAIY JIpNY
V XIAN3ddV 80/.002 LJOd3Y LIANV ATIILAVNO - LIANV TYNYILNI 3L110713d




Page 53

9¢ o3 80/L007 Hoday ¢ 1oend) — ypny [ewip] KoSuLiel Jo ySnolog uopuoy

) "Ay0100]S1IES ST JO¢
oyl ‘pajerdwiod jou Sp eyl
uonoss oyl woxy pede Geyy
PojeIS OS[R IO MaIpUYy

Wea] Justusseurl
JuspIoul Aymunuo)
ssouisng o1 10 syumod
Suneow oy — uonopduwrod
saxmbar s W 409
oyl jo yed ouo St QIOYJ -

"(tpny feuzejuy

Aq paurejqo Sem JUSWNOOP (4201fl0

oy} jo Adoo e :9j0N) sSSug poddng juawdojaas(y "SUOLBNIS {ONS Ul SUOIOR
Apuy Aq poepmuqns pue ssouisng) pue soniiqisuodsar Furpnjour
padojoasp uosq sey sonua)) IR paeyory ‘parusInoop A[[eULIO) 9q Uy}
sppodg Sutoaod  uelg 01 paredere(g pinoys sjudwodueire  9soyl,
Amunuo)) ssouisng Y[ - ‘paamnbar ‘SISAIRS

paambax aurpeap uipeaq
aepdy | uonae juowolruey Pasiaoy snjejg [BuisLQ asuodsoa JuamaBeuvy UOLBPUIUILOIY BAAY JIpny

V XION3ddV 80/2002 LYOd3Y 1IANV ATIILAVNO - 1LIANV TYNAILNI 31110713a



Page 54

1€ 93eg 80/L00T 1oday ¢ 1eprend) —31pny [euiaiu] AoSurer Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

WopSUrY pAN] “YLy VHOH BOPUoT 4901S IDIN0dU0I§ | “Uno))
IONOAUO}S 190LJO PIIISIZNY TYTSRSH Iquunu paralsi3al im sa[epy pue pue[Sug Ul PaIsIsiSor s1 PoJIUIT JIPNY [BLINNU] 10}09S ONqng QONOJ, 29 ANIO[A(]

"PAAISSAI SIYSH [V "PAINUIT NIPNY [BUIU] 10309 [N SYONOT, 29 MO LOOTO

“UIOIS A NSIBWYO ] 24ono ] S310[a(] sy Aq j0u
pue sojel|ije 10 SILIPIPISqNS 1oy} 10 SWLY Iaquist oY) £q papraoid oIe SIOIAIOS "SSUIRU P3JEAI IS0 10 ° NSJEUIo ], 9Yono], aPIo[a(],, ¢, SYonoY 2 aNIo[a(],
. PNI0[3(],, sowreu ay 1opun Juperado Anud e8] juspuadopur pue ojeredas e SI SWIL IOGUISW SY) JO YOBF SUOISSIO 10 S}OB § 1a130 1[o®2 10} AJIIqer] Aue
Sy SULI I9qUISWL 31 JO AUB 10U NSEUYO ], AYDNO ], SPIO[I(] IOYSU ‘YINS SB ‘PUE ‘(UONLID0SSE) UIDIOA SSIMG E SI NSJRUIYO ], GONO] SNI0[d(] MS)EWIYO ], SYONO],
SPIO[3( JO UL ISQUISUL WOPSUTY PAJIU() T} ST YoIym ‘dTT SYONOL 2 SWIO[( JO AIRIpIsqns € ST AjIur] JIpny [BWIsju] 10199S O[qng dYonoy, 2 aniofoc

"POIUINT IPNY [BUISIU] 103308 O1[qRd SYONO, 29 SPIO[S(] 01 SIOUSISJAI I8 SPIO[A(] 0} SAOUSINYSI JUSUINOOP STy U]
9007 Sapnuny

Hopuoy

PRI PPHY [PUADJUT L0122 DGR 2YINO ] W 231019(]

"W3ISAS [01UOD [RUINUT S[EI[S1 © JO SOUBUSIUIRL 91}
10y jueiroduut ST JUSWASLUBW AG SUOHPPUSUIUOIAI INO JO uonejuswaldul [owr pue SAN03JJH "SIUSWNIOP 3SA) JO ANoNUSYINE 9y} AINSUS 0} PUE YIOM JIPNe
amo jo sasodmd ot} 103 suonoesULL pur SPI0O3I FUNUNOSOE IIAY} 0} SSAOIE [[0f sn 9praoid 0] JustHoSeusw uo A[a1 am [ons se pue 20UBDYIUSIS pue NSII 15918013
Jo Suraq se JuowaZeurw AQ PIYHUSPI SB SBAIR UO SN00J 0} PAUSISOP SIE $3Impadoid JIpne [eureu] puely aa18n[[0d Jsurede Jooid oq jou Aewl pue 2oULINSSE
|mjosqe jou pue J]qeuoseal opraoid AJuo ued [0HUOD [BUISIUI JO SWAISAS PUNos usAy ‘senuemIoL Io pney jo Anpqissod oy 01 spreSor JA®Y 0} parmnbol
aIe Sy10Mm I9Y) SUnONpUOd UI ‘SIONPNY ANIB[NSSLI IO PNEIf JO SOOUBRISWNOID [[ AJjuopl 0} uodn PII[AI 10U ‘SJOXU0D [EUISIUL UI $3SSOU{BaM pue syjSuons
[ Aynuapt o} uodn parjar aq jou pinoys JIpne [eurdiur £q potiojiod YI0M PUE JUIWSSLURUL YIIM SISOI SONLIENSLI IO pue pney Jo Uonoalep pue uonuosdid
Y} pu® S[ONUOD [BUINUI JO WIsAs punos e 10§ Anpiqrsuodsar oy ey asiseqdwo opy  seopoerd juowoaSeurw punos jo uonesrdde oy 105 sonqisuodsal
S JUSWOT UL 10J AJMIIISQNS € SE USYE} 3q JOU P[IOYS PUE J0U ST YI0M JIPNE [BuINuI Jo souewwiorod oy, “poyuswoydur are Koy 210599 joedwur [0y IoY) 10] nok
£q passasse aq PNoYs sjuStUA0IdWI 10§ SUOHBPUSUNUOIIY “SPEUI 3¢ WS Jey)} SJUSWOA0IAIIL [[B IO ISTXD JBY) SISSIUNBM AT} 1] JO jusuIale)s aarsuayarduoo
© A[1IeSSO00U JOU Sl PUE JIOM JIPNE [BUISUI INO JO 3SIN0O o) SULMp UOHUANE INO 0} SWED YoM 3oyl A[uo ore jrodar smp ur paster s1opewr oyJ,

"MO[3q N0 198 SUOHEIII] U} JO siseq o uo paredard st gorym jrodar stys 1oy AN[iqisuodsar 9Bl o

Apqisuodsay Jo juduwdge)§

V XIAN3ddV 80/.00¢ LYOd3Y 11NV ATIILAVND - 11aNV TVNAILNI 31110730



Page 55

p j0 | ebed

Buipuad

)001S JO [eAOWa.
pasLoyineun

Puipusd [eaddy

pneJ} Buisnoy

pessiwsiq ! ! ! Jo uolebe|ly
uoljeolddy
pajeulwIs] BuisnoH
JOBJUOD S8ulRl | L L L sinpne.ly
sojouedalosip
10BIUO0D
pue SWILBA0
jo Buipieme
Ul WISIINOAR)
0 0 A jo uonebe||y
pneJ; buisnoy
0 0 L jo uonebejy
psuoiioe juswAedeay 4/9
uonebiyw swielD abesjiN
0053 01 np uol0e ON L L L Jen Jeinbau
pabpoT 13
jeaddy 4/9 S9OIAIDG
e peydn fessiwsiqg Aunwuwon
ebpeq pue
passiwsi(] b b 3 on|q jo esnsi\ | ainjn) ‘SHNpY
uonebiiseau]
Areuydiosig
(umouy y)) o} J08lqns 10/21/0€
3) SI1901140 1e usnoid paiebisaaul
anfep awoonQ Aeujdiosiqg Jo "ON SOSED JO 'ON | S9se9 Jo "ON | adA] Ajueinboau ajei0}0811Qq

1/900¢ WOH4 4/9 ® 200¢/21/L€ - 20/¥0/10 Q3LVDILSIANI SAILIHYINDIHHI — LIANY TYNYILNI 3SNOH-NI

9 XIAN3ddV




Page 56

¥ 40 g abed

Buissasoid
uopoe Aeuydiosip JuswAed S90IN0SsaYy
Buipuad paubisey 2 2 P gH Jejnba.j aqeiodion

ureb jeuosiad

Buipuad b L ! jo uonebejy

1dieoal

JO 8w 18 payueq

10U aJam sajuow

paubisay eaAojdwg L L L 1eyl uonebsyy

spuny Jo asnsiw

0 0 L jo uoneba|y

|awiooIN0 10NpuUOoSIW

Areujdiosiq Buiiemy ! L b pabajly

uaMe] UoIOY ON X|
[founogd ayi jo
INOAB) Ul pUNOS | X |
[eaddy

Je pleydn jessiwsig x | 990IMISG
)ois | sojdoad Bunoj
pessiwsig X | 4 [ [ HO 1sjiym Buppiopy ® Ualpjiyn

$92JN0SaY

Buipued L | I Jo asnsi\ pabe|ly

uonebisaau|
Areuydiosiq
(umouy ) o} jJo8lgns 10/21/0e :
3 S1991J0 1e uanoid peiebisoaul
anjep swooInQ Areurdiosiq JO "ON SOSeOD JO 'ON | s8seod jo "ON | adA} Ayiejnbauy ajei0}081IQg

1/900¢ WOHA 4/49 ® L002/cL/L€ - £0/¥0/10 AILVDILSAANI STLLIHYINDIHYHI — LIANV TVNYILNI ISNOH-NI

g XION3ddVv




Page 57

i 0 ¢ abed

Buipusd 13

[eaddy
e pjaydn jessiwsiq

passiwsiq

4/4

awi yom Buunp
ylom areaud
jo uonebajy

JUSWIUOIIAUT
ueqin

Buipusad

seoInossy
JO 8snsI

Buipusad

ebpeq pe|gesip
JO esnsjw
jo uoyebejly

JuswiinIoal
Jeinbau
jo uoyebeyly

pessiwsiq

1

paJoyje
Ajusinpne.y
sem Judisd
Bupjied e1vys8
1ey} uonebs||y

(umouy )

3
anjep

awoonQ Areundiosiq

uonebnseau|
Areuydiosiqg
o} 109Iqns
Si80lJO
O 'ON

10/21/0¢€
je uanoud

sase? JO "ON

pajebisoaaul
SOSED JO "ON

adA] Auenbouiy

ajeio}08.1(

£/900¢ WOHA d4/d ® L00¢/21/1€ - 20/¥0/10 Q3 LVDOILSIANI SALLIHVINDIHYI — LIANV TVYNHILNI 3SNOH-NI

g XION3ddV




Page 58

t 40 y ebed

0563 cc €¢ LC [elol
1dieoal
-Uuou JO swie|o
0S¥3 V/N V/N L ! senbayo Hg oyroads-uoN
uoneoo||y
uopeBbejey pue BuisnoH
Buiuiepn UsILAA [euly L L 1 Jejnbaui paba)y
psjlies 4/4
pabpo 13 uoieoldde
Buisnoy
passiwsI( L L L reinBoui| paba|y
$804N0SaYy
Buipued 4 4 14 Jo esnsiy
pabpo 13
4/d
[eaddy »
1e ppydn essiwsic uointeoydde
Buisnoy
passiwsIq L L L Jeinbaui| paba|y
uonebisaauj
Areundiosig
(umouy 3) o1 109lgns 10/21/0¢€
3) SI92IO je uanoud pajebiisaaul
anjepn awoonQ Areundiosiqg JO 'ON SOSED JO "ON | S8se9 Jo "ON | adA| Ajuejnbauij ajel0}0811(

£/900¢ WOH4 d/d ® 200¢/¢l/1€ - 20/¥0/10 A3 LVDOILSIANI SALLIHVINDIHYI — LIANV TVNYILNI 3SNOH-NI

g XION3ddV




Page 59

Haringey Council — Audit Committee

Disciplinary Case Analysis October 2007 to December 2007

Introduction

The information in this report is taken from SAP. It covers the period 01 October 2007 — 31 December
2007.

The data is based on Haringey Council employees who

¢ hold Permanent, Temporary or Fixed Term Contracts

» are considered as Supernumerary (employees that have been on a Temporary Contract for more
than 52 weeks)

Note that this data excludes:

e Casual or Sessional Workers

e Schools
¢ Agency Workers

Legend

Adults, Culture & Community Services As

- The Children & Young People’s SéNice | ; C |

| ébrporate Resources Lo “ CR |
People & Organisational Development | PO -
Policy, Performance, Partnership & Comms PP

- Urban Environment UE :
Haringey Council HGY

The Council’s Disciplinary Procedure is considered as a tool to assist in good management and not
solely as a means of imposing sanctions or setting out procedures leading to dismissal.

The procedure aims to:
e Allow managers to address issues of unsatisfactory conduct and seek improvements in
behaviour
» Ensure that employees covered by the procedure are treated fairly and consistently

Ensure that proper and adequate procedures are observed before any disciplinary decisions are
taken

¢ Help and encourage all employees to achieve and maintain standards of conduct, attendance
and job performance
Maintain discipline essential to the delivery of high quality services

e Protect the health, safety and well being of staff, service users and members of the public
Safeguard the integrity and good reputation of the Council
(Disciplinary Procedure July 2005)

|l of 6



Disciplinary Cases

Page 60

This section looks at the number of formal actions taken against employees under the disciplinary

procedure based on data retrieved from SAP.

Disciplinary Cases by Directorate

Directorate Cases Closed Cases Open No of cases No of employees
AS 8 16 24 2

C 5 5 10 10

CR 5 4 9 8

PO 0 0 0 0

PP 0 5 5 5

UE 2 9 11 iR

HGY 20 3 59 56

Please, note that the total number of cases is 59, but this only represents 56 employees.
The reason being, that one employee can have more than one case running concurrently.
For example, an employee’s dismissal could count as one case and their appeal as another.

» Policy, Performance, Partnerships & Comms has the highest percentage of disciplinary cases
against its workforce at 2.12%

e 39 cases remain ‘open’ at the end of this period.

The following table looks at the stages of Disciplinary cases.

20f 6

Stages of Disciplinary Cases
Stage Cases Closed Cases Open | Total %
Invest. - not suspended 13 11 T 24 41“
Invest. - suspended 7 19 26 | 44
ET 0 6 6 10
Appeal 0 3 3 5
Total 20 39 59 100




Page 61

The following table identifies the outcomes of the 20 cases that were concluded.

Disciplinary Case Outcomes

Invest. - :
Appeal dismissed 0 0 0 0 0 0
Appeal upheld 0 0 0 0 " 0 0
Dismissal 1 4 0 0 5 25
No action 3 0 0 0 3 15
Other 1 0 0 0 1 5
Part upheld 0 0 0 0 0 0
Verbal warning 3 0 0o 0 3 15
Wiritten warning 2 0 0 0 2 10
Final writ warning 3 2 0 0 5 25
Resigned 0 0 0 0 0 0
Suspension lifted 0 0 0 0 0 0
Relegation/Demotion 0 1 0 0 1 5
Total 13 7 0 0 20 100
* In 25% of cases the employee received a Final Written Warning
o 25% of cases resulted in Dismissal
This table displays reasons for Disciplinary action against employees.
Reasons for Disciplinary Cases
Reason o ~ Cases Open  Cases Closed  Total | %
Aot . ; . L P . N — .
Attendance N 2 5 7 12
Behaviour 9 6 15 25
Fraud / Theft 9 3 12 20
Misuse of fésources 8 ”2 10 R k1‘7
Negligence 4 1 5 8
Other 7 3 10 7
Totd 3% 2 s 100

e The highest cause for disciplinary action was for Behaviour at 25%

3of6



Page 62

This table looks at the ethnic breakdown and gender split for Disciplinary cases

Disciplinary Cases by Ethnicity and Gender

Female Male All

Ethnic Class Total % Total % Total %

B&ME 19 42.2 24 53.3 43 76.8

White 9 69.2 4 30.8 183 23.2

Total 28 50 28 50 56 100

* 27% of the workforce is male, but the male representation of the disciplinary cases is

significantly higher at 50%

The following table looks at the ethnic breakdown per Directorate and across grade bands.

H'Disciplinary Caées by Ethnicity and Grade Band
(T = Total no. in grade band, WF = % of workforce)

Dir

Ethnic =~ MANUAL SC1-SC5 SC6-SO2 PO1-PO3 PO4-PO7  PO8+

TOTAL

Group

WF WF T WF T WF T WF

WF

T WF

15.2 13.3 43 3.7
81 0 120 67 4.9

B & ME
AS White

184
11.8

0.1

13

15 549
7 4438

Total

8 554

o White 47

2 944

74 683 | O 125 90

Total

46

CR White 74

58,0
415

18 55 139 77

Total

51

PO White

4.9

61.7

06 49 191 14.2 17.9

Total

B&ME 47 14.0

PP White

11.0
16.9

13
6.8

04 38 7.2 19.5

Total

44.9
54.7

UE White 26 10.9 121 8.3

5.4

W oM 4O OO O ™

48.3

N W - 000 000 o0o b~ o~ 2 0 -
—xo—nfmomo%ooimomm;'ommom

Total

ki
k.

—
5.6

5.1
6.0

147 12 126 15 117

BAME | 6 | , |
97 4 147 0 111

HGY White

0.7

2.7

B
w

® N OO O OO OO0 000 ®WOoOWwWOoOOoOoun N w -
o

O N N O NMNMONMOOOOO OO OO AN N
® TN -4 4000000 00O ANMDMDDNODND O

Total R K

- O 4 4 04 0000O0O0O0ODO0OO0OO0OOOOoOOoO o

48.8
49.9

—a
W

[0
(2]

4 of 6




Suspensions

Page 63

This table shows a summary of suspension cases.

Summary of Suspension Cases

Case status Total
u No. of cases heard 7
No. of cases not concluded 19
No. of cases not concluded - leaver 0
Total 26

Of the 26 suspensions, 7 cases have been heard.

The table below looks at the 26 suspension cases and identifies the no. of working days each case has
taken. If the case has not concluded by the end of the period, the number of working days is calculated

from the start date of the current disciplinary stage to the end of the quarter.

The table also identifies, by directorate, the average number of days suspension and the maximum

days for a single case.

Timescales of Suspension Cases

b ‘ . Total no. of
61- 121- 181- Total

Directorate ;;62 120 180 240 giog ;I‘ao;cea; cases da}’g’ rtzll;:en Q;'gs' ZA:XS

Y Days  days days 4 heard ; Y Y

cases

AS 6 1 0 1 1 9 3 918 102 424
C 2 1 3 1 0 7 2 842 120 232
CR 0 4 0 0 0 4 1 413 103 120
PO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
UE 2 2 0 0 2 6 1 963 161 ’ 383
HGY 10 8 3 2 3 26 7 3136 121 424
Total cases ;
heard 2 2 1 0 2 N/A | N/A | N/A N/A | N/A’

In this quarter, on average, 121 days were spent on each suspension case. This is a similar figure to the
15t and 2™ quarter of 2007/8.

50f6




Page 64

Average and maximum days taken for suspension cases by directorate

500 -

i ! |
424, ; 1424

400

300

200

100

AS C CR UE HGY

Average Days Maximum Days

The chart below looks at the number of suspension cases per quarter and hlghllghts Haringey Council’s
average number of days per case.

Average and maximum days taken for suspension cases per quarter

200

160 A

118 122 j121§

120

80

40

Jan07 - Mar07 Apr07 - JunQ7 Jul07 - SepQ7 Oct07 - DecQ7

Total Number of Cases B Average Days per Case

The average number of days taken per suspension case has fallen by 5 days since December 2008,
showing the benefit of the extra scrutiny and focus on management action that is continuously ongoing.

Although this is good and reflects that we have made an improvement from this time last year, the
Council still aims to lower the average number of days taken per case to 70 days.

6of 6



Page 65 Agenda Item 8

Haringey Council
Agenda ltem

Audit Committee . 0n28"January 2008

Report title: Audit of Accounts 2006/07

Report of. Chief Financial Officer

Ward(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose

1.1To update the committee on the final outcome of the annual audit for 2006/07 and to
report on issues raised by the Audit Commission

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the Committee note the contents of this report and the actions proposed that
arise from the matters raised by the Audit Commission.

Report authorised by: Gerald Almeroth — Chief Financial Officer

Contact officer: Graham Oliver — Head of Finance —Accounting and Control
Telephone 020 8489 3725

| of 8



Page 66

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The statutory report of the Audit Commission on certain matters relating to the
Council’'s governance responsibilities needs to be considered before a final opinion of
the Council's financial statements for 2006/07 is given and a concluding statement on
the Council's arrangements for securing economy, effectiveness and efficiency in the
use of resources. The actions proposed arising from the report are detailed.

4. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)

4.1 None.

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

Report of Acting Director of Finance to General Purposes Committee on 28 June 2007 —
Statement of Accounts 2006/07

Report of Acting Director of Finance to General Purposes Committee on 11 September
2007 — Annual Governance Report

6. Background

6.1  Atthe General Purposes committee meeting of 11" September 2007 the Audit
Commission presented to members the initial findings from their audit of the
accounts for 2006/07. However at that stage the audit was incomplete and the
auditors were not able to give a complete picture.

6.2 It was agreed that any final issue were agreed between the auditors and the
Chief Financial Officer, in consultation with the Chair of GP Committee and
that an update report would be brought back to a subsequent meeting of the
General Purposes committee and the Audit committee.

6.3 The statutory deadline for the signing off of the accounts by the Authority’s
auditors was 30™ September 2007 and the final audit certificate was issued by
the District Auditor on 16™ October 2007. The reason for this delay was some
late additional testing around the area of capital expenditure that the auditors
needed to carry out in order to assure themselves that appropriate expenditure
was being classified as capital spend.

20f8




Page 67

6.4 The Auditors delivered an unqualified audit opinion and concluded that the
Council has proper arrangements in place to secure economy, effectiveness
and efficiency in its use of resources.

7. Annual Governance Issues 2006/07

7.1.1 Detailed below are issues that were raised by the District Auditor in signing off
the 2006/07 accounts. The Chief Financial Officer worked closely with the
Audit Commission during the audit process to resolve the issues that arose.
None of the issues reported on by the Audit Commission had any impacted on
the net spend of the Council or the level of reserves. A direct response to the
issues raised is shown in the table below:

Audit Commission issue Chief Financial Officer response
HfH pre-transfer pension costs This is an issue that came to light shortly
The management agreement between | after the accounts were closed. As soon as
the Council and HfH stipulates that the Council became aware of this issue it

pre-transfer pension costs should be was raised with the auditors in order that
borne by the Council, not the ALMO. | the Council, HfH ‘and ~the respective
Pre-transfer costs in the draft accounts | 2Uditors could work together to ensure the
were overstated by £3m because the correct accounting treatment was put into

Council had used the value as at 1 place.

April 2006 and not 31 March 2007. The accounts were then amended
accordingly.

Income to the Housing Revenue

Account was therefore understated The council is now working with HfH and

by £3m and the Pension Liability the pension fund actuaries to ensure this

Account correspondingly overstated. issue is properly resolved for future years.

There was, however, no impact on the

Housing Revenue Account Reserve,

as local authorities are required by

statute to charge pensions costs to the

Pension Reserve.

The accounts have been amended

accordingly.

Calculation of gains/losses on This was a new requirement for the

disposal of fixed assets accounts in 2006/07. The sale of the 2

Our testing of two fixed assets assets in question took place in June 2006

and the detailled CIPFA accounting
guidance notes on how to present this
information in the accounts was not issued
until January 2007.

disposed of in year found that the
Council had not obtained a revaluation
at or near the date of disposal.

The calculation of the gain realised on | The two sales in question took an
disposal was in both cases £1.1m and exceptionally look time to conclude and
was calculated based on a revaluation | therefore in normal circumstances a
carried out two years prior to disposal | valuation would have taken place nearer
when the original decision to dispose the time of conclusion to the sale. However

3of8



Page 68

of the assets was made.

SORP guidance requires assets to be
revalued to open market value prior to
their disposal. In this case, where
some considerable time passed
between the initial decision to dispose
and the actual disposal date, an
updated valuation should have been
obtained. No valuation was, however,
obtained nearer the time of disposal (or
retrospectively). The effect of such a
revaluation would have been to take
the gain direct to reserves rather than
via the income and expenditure
account. As such, the gains on
disposal included in the income and
expenditure account may be
overstated by up to £2.2m, although
there is no potential impact on the
reported general fund balance carried
forward.

The Council market tested both
disposals. As such, this is a technical
accounting issue that does not
highlight any failures in the Council’s
arrangements to agree a fair sale price
for the assets concerned. However,
officers have agreed to ensure that
updated valuations are obtained for
accounting purposes where
appropriate in future.

procedures are now in place with the
valuers to ensure any future sales have an
up to date valuation.

Disclosures of related businesses
and companies and related parties
The Council’s disclosure of related
parties continues to require
improvement. The note presented for
audit did not include the value of
income and expenditure between the
Council and related parties. Our
testing also found that HfH and
Alexandra Park and Palace (AP&P)
were not disclosed as related parties,
and that the information disclosed in
general with regard to these two
interests could be improved. Whilst
amendments have been made for
these items, further improvements in

The Council’s disclosures within this area
are compliant with the requirements
governing the production of accounts. This
has also been improved from previous
years accounts,

However these disclosures will be reviewed
as part of the closing process for 2007/08
and discussions held with our auditors in
order to bring about further improvements.

40f8




Page 69

disclosure can be achieved in future
years.

The Council should therefore review
for 2007/08 the disclosures made

in its accounts:

- for related parties, in general, against
the requirements of the SORP;

and

- for HfH and AP&P, specifically, to
improve the consistency of the
disclosures between information in
different parts of the accounts and
also with the information presented
with the accounts (for example, the
AP&P memorandum accounts).

Group Accounts

The purpose of the group accounts is
to present a full picture of the Council’s
economic activities and financial
position, including that of its
subsidiaries. The Council is required to
prepare group accounts for 2006/07 as
a result of the creation of the ALMO on
1 April 2006.

Our work found that aspects of the
Council’'s group accounts could be
improved. For example, no disclosure
was made of the material items of
income and expenditure included in the
group accounts, but excluded from the
Council's accounts. In addition, no
disclosure was made of the
acquisitions basis on which the group
accounts were prepared.

Amendments have been made that
address these issues.

The omissions in the group accounts
highlighted by the auditors are
acknowledged and as stated the accounts
were amended accordingly.

The points raised will be incorporated into
the action planning for the 2007/08 closure
of accounts.

Single Status

The Council has disclosed a contingent
liability in the accounts in respect of
single status. It is the Council’s view
that a provision under FRS 12 should
not be made at this stage, having
regard to the uncertainty in ascribing a
value to the liabilities potentially arising
at this time. For the same reason, it is
the Council’'s view that it is also not
possible to ascribe a reasonable value

As stated by the Audit Commission, the
CFO had a different view on the
interpretation of the accounting standard
and therefore the disclosure in the
accounts. Therefore the accounts were not
changed for this issue.

When the 2007/08 accounts are closed this
issue will be re-examined in the light of the
status of the on-going negotiations, which
will have hopefully reached their conclusion,
and the accounting treatment applied

50f8




Page 70

to the disclosed contingency.

From the evidence presented to us, we
consider that the Council has made
considerable progress in its
negotiations on single status. From
our review of that evidence, we do not
consider that the Council has
demonstrated its case that it is unable
to ascribe a value to its potential
liabilities having regard to the guidance
set out in FRS 12, either with regard to
the requirement to make a provision,
or, if not, with the requirement to
estimate and disclose the potential
contingency. The Council has reviewed
its approach, but remains of the view
that the disclosure of a contingent
liability, with no ascribed value, is
correct.

We have concluded that, whilst the
amounts involved are potentially

very large they do not of themselves
preclude the issue of an unqualified
opinion on our part having regard to
the concept of materiality. Any
liabilities would also only become
chargeable to the general fund at the
point at which they are paid, rather
than when provided. We have,
however, required specific
management representations on this
issue. The Council will also need to
review its potential single status
liabilities carefully for 2007/08.

accordingly.

Ownership of assets

As a result of testing of ownership of a
sample of fixed assets using the Land
Registry, we identified two properties
where title was not registered to the
London Borough of Haringey, but to
Middlesex County Council, a defunct
body. The values of these properties,
as shown in the balance sheet as at 31
March 2007, were £6.3m (a primary
school) and £802k (a dwelling).

We made enquiries of the Council’s
Legal Department and received further

As stated the two properties in question
were transferred to LBH from one of its
predecessor authorities, whose name is still
on the title deeds. This is not an unusual
occurrence and we would not expect title
deeds to be amended, as a sale/purchase
has not taken place.

We are discussing with the Auditors what
measures to put in place to properly
address this issue.

6 of 8




Page

71

information to support the validity of
the inclusion of these assets in the
Council’'s balance sheet. Nevertheless,
the Council needs to undertake a full
review of the information held to
support the ownership of the assets
carried in its balance sheet and, as in
the case of the two properties identified
at audit, ensure that that information is
brought up to date where required.

Fixed Assets — HRA additions

Our testing of HRA fixed asset
additions identified some items that did
not initially appear to result in the
acquisition, construction or
enhancement of a fixed asset and as
such did not meet the SORP definition
of capital expenditure. This included
the costs (including recharges) of
some routine repairs to void HRA
properties and the costs of repairs to
fire-damaged HRA properties. Officers
have provided further evidence to
demonstrate that the repairs tested
had been carried out as part of a larger
programme of refurbishment that
resulted in the enhancement of the
assets concerned (and hence the
capitalisation of the related costs).

Officers have, however, agreed to
keep the Council’s processes for
identifying capital expenditure under
review in 2007/08 to ensure all such
expenditure (including HRA recharges)
is classified accurately and in
accordance with SORP requirements.

The Council will be reviewing its procedures
and guidance for the capitalisation of
expenditure.

Discussions will be had with the Council’'s
new auditors to ensure they are satisfied
that the Council’'s process is compliant with
accounting regulations.

9.1

Revisions to the financial statements for 2006/07

Further to General Purposes Committee on 28 June 2007 when the Council’s

financial statements were approved it

has been necessary to make some

amendments mainly for non-trifling misstatements. None of these amendments
materially effected the statements. These statements were formally published in
December 2007 and are attached for information.

7 of 8




Page 72

10. Financial Implications
10.1  There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations in

this report; however, any adjustments to the accounts as a result of this process
will be taken into account in the future financial planning process.

11. Recommendations
11.1 That the Committee note the contents of this report and the actions proposed

that arise from the matters raised by the Audit Commission.

12.  Head of Legal Services comments

12.1 There are no specific legal implications.

8of 8



Page 73 Agenda Item 9

HARINGEY COUNCIL

Agenda ltem

Audit Committee ; On 28™ January 2008

Report title: Progress Report on Counter Fraud Activity Relating to Housing Benefit
and Council Tax Benefit.

Report of: The Chief Finance Officer

Ward(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose

1.1 To advise and update Members on the Counter Fraud performance of the Benefits
and Local Taxation Service from the 15! October 2007 — 31t December 2007.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That Members consider and note this report and the work being carried out by the
Benefits and Local Taxation Service in relation to Counter Fraud activity.

Report authorised by:
Gerald Almeroth cofeem
Chief Finance Officer ‘

(Signature)

Contact Officer: Tim Fisher
Designation : Deputy Head of Benefits and Local Taxation
Telephone: (020-8489-1954)

3. Executive Summary - N/A

4. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development - N/A

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985




6.

6.1

6.2

7.

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Page 74

BACKGROUND

Counter Fraud Performance is primarily judged against successful outcomes
in respect of Prosecutions and Sanction based activity. Fraud Staff are
empowered to investigate suspected benefit fraud and have a range of
sanctions that can be applied to those who admit to fraud or where there is
sufficient evidence to warrant a prosecution.

During May 2007 the DWP’s Benefits Fraud Inspectorate (BFI) undertook an
inspection of the Benefits and Local Taxation Services’ Counter Fraud
arrangements and performance. The report, published in October 2007,
made 20 recommendations for improvements in the ‘fraud investigation
process and benefits administration’. An update on these recommendations

is provided in this report.

COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY

Performance of the Fraud Investigation Team for the third quarter of 2007/08
is summarised in table 1. This shows performance to be below profile for the

second quarter

Successful outcomes for 3 quarter 2007/08

Sanction Type Number Status
Issued

Caution 13 Accepted

Admin Penalty 6 Accepted

Prosecution 5 Guilt

Total 24

Table 1

Counter fraud activity contributes to the Benefits and Local Taxation Services’
Comprehensive Performance Assessment. The Department for Work and
Pensions currently use performance of sanctions activity to help judge the
effectiveness of the Council’s counter fraud performance and produces a
performance score to rate performance.

The Benefits and Local Taxation Service has set an annual target for the year
of 126 sanctions. To date the Fraud Team has achieved 73 sanctions which
is a shortfall of 21 sanction across the year to date. To ensure that the Fraud
Team meets its target a further 53 sanctions are required by the end of March
2008. The team have so far successfully identified 55 cases for sanction and
will concentrate efforts on seeing these through to completion by the end of
the financial year.

Performance for the year to date is summarised in table 2. In comparison
with the same time last year the Fraud Team has increased it performance by
an additional 8 cases. There has been an increase in the number of

successful prosecution, up by 4 cases and an identical increase in the
2



Page 75

number of accepted Administrative Penalties.

Successful outcomes for year to date 2007/08

Sanction Type Number Status
Issued

Caution 32 Accepted

Admin Penalty 28 Accepted

Prosecution 13 Guilt

Total 73

Overpaid Housing Benefit

7.5 To date the counter fraud activity has identified £641,424 in overpaid benefit
and a further £28,488 in Administrative Penalties. Central government subsidy
paid in relation to overpayments is at a rate of 40p to the £1.00 or 40%.
Consequently, it can be estimated that £384,854 has been generated in
subsidy, this effectively results in a 60% shortfall against benefit expenditure.

7.6 The subsidy arrangements are designed to incentivise local authorities to
recover overpaid Housing Benefit. Currently, recovery performance in relation
to all in-year created overpayments is approx 53.69%. Based on this figure
the potential recovery of overpaid Housing Benefit arising through fraud during
quarters 1 to 3 could amount to £344,381.

7.7 When combining subsidy paid, plus recovered overpayments for the year it is
estimated that counter fraud activity could generate in the region of £729,235.

8.  BENEFIT FRAUD INSPECTORATE

8.1  The Benefits Fraud Inspectorate (BFI) undertook a 2 week inspection during
May 2007 of the Benefits and Local Taxation Services Security arrangements,
which includes counter-fraud activity. The inspection report contained 20
separate recommendations covering a range of activities and requirements.

8.2  To address the recommendations made in the inspection report the Benefits
and Local Taxation Service developed a Response Plan to address the
issues identified, see appendix 1.

8.3  There remain several outstanding recommendations to be completed, of
priority is the recruitment of a Fraud Team Manager (R1). Currently, there is
adequate management cover to ensure that the team is being managed
effectively. New job descriptions are being designed for both the manager
position and the deputy/team leader role, this follows discussions over
changes to the structure of the team. It is intended that an advert for the
Fraud Manager post be placed during February.

8.4 A new Sanctions Policy (R6) has been developed and a report to the Lead
Member for Corporate Resources has been produced seeking the
endorsement of this policy. Once agreed this will be incorporated into a policy

3



Page 76

and strategy for tackling benefit fraud which will be presented to the next Audit
Committee meeting for endorsement (R3).

8.5 The replacement of the fraud database (R9) has been progressed in
partnership with IT Services. A specification has been agreed and providers of
alternative IT solutions have been sent a questionnaire to determine what
suitable products are available.

8.6  The final recommendation outstanding is the requirement to introduce a
system to ensure that annual declarations of interest are obtained from staff
involved in the assessment of benefit. Advice is being sought from Human
Resources on how to implement this across the Service.



Page 77

_SIseq Auspenb e uo pamainai uolesljdnp ploAe o} suonebijseAul
sl Juswaalbe sy ‘ssso0id uoneleISe Jesio e sey BUIOBUO JO JoUI0 B4} SALIOU LONESILEBIO
yolym peaibe useq sey |ooojold Buisiom juiof oy | Uoes Jey pue sases ejeudoidde
17 10 19618) [enuue e ul epew si Bupjiom juiof Jo Jayo oy e
ue jsuiebe sawooino uonoues julof |NjSs80oNs ¢, -Jey} ainsus
1S pansiyoe aAey wes) ay) judy souig  uonebisaaul 0} 9d1n19g uonebiseAu| pneld sjuswpedaq
/90 | pelsjdwon julof Jepun sased Jualno gl ale aisy | 83U} yiim sainpadold aAjoaye sdojena( g
OBPIWWOY Jipny 8y}
BIA siaquisy 0} Ajzspenb pue juswabeuew Joluss
0} Ajyluow papodas 8q 0} SNUUOD [|IM S |AAL ued sseuisng s) ul saaoe(qo pue
ulew ayj jsuiebe eouewlopad S8SED PasOd sjebie} Jsutebe siy; siopuow pue suonebnssaul
lle Jo Jo-uBis Juswabeuew %00 | & YjIm PauIGuoD 40 swogno pue Ayjenb ‘sseiboid sy
q os[e [Im sy ‘awiBai JSNqos BIow e jo pied uo soueinsse ajenbape sapiroid yoiym swibal
99 | pejejdwo) | se paysijgelse usaq Sey a|qejaLul} JoAo||eo— SSED v Bunjoayo Juswebeuew jsnqos e sdojereq | 4,
‘ABsjenS pneld sjiouno) ayy ojul pajelodiooul SI9qWIB JO JuslUssiopus
10 100 Aq 8q ||Im siy} pasibe sduQ "UO paYNSU0D SU} sey yoiym pneyj yyauaq buipoey
41 | @eidwo) | Buiag si pue pasiael usaq sey Adljod suonoues ay | ioj Absjels pue Aoljod e saysiignd pue sdojersq | ¢
"$308Y90 Juawsbeuew teinbai ybnoiy) $)00Q8Jou 0GgDd JO SdoueUdUIBW
Pa.IOJIUOW MOU 8J€ 9S8y} JO ash 8] 'S}oogsjou pue uone|dwod ay) o} Bunejas souepinb
99 | pels|dwo)n 059D JO 8sn ay} uo saunpsdoid Jes|o aie aisy | S./IoUNod 8y} MOJ|0} siojeblisanul Jey} seinsuy |z
"Uo payNsSuod Buiaqg sI SIY] ‘|uUO 0] oM}
80 1dy Aq | wouy 1ebeueyy J08(oid [e10adg Jo Jaguinu sy} 8onpsl
ajejdwos | pue ‘Jsod 1aoQ sousbijjaiu] ue ajesid o) pasodoid pabeuew Ajenioays pue padinosal
41| edeys-ay usaq sey )1 }sod Joyebsanu) yybie ue jo aoe(d uj Ajeyenbape aie wes) uonebysanu| pneid sy}
‘paaibe usaq sey qr sy} se Uoos se jsod Jobeuepy Jeuy} eoueinsse sAIb 0} s|qissod se uoos se paj|ij
‘J0 AON 8y} asIUBApE 0] usye)} usaq sey uoisioap v 'soeld aJe Jebeuew pneld pue Jsdlyo uonebisanul
41| Aqueapy uaye)} Sey ainjonuis s,Wwes] pnelq ayj JO MaIASI Y Pneld e 10j SaiduedeA By) Jey} sainsug |
Auoud ybiy
ON
01 snje}s asuodsay Uol}epUSWILIOIDY 29y
I Xipuaddy

ue|d 8suodsay — suojjepusWIWOosay |4g




Page 78

‘pnelj pejosdsns podal 0} yoiym Aq suesw
1eajo e olignd sy Buinib AyAoe pnely-183unod jo
a|yold 8y} esesaloul 0] 8}isgem sjijeusg sy} 0) epew

auljoy pnelj pajesipap sy ybnoiyy
olignd sy} wouj sjeliales siow abeinoous
pue sHOYS pNel-1ajunod s [IDUNod ay)

1S aq |Im sabuey) Ajjeuseixe pue Ajjleussiul yjoq jo @jyoud 21jqnd ey asies o} ubredwes Ayoignd
/90 | Paje|dwo) | pesiolgnd aie suonnoaso.d [[e Jey; ainsus Im [ g SAIsusya1dwod e sulelsns pue sajeniul ‘sued
suonebiysanul
pnelj JO $S800NS pue SaijIAle
‘souepinb Jesjo Aq U} UO Je}S [I0UN0D JUBAS|a! ||E 0}
papioddns si pue wsysAs za ouiwod ayy jo syyeusq UOIJBLLIOJU| pUE YoBqpaes) [BWIo) 1ejnbal e
oy} sas||n yoeoidde mau sy “wloy [elejel ojbuls
B pue ssa00.d oeqpes) e spnjoul 8say) ‘paubisep i
18 | parejdwon -81 pue pamalnsi Usaq aney sainpaoo.d [elisiay S}9|dod 0} Moy Uo 9ouepinb sjqissede
Alipeas yym wioy [elisgel sjbuis e e
"UoljeJisIuIlpe S)JaUS( Ul POAJOAU psaio)uoW Si YoIym
seafojdws (e 10} paonposul 8q |jIm swwesboid JO SSBUBAIJ08Ye Y] ‘uoielisiuipe
1H | pasidwon ssousleme pnelj Jaysausl yjuow z| Buyjos v 910 pue gH ul paAjoAul Je
oym seakojdws |e 0} Buiuiesy sssusieme
"alemyos Buiuies pnel} jo swweiboid Buiobuo ue e
paseyoind sey 80IA18g Uojexe | (2007 pue sjyousg $s9001d UORONPUI LEYS
SU SIL Laim Jsisse 0o, “Buiuten uononpul sinyny jje 3y} jo yed se Buuies) sssusieme pnelj e
LH | peiejdwod | ojul psjelodiodur aq [jim Bujulel ] sseusiemy pnel
:Buipinoid Aq sjeussyes pnesy Ajijenb sabeinoouy
Muoud wnipspy
‘89jilwo) ,
1PNy S|gejieA. JXauU ay} Je siaquisl Wouj slequisiy
10100 Aq yBnos aq |jIm Juswasiopus "uo payNsuos Buiaq Aq jusesiopus syaes pue Ajusisisuod
41| ®igdwon S| pue pasiaal Ajiny ueaq sey Aoljod uonoues ay | Jl saidde ‘Adijod suoioues s smeiney

aog|d

ui ind si senssi Bupjiom juiol Aue sajossy

0} ss@00.d uole|eoss ue pue Bupjiom
jutof Builoyuow Joj wisiueyosw & e

| Xipuaddy
ue|d asuodsay — suoljepuswiwioday |4g




Page 79

‘|wooul pue |ended uo syjuswalinbal

oy} ssau}s Alejnoiped |im siyy ‘pabuelle ussq osje . mEEquo O swodul

SABY JB1S SWIe|D MSN 104 sjuswalinbal uonesiyiian pue [eydeo sy} ‘Bulkyien pue ‘Buiysiiqelse

uo sBulaug "Buiurer) Jaysalj-a1 UOHEOHLIOA [BNUUE Aling jo souepodwl ayy uo Buutes Jeysaiyel
1H | peeidwon 8pnjoul 0} pamainel ussq sey ueld Bulurel| sy OAIB08I S10SSOsse sjsuag jey} sainsug | |, L

Buiurely ssysaljel [enuue sald8]

pue soueping Alnoeg g1 0/gH s uawpeds(

R 9y} Jo sjuswalinbal sy ul pauiel) ale saljusd
/1H | paeidwon aoe|d ul uejd — paaiby SOIIBS JBWolsny Ul Jes j|e jey seinsuz | ¢

Arioud mo

"9SBO 8} 9A|0SBI 0} B|gBUN UB3q saseo ajelidoisdde up uonebisanul

SBU JUSWUBAJOAU] O\ SISYM SPEL 8] [[IM WEeS | JO UoljelapISU0D Joj Wweay uojeblsanu|

pnel4 ay} o} |eligjal piemuo ue ‘uonebiysaaul jeniul pnel4 sy} o} Aejop Jnoypm palisjes si jlew
Od | pejejdwo) | Joj wes| Bunisip ay) o} passed aq |Im sjellael ||y JO3lIpaY jou oQ, jey} os sainpadolid sdojansq A

Jawojsno

8y} Jnoueswap 8y} Jnoge uonewloul Buipnpou

‘MaIAIBlUl By} Jo Arewiwins aAlsuayaidwod

e sapinold Ajsunnol Jo uonnossoud

0} eAljeusslje ue se passpisuod Buiaq si Ajeusad

1S SAljelisiulWpe 10 UoNEeD B alaym uonnes
/99 | pajeidwod ‘paulelqo aq im siduosuel; Jey) paaiby Jopun smainisjul pade) Jo syduosues sulelqo | |y

Ajonijoaye pue

‘s|elI)ol Apusioye pajonpuod Buieq ale Asyj jey) sinsus

18 0 uoneoo|je pue Buipiodss sy} 1o} sseooid ajbuis e 0} suonebisaul jo Buisiel 8y} pue sjesssyal Jo
/99 | pajedwo) | ul Buiynsal pemsinsi usaq aney s8sse00id [el1a)ey Buipiooai sy 0} Bunejes sesseooid syt smeiney oL

‘Asuow

10} ®NjeA SaINSUs YdIym Uonn|os e JO UOI09|es wajsAs || oyroads-pnely

8y} 10} syjuswalinbas swes | pnei4 ay} Ajoads B Uum sseqejep pnelyj sl 9oejdal 0] papiwqgns
41 Buiobup Alzes(o o1 || yum diysisuped uj Bupiom Apuaiing 9SO $SdUISN] 8y} UO UOISIOSp aAl)isod e saye| 6

| Xipuaddy

uejd ®mCOQm®E — SUOoljepuswiwioday |49




Page 80

90IAI9G S}ijouag ay} Jo sypne
alninj Ul yoeoidde paseq ysu sy} ojul pajesodiooul ‘Splepuelg aouewliopsd s juswuedsqg sy
g [IIm pue }ipny [eulsju| 0} passed usaq aAey | jsuiebe wes) uoleblisanul pnel pue wes) sjysuag
Spiepuels sdueWION®d @Yl "paseq sl sisiy} | 8y} jo eouewiouad sy} Jo Juswssasse ue Buipnjoul
MY | pajejdwo) | ‘ueid jipne psfeuew paaibe ue aey Jipny |euisiu| Aq syjuswabuelre yipne [euss)u) sy seoueyuy | 0z
‘sainpaooid sjuswAediano
pue swie|jo pskojdws-j8s uo 1aqojoQ Buunp
welbouid Buiuresy e uy Bupinsal ‘spssu Buluies paulejurew si buiures} peje|duwiod Jo piodal sjep
llay) possesse aney swesy) || ‘papusye $esinod -0}-dn ue pue ‘yejs sjjeusg 104 siskjeue spesu
1H | paigjdwon 108|jal 0} pajep dn usaq aAey splodal Buiuiel | Buiures syep-o}-dn ue st aisy) Jey) sainsug 61
swiep g19/gH 1o Juswssasse
80 AON Aq SU} Ul PSAJOAUL JE]S |[e Wl paulelqo
41| 8’dwon poaiby S.1B }SSI9JUI JO SUOIEIB|OSD [eNuUUe Jey) sainsug | g
‘90e|d SO)B} MBIASI U} SB PaIapISu0d |0Ju0d uoisIaA 0} pajosigns pue
94 ||m Aoljod uonuslal yels e ul siyy spnjoul pajepdn Auenbal ‘pajuswinoop ale sainpssoid
0} wwmﬂ MOU UOo mI Sﬁg COMMWSOW_Q mOm_Q mC_v_Nu pue mm_O:OQ mwm._OQ._OO u.mfz. salnsus pue
gl BulobuQ S| sepelf pue ainjonlis S2IAISS By} JO MBIASI VY Adijod uonuejal yejs e sjuswsidwi pue sdojersg /L
MOJ|0} 0} seinpadold 081100 8y} Uo
L ‘sBunesw |z 1e dn paxoeq aq |Im souepinb ajep-0}-dn 0} SS800B BABY S)USWINIOP
/LH | palejdwo) | pue yeis 0] panssi-al Usaq sey soueping — paaiby AjlIaA pue aA19081 OUM Yels Jey) sainsug 9l
"a0e|d e} SHo8YD Y
19peS| WES | JO UOHEPI[EA B} PUB POISAOD ale dJe H}IOM UOIBOlLISA JO s}oadse e Jey) os awibai
L0 AON Aq | sesseoo0id uoijeoyiian Jey} ainsus o} pssiaal Buiaq Buioayo s) smeinal pue sxoeyd Aoeinode Jepes)
aje|dwon aJe sainpasoid Buposyd Juswabeuey — pasiby wes| sjepljen siabeuew sjysusg jey) seinsug Gl
I Xipuaddy

ue|d ®suodsay — SUOIIEPUBLIWOSaY [{g




Page 81 Agenda ltem 10

Haringey Council

Agenda item: [No ]
Audit Committee On 28 January 2008

Report Title: Risk Management Progress Report — 2007/08

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): N/A

Report of: Head of Audit and Risk Management

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose

To inform the Audit Committee of the work undertaken to implement the council’s risk
management strategy during 2007/08.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the Audit Committee notes the progress made during 2007/08 to date and
agrees the approach set out in section 6 of the report.

Report Authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

3. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

3.1 For access to the background papers or any further information please contact Anne
Woods on 0208 489 5973.

4. Background

4.1 The Council’s revised Risk Management strategy was approved by CEMB, and the
Audit Committee, in October 2005. This document is reviewed on an annual basis.
Consultation on a revised and updated strategy is currently ongoing and the final
version will be brought to the next Audit Committee for final approval.



Page 82

4.2 During 2007/08, Internal Audit has been working with business unit and departmental
representatives to review, test and update the risk registers. The review and testing of
risk registers formed part of the 2007/08 annual audit plan and will be an ongoing
process in 2008/09 to ensure the key controls to manage identified risks are effective
and operate as intended. This will also ensure compliance with the agreed strategy.

4.3 At the last Audit Committee, members requested a detailed summary of progress
across the council to ensure that their responsibilities according to the committee terms
of reference were being appropriately discharged. This report provides an update on
progress since October 2007, and identifies those processes which will continue during
2008/09 as part of the annual audit plan.

5. Progress during 2007/08

5.1The Council underwent a re-shaping exercise during the last quarter of 2006/07, with
new directorates in place from April 2007. There were changes in the reporting
arrangements for some business units as a result of the reshaping exercise. Internal
audit worked with both business units and directorates to realign risk business unit and
departmental risk registers within the new reporting arrangements during 2007/08.

5.2Training was given and workshops held on risk management to managers and staff by
Internal Audit during the year as responsibilities for risk management changed and/or
new staff were appointed. Training on risk management was also provided to Audit
Committee members during 2007/08 by an external facilitator.

5.3Table 1 below shows the progress made to date during the current financial year in
reviewing and updating the risk registers at corporate, departmental and business unit
level. This is an ongoing process and business unit and departmental registers are
updated in line with the business planning timetable to reflect current and ongoing
priorities.

5.4 All Business Units' risk registers reflect the agreed 2007/08 business plans and
departmental risk registers have been agreed by respective management teams.
Managers are required to formally consider their key business unit risks as part of their
Pre-Business Plan Review submissions (September) and again when they submit their
final business plans (March). Table 1 below provides a summary of each risk register as
at January 2008.

5.5The testing of risk registers by Internal Audit has continued during 2007/08, based on
the revisions and updates made by business units. During 2007/08 to date, Internal
Audit has tested the controls specified for the risk register of recreation services and
has provided advice and support as part of the compilation of the risk registers for
various key council-wide projects including the re-tender and implementation plan for
the new banking arrangements and the supporting people programme.

5.6In addition to risk registers, the council has been working towards embedding risk
management processes across all its key functions and processes. Risk management
is part of the business planning process, including the pre-business plan review stage
and the final business plans, where business units are required to consider the key risks
to the achievement of their objectives.

Page 2 of 4



Page 83

Table 1 — as at January 2008

Department Level Register Title Risk Register status
1 Corporate - CEMB |Corporate |Corporate Register Updated January 08 — for
approval 29/01/08
2 CE - Policy Dept Policy Performance Partnerships & |Updated & agreed by
Performance Communication mgmt January 08
Partnerships &
Communication
3 CE - PPPC BU Safer Communities Updated & agreed by
mgmt August 07
4 CE - PPPC BU Neighbourhood Management Updated & agreed by
mgmt January 08
5 CE - PPPC BU Communications Updated & agreed by
mgmt January 08
6 CE - PPPC BU Improvement and Performance Updated & agreed by
mgmt January 08
7 CE- Dept Organisational Development Updated & agreed by
Organisational mgmt January 08
Development
8 CE-0OD BU Human Resources Updated & agreed by
mgmt January 08
9 CE-OD BU Local Democracy and Member Updated & agreed by
Support mgmt January 08
10 |CE-OD BU Organisational Development & Updated & agreed by
Learning mgmt January 08
11 |Corporate Dept Corporate Resources Updated & agreed by
Resources (CR) mgmt January 08
12 |ICR BU Legal Services Updated & agreed by
mgmt August 07
13 |ICR BU IT Services Updated & agreed by
mgmt December 08
14 |CR BU Customer Services Updated & agreed by
mgmt December 07
15 |CR BU Benefits & Local Taxation Updated & agreed by
mgmt November 07
16 |CR BU Corporate Finance Updated & agreed by
mgmt October 07
17 |CR BU Audit & Risk Management Updated & agreed by
mgmt October 07
18 |ICR BU Corporate Procurement Updated & agreed by
mgmt August 07
19 |CR BU Corporate Property Services Updated & agreed by
mgmt July 07
20 |Children and Dept Children and Young People’s Updated & agreed by
Young People’s Service mgmt December 07
Service (CYPS)
21 |CYPS BU Children & Families Updated & agreed by
mgmt December 07
22 |CYPS BU School Standards and Inclusion Updated & agreed by
mgmt December 07
23 |CYPS BU Business Support & Development Updated & agreed by

mgmt December 07

Page 3 of 4



Page 84

Department Level Register Title Risk Register status
24 |Adults Culture and |Dept Adults Culture and Community Updated & agreed by
Community Services mgmt October 07
Services (ACCS)
25 |ACCS BU Commissioning & Strategy Updated & agreed by
mgmt October 07
26 |ACCS BU Adult Services Updated & agreed by
mgmt October 07
27 |ACCS BU Recreation Services Updated & agreed by
mgmt August 07
28 |ACCS BU Adult learning, Libraries & Culture Updated & agreed by
mgmt October 07
29 |Urban Environment |Dept Urban Environment Updated & agreed by
(UE) mgmt December 07
30 |UE BU Strategic & Community Housing Updated & agreed by
mgmt July 07
31 JUE BU Street scene Updated & agreed by
mgmt December 07
32 |UE BU Planning & Environment Control Updated & agreed by
mgmt October 07
33 |UE BU Enforcement Updated & agreed by
mgmt December 07

6. The planned programme

6.1 Internal audit will continue with the programme of support and assistance to departments
and nominated representatives to ensure that all risk registers are maintained
appropriately. In addition, the annual audit plan has dedicated resources included to test
the effectiveness of the controls identified in key areas. Resources will be included in the
2008/09 annual audit plan to continue with this work.

6.2 In order to assess the progress made across the council, compliance with the overall risk
management strategy and its implementation has been included in the 2007/08 audit
plan and will be reviewed towards the end of the financial year. The outcome of this will
be reported to the Audit Committee as part of the regular quarterly reporting process.

6.3 As part of the process to update and review risk management arrangements, the
council’s risk management strategy will be updated to reflect the progress made to date.
The Audit Committee will be provided with the revised risk management strategy for
approval. The revised strategy will incorporate recommendations made by the Audit
Commission as part of their Use of Resources review.

6.4 Regular reports will be made to the Audit Committee and CEMB during 2008/09 on risk
management and the implementation of the strategy. The Audit Committee will receive
the corporate risk register for review twice per year and the Head of Audit will highlight
any significant issues as a result of the testing of risk registers to the Audit Committee as
part of the quarterly reporting process. Any urgent issues will be brought to members’
attention in accordance with current reporting arrangements.

Page 4 of 4



Page 85 Agenda Item 11

Haringey Council

Agenda item: [NO ]
Audit Committee On 28 January 2008

Report Title: Interception of Communication Commissioner’s Office (ICCO)
Inspection 2007/08

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): N/A

Report of: Head of Audit and Risk Management

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose

1.1To inform the Audit Committee of the inspection visit made to Haringey by the
Inspector from the ICCO and the recommendations made as a result.

1.2To inform the Audit Committee of the actions taken to address the ICCO
recommendations in order to ensure that these are appropriately addressed.

2. Recommendations
2.1 That the Audit Committee notes the content of the ICCO inspection report.

2.2 That the Audit Committee notes the action plan to address the recommendations
made by the ICCO inspector.

Report Authorised by: Chief Financial Officer | ?%

% :
DR B W

s

Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

3. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

3.1 For access to the background papers or any further information please contact Anne
Woods on 0208 489 5973.




Page 86

4. Background

4.1 An inspection of the Council’s policies and procedures relating to Part 1 Chapter 2 of
the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) 2000 was conducted by an
Inspector from the Interception of Communication Commissioner’'s Office (ICCO). The
ICCO is responsible for ensuring that organisations which are authorised to access
communications data under Part 1 chapter 2 of RIPA comply with relevant legislation.
The ICCO provides advice and guidance both on compliance with RIPA and good
practice.

4.2The ICCO acts independently to the Chief Surveillance Commissioner. Both
Commissioners have statutory duties in relation to RIPA and the oversight of parts of
the legislation, but their respective inspection teams act independently. Haringey has
previously been inspected by the Chief Surveillance Commissioner and the reports
together with the council’s responses have been provided to the Audit Committee for
information and approval. The Chief Surveillance Commissioner is primarily concerned
with the issue of directed surveillance under RIPA.

4.3 The ICCQO’s primary objectives of inspections are to :

» Ensure that the system in place for acquiring and disclosing communications data is
sufficient for the purposes of the Act and that all relevant records have been kept for
annual inspection:

e Ensure that all accessing of communications data has been carried out lawfully and
in accordance with the Human Rights Act, Part 1 Chapter 2 of RIPA and the
associated draft code of practice;

e Provide independent oversight to the process and verify that the data which has
been obtained is necessary and proportionate to the conduct being authorised

e Ensure that errors are being reported and that systems are reviewed and adapted
in the light of any exposed weaknesses or faults;

¢ |dentify good and bad practice and disseminate findings to local authorities; and

» Ensure that persons engaged in the acquisition of data are adequately trained and
aware of the relevant parts of the legislation.

4.4 Haringey Council provides information to the ICCO on an annual basis in respect of
data obtained via Part 1 Chapter 2 of RIPA. The ICCO in turn reports to Parliament via
the Home Office and Secretary of State.

4.5 A report on the outcome of the inspection was received by the Chief Executive on 13
June 2007 from the ICCO. This is attached as Appendix A to this report. In summary,
the report concludes that communications data is being obtained lawfully and for the
correct purpose.

4.6 Whilst the ICCO Inspector stated that the council is obtaining communications data
lawfully, the report at Appendix A does contain some suggestions for improving the
applications of the required processes. An action plan has been completed and is
attached at Appendix B to this report.

4.7 Conformation was sent to the ICCO in September 2007 that the recommendations
raised would be accepted and implemented.

Page 2 of 3



Page 87

5. The Inspection

5.1The ICCO Inspector met with the Head of Audit & Risk Management (the Council’s lead
officer for RIPA), together with representatives from Legal Services and the
Enforcement Team within Urban Environment who are involved in RIPA processes for
communications data across the council.

5.2The ICCO Inspector reviewed and discussed the council’s policy and procedures
documentation in relation to their operation and good practice. A review of the
applications made in respect of communications data under RIPA was also undertaken.
Feedback from the ICCO Inspector during the course and at the end of the inspection
indicated that the council and its officers understood its role and responsibilities under
RIPA.

5.3The recommendations which were made by the ICCO Inspector are detailed at
Appendix B to this report. There were no significant weaknesses identified by the ICCO
Inspector, therefore the recommendations focused on improving processes to make the
best use of the legislation and ensure that good practice points were included within the
existing procedures.

5.4In some cases, recommendations could be implemented with immediate effect, and this
was done as soon as the report was received from the ICCO. Implementation of
recommendations in relation to new RIPA forms was delayed until the draft forms were
approved by the Home Office and released for general use. This was completed in
October 2007 and the new forms were integrated into the council's RIPA procedures.
Copies of the revised procedures and new Home Office RIPA forms were then
circulated to all authorising officers and details placed on the council’s intranet.

Page 3 of 3



Page 88

Covering - Restricted i
i

INTERCEPTION

OF
COMMUNICATIONS
COMMISSIONER'S
OFFICE

Dr lta O'Donovan
Haringey Council
Civic Centre
High Road
Wood Green
N22 8LE
13 June 2007

Dear Madam,

INSPECTION BY THE INTERCEPTION OF COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSIONER’S
OFFICE (I0CCO) — HARINGEY COUNCIL

Please receive the enclosed report which outlines the findings from the recent inspection of
the arrangements which are in place in relation to the acquisition of communications data
under Part | Chapter Il of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act.

I have sent copies of the report to Anne Woods (Head of Audit and Risk Management), Joyce
Golder (Principal Solicitor), Robin Payne (Assistant Director), Paul Boeuf (Team Leader for
Trading Standards) and Robert Curtis (Environmental Crime Service). Please feel free to
disseminate this report to any other members of your organisation, as you consider

appropriate.

Sir Paul Kennedy, Interception of Communications Commissioner, has seen the report and
approved its contents. As you will see from the report the Inspector was pleased with the
quality of the one application form which had been submitted and was satisfied that it was
necessary and proportionate. It is acknowledged that the current level of usage of RIPA
powers is very low and we feel the Council should consider whether it can make more use of
communications data as a powerful investigative tool to prevent and detect crime or disorder.
Itis hoped that the advice given during the inspection by Inspector Cloke will promote
increased use. Adoption of the new application form should also streamline the processes

and make them less bureaucratic.

Covering - Restricted




Page 89

Covering - Restricted

The inspection found that there were a number of omissions in relation to the role being
performed by the SPoC and Inspector Cloke has made some recommendations in the report
which should assist the Council to achieve the best possible level of compliance with the Act
and draft Code of Practice in this respect. Furthermore, it is worthy of note that when RIPA
was introduced undertakings were given to both Parliament and the Communications Service
Providers (CSP’s) that public authorities would have one Single Point of Contact per public
authority. Therefore we have recommended that if another department, such as
Environmental Crime Services needs to acquire communications data, that they use the
SPoC within Trading Standards. l

A number of other action points flow from the inspection and these are contained in the Action
Plan appended to the report. | believe that most of the action points can be dealt with fairly
easily and quickly and within two months from receipt of the report. However if more time is
required please let me know. | should be grateful if you would acknowledge receipt of the
report and indicate by 12 August 2007 or earlier whether you accept the findings. The
completed Action Plan should be returned when all of the action points have been dealt with.

Any feedback you wish to provide regarding the conduct of the inspection would be most
welcome. Currently it is our intention to carry out a further inspection in about 12 month’s
time. If you or a member of your staff requires any further information please do not hesitate

to contact me at the address below.

Finally on behalf of the Commissioner | wish to thank you and your staff for the excellent
assistance and cooperation which enabled Inspector Cloke to conduct the inspection in a

positive and constructive manner.

/Y Joanna Cavan
Acting Chief Inspector
I0CCO

Covering - Restricted




Page 90
RESTRICTED

INTERCEPTION

OF
COMMUNICATIONS
COMMISSIONER'S
OFFIGE

Local Authority Inspections
by the Interception of Communications
Commissioner’s Office

London Borough Council of Haringey
20 March 2007

RESTRICTED



Page 91



Page 92

RESTRICTED
INDEX
Section
1. Introduction
2. Haringey Council
3. Opening Discussions
4, Systems & Procedures in place for the acquisition

of communications data
o Applications
SPoC Arrangements
Designated Person Considerations
Notices

& & @

5. Content of Applications

6. Record keeping and security & storage of documents
7. Training of public authority staff

8. Errorreporling

9. Summary and requirement for action

Appendix - Action Plan

RESTRICTED

Page

3 O3 W L&) s

s
L

12

13

13



1.2

2.1

2.2

Page 93
RESTRICTED

infroduction

Between the hours of 10:00 hours and 13:30 hours on Tuesday 20t
March 2007 | visited Haringey Council fo inspect the
arrangements in place in relation to the acquisition and
disclosure of communications data under Part | Chapter Il of the
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act. This was the first formal
inspection of this Public Authority.

I was assisted throughout my visit by Anne Woods, the Senior
Responsible Officer and Head of Audit and Risk Management.
Also present for the first phase of the inspection was Joyce
Golder, the Councils Principal Solicitor; Robin Payne, an Assistant
Director and potential Designated Person (DP) and Paul Boeuf,
the Team Leader for Trading Standards and accredited officer
(AO) in the SPoC. There is a second AQO, Robert Curtis, who is
part of the Councils Environmental Crime Service, who was
unavailable on the day of the inspection.

Haringey Council

The SPoC is located in the Trading Standards Department in the
Haringey Council Offices in the Wood Green area of London.
The SPoC services all of the Council departments who require
access to communications data. The only users in the past have
been Trading Standards and Environmental Crime Services. In
preparing for the inspection the Council had supplied a nil return
for the use of communications data in the current year and had
reported two applications for data in the previous year. This had
been a misunderstanding as there had only been one
application for $21(4)(c) account information made by a
member of the Trading Standards Department.

There is potential for the Housing Benefit Fraud Department to
acquire communications data. The SRO confirmed during the
inspection that the Housing Benefits staff had not acquired
communications data and would be applying through the SPoC
in Trading Standards if the need arises rather than using powers
under the Social Security and Fraud Act. This would be supported
by IOCCO as although the Social Security legislation is lawful the
Council should bear in mind that following parliamentary debate
the Government created a single regulatory regime under RIPA
under which public authorities (including local authorities) would
have the power to obtain communications data. The oversight
of the exercise of these powers is the responsibility of the
Interception of Communications Commissioner and the means
of redress for complainants is through the Investigatory Powers

RESTRICTED 3



3.1

3.2

Page 94
RESTRICTED

Tribunal. Furthermore the draft Code of Practice for Part |
Chapter Il of RIPA states that “relevant public authorities for the
purposes of Chapter Il of Part | of the Act should not use other
statutory powers to obtain communications data from a postal
or telecommunications operator unless that power is conferred
by a warrant or order issued by the Secretary of State or a person
holding judicial office.” It should also be noted that under the
SSFA local authorities are restricted to subscriber information only,
whereas the power under RIPA is much wider and it enables
investigators to obtain data relating to the use of a service which
includes itemised call records. This could be quite valuable to the
investigator providing he or she can justify that it is both
necessary and proportionate to obtain it. | have been to other
local authorities who have adopted the policy that they will only
use RIPA to acquire communications data and | recommend
that Haringey do the same (Action Point 1).

Opening Discussions

Initial discussions were held with Anne Woods, Joyce Golder and
Robin Payne. The statutory oversight role of the Interception
Commissioner Sir Paul Kennedy in relation to the acquisition of
communications data was explained together with the role of
the inspectors.

The primary objectives of the inspection were outlined, these
being to:

Ensure that the system in place for acquiring and disclosing
communications data is sufficient for the purposes of the Act
and that all relevant records have been kept for annual
inspection.

Ensure that all acquisition of communications data has been
carried out lawfully and in accordance with the HRA, Part |
Chapter Il of RIPA and the associated Draft Code of Practice
(the Code).

Provide independent oversight to the process and check that
the data which has been obtained is necessary and
proportionate to the conduct being authorised.

Ensure that errors are being reported and that the systems are
reviewed and adapted in the light of any exposed weaknesses
or faults.

Identify good and bad practice and disseminate our findings to
the local authorities through LACORS, after consultation with the
Home Office Covert Policy Group.

Ensure that persons engaged in the acquisition of data are
adequately trained and are aware of the relevant parts of the
legislation.

RESTRICTED 4



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Page 95
RESTRICTED

Systems and procedures in place for the acquisition of
communications data ‘

Currently applicants acquire an application form online. They
complete this either electronically or print it off and complete by
hand. The form is passed directly to the SPoC.

Applications - The application form used by the Council complies
fully with the draft Code of Practice however it is based on the
original form supplied by the Home Office therefore it does
contain some extra requirements many of which add to the
unnecessary bureaucracy. The current forms are considered to
be overly complex and cause a lot of duplication of information.
Before visiting the council | had recommended that they
examine the new Home Office application form template which
incorporates improvements on the original Home Office versions
and combines the application, SPoC Report and Designated
Persons considerations. | recommend that Haringey Council
adopt this new application form as this will sfreamline the process
considerably and, as will be outlined below, will address some
current omissions in the SPoC process (Action Point 2). The SPoC
can modify the template to suit the particular needs of the
Council i.e. by deleting all of the statutory purposes other than
Section 22(2)(b).

| can advise that the Commissioner is happy to support the use of
e-mail to route the applications, provided a clear audit trail exists
and the e-mail attachments are retained for this purpose. The
application can be routed from the applicant to the accredited
officer (AO), who then prepares the relevant $22(4) Notices and
then forwards these with the application onto the DP. The DP
can complete his considerations and approval, insert the time
and date of issue on any $22(4) Notices, and return the
documents to the AO. It would be appropriate to retain the
records electronically and only print a hard copy when it is
required.

SPoC Arrangements - There are two part time accredited officers
(AO:s) in the SPoC; Paul Boeuf, Team Leader for Trading
Standards, operating out of the Civic Centre and Robert Curtis of
the Environmental Crime Services operating out of offices in High
Road, Tottenham.

It is worthy of note that when RIPA was infroduced undertakings
were given to both Parliament and the Communications Service
Providers (CSP’s) that public authorities would have one Single

RESTRICTED 5



4.6

4.7

4.8

Page 96
RESTRICTED

Point of Contact per public authority. Given the low volume of
applications dealt with | would suggest that it is not really
necessary to have more than one SPoC office within the Council.
Having one centralised SPoC within the authority placed under
the control of one department (i.e. Trading Standards) would
bring significant savings in costs and resources. It would also assist
IOCCO to have one central SPoC (which can be made up of a
number of AO’s) because there is a requirement under the draft
Code of Practice for each public authority to keep a central
record of all applications and make them available for
inspection. The SPoC within the Trading Standards Team needs to
ensure it is achieving a fairly good level of compliance and in the
future we would recommend that if another department, such
as Environmental Crime Services, needs to acquire
communications data, that they use the SPoC within the Trading
Standards Team (Action Point 3).

The AOs were not maintaining a central record of applications
and this is in part due to the low volume of applications. |
explained the benefits of using a central record (preferably on a
spreadsheet) to help manage the system if the number of
applications increases as well as to make it more eqasy to provide
the records and statistics to the Commissioner as outlined in the
Code. Anne Woods demonstrated the spreadsheet in use for
managing RIPA Part Il applications and | agreed that a similar
version for RIPA Part | applications would suffice. This record will
ensure that the SPoC can supply the records required of the
legislation as well as evidencing them performing their ‘guardian
and gatekeeper’ role as defined in the Code (Action Point 4).

One of the first actions by the SPoC is to allocate a unigque
reference number (URN) to each application. The system in use
by Haringey was a sequential number followed by the name of
the CSP, for example 3/BT. | recommended that they apply the
standard URN configuration that has developed in the majority
of SPoCs. That is HARLBC (to identify the Public Authority),
followed by a sequential number, followed by the year and in
the case of a notice, the same URN followed by a sequential
number for each notice. For example the first application for
2007 would be HARLBC/1/07 and the first notice emanating from
that application would have the URN: HARLBC/1/07/N1. This
should make it easier for the Council to keep track of
applications which have more than one notice issued from them
(Action Point 5).

If there are quality issues to be resolved the applicant is usually
consulted as they are in a neighbouring office. There is no

RESTRICTED 6



4.9

4.10

Page 97
RESTRICTED

record of these regular consultations and therefore no means of
evidencing the SPoC performing their ‘guardian and
gatekeeper’ role as outlined in the Code. The more
comprehensive central record should identify applications
returned for correction or development and the
recommendation made in Para 4.9 below will ensure a record is
made in relation to the content of these consultations.

The AO was not completing SPoC log sheets in relation to each
application and therefore there was a lack of an audit frail in
relation to the actions taken by the AO right from the start of the
application process through to the completion. Often where the
AO had spoken to the applicant or the CSP, this information was
not being recorded. For example, SPoC log sheets are
particularly useful to record the actions taken when it is
discovered that a number has been ported to another CSP, i.e.
‘first CSP replied and outlined number has been ported therefore
second notice drafted, sent to DP for issuing and served on new
CSP." It would be difficult with the current format to understand
the sequence of events which occurred in such a circumstance.
A SPoC log sheet should contain information such as the date
the application was received, date notices were drafted and
sent to the designated person for approval, the date any notices
were served on the CSP’s, the date the result/s were received
and any communication which has taken place between the
SPoC and the applicant, CSP or designated person. The SPoC
log sheet should identify the AO who has completed each entry.
I recommend that the AO should maintain a SPoC log sheet for
each application to ensure there is an audit trail of all of the
actions taken by the AO from the start to the end of the process
(Action Point 6).

When an application is of the required standard the AO is
carrying out a feasibility study. However this is not being
recorded at present as the AO was unfamiliar with the concept
of a SPoC Report. | explained the purpose of a SPoC Report and
the duty of the AO to appropriately advise the DP in relation o
cost and feasibility as well as recording any additional
information for the designated person to consider when
approving the application. The SPoC report is included within the
new application form which streamlines this process and |
recommend that the AO ensures that this section of the
application is completed (Action Point 7).

The AOs were passing the application, draft notice and blank
considerations form to the DP. When approved the AO was
requiring the applicant to fax the notice to the appropriate CSP

RESTRICTED 7



413

Page 98
RESTRICTED

and the data was then returned by the CSP to the applicant. As
outlined in the Code, it is the role of the SPoC to facilitate the
lawful acquisition of communications data and effective co-
operation between the public authority and the CSP. Therefore
the SPoC should be acting as the conduit between the public
authority and the CSP, not the applicant. Furthermore it is the
role of the SPoC to provide assurance to the CSPs that notices
are authentic and lawful and also to assess whether the
communications data disclosed by a CSP in response to a notice
fulfils the requirements of that the notice. If the data is going
straight back to the applicant then the SPoC is not in @ position
to perform this important function. Consequently | recommend
that AO should serve any Notices on the CSP and the data
should be disclosed back to the SPoC. It is good practice for the
SPoC to then hold the original or *gold copy' of the data
securely and the SPoC should forward a copy to the applicant.
All these actions should be recorded on the SPoC log sheet
(Action Point 8).

Designated Persons Considerations - Keith Betts, Group Manager
acted as the designated person (DP) for the one application
which had been made. In his absence it is suggested that Robin
Payne, the Assistant Director may act as DP. This would comply
with the statutory instrument which outlines that the prescribed
officer within a Council must be an Assistant Chief Officer,
Assistant Head of Service, Service Manager or equivalent.

Designated Persons should not be responsible for giving a notice
in relation to investigations or operations in which they are
directly involved. Anne Woods is aware of this requirement and
considers that both potential DPs are independent of all the
applications that may come to them. In the event of the DPs
becoming directly involved in an operation | recommend that
their involvement in the investigation and their justification for
undertaking the role of the designated person must be explicit in
their written considerations or alternatively the application could
be passed to another DP for approval (Action Point 9).

In the only application submitted in the past twelve months the
Group Manager, Keith Betts had recorded his considerations on
necessity, proportionality and collateral intrusion in writing when
approving the application. | found that his considerations were
of reasonable quality. The DP signed the S22(4) notice, however
he omitted to date the notice which is a requirement of the
Code. | recommend that the DPs ensure in the future that they
sign, date, and time if relevant, their approval of the application
form and any $22(4) notices in order to comply with the draft

RESTRICTED 8



4.16

4.17

Page 99
RESTRICTED

Code of Practice. Omission of this information constitutes an error
(Action Point 10).

| offer the following advice to assist the DPs make their
considerations robust and immune to challenge. Firstly it is
fundamentally important that DPs must be able to evidence the
fact that they have read and considered each application and
based their considerations upon the principles of necessity and
proportionality. Obviously it is a matter for the individual DP to
decide how to demonstrate this effectively, bearing in mind that
he or she could be called upon to justifty the considerations at a
later date in Court or at a Tribunal hearing. It may well be
appropriate in some cases to merely record the fact that the DP
has read and considered the application, examined the SPoC
Report and Notice and that he or she believes that obtaining the
data in question is necessary and that obtaining the data by the
proposed conduct is proportionate to what is sought to be
achieved by obtaining the data or words to that effect. This
would largely depend upon the quality of the application and
whether the DP is fully satisfied that the applicant has made out
a strong case in all respects.

In practice the standard of applications will vary according to
the knowledge and experience of the applicant and therefore
the DP will often be required to make a more detailed
judgement. Equally it may be that the application is for service
use data such as billing information which is more intrusive data
than the standard subscriber check. The DP comments can then
be linked to other information on the application. The DP may
be able to make a comment upon the wider strategic objective
such as an operation against a team involved in illegal ‘loan
sharking' or in the case of service use data the DP should
consider whether the timescales requested are proportionate.
For these reasons IOCCO recommends that the DP should tailor
their comments o the individual applications as this is the best
means of demonstrating that they have been properly
considered (Action Point 11).

| also make the point that adoption of the new application form
template (as previously recommended in para 4.2 of this report)
will streamline this process further as the DP only needs to record
his considerations in one box.

Notices - The notice currently in use by Haringey Council is
considered overly complex. It is recommended that the Council
adopts the new Home Office template for the Notice which is
available from the same source as the application form as it is

RESTRICTED 9



4.19

5.2

5.3

5.4

Page 100
RESTRICTED

less complex and more streamlined. This can be modified to suit
the particular needs of the Council i.e. by deleting all of the
statutory purposes other than Section 22(2)(b). The AO should
also ensure that the DP has recorded the date of issue (and
where appropriate the time) on any $22(4) notices before they
are served on the CSP (Action Point 12).

The Council have not found it necessary to cancel any noftices to
date. | am satisfied that the AOs and the DPs are fully conversant
with the procedures surrounding cancellations. The local
guidance notes at 1.11 state that a notice must be cancelled if it
is no longer required.

Content of Applications

| would normally examine a larger sample of applications but
due to the infrequent use of the powers this was not possible. The
only application was made by Georgina Forde, a trading
standards officer, and requested subscriber data under $2(4)(c). |
examined this application and overall found it to be of good
quality.

The ‘nature of the enquiry’ section of the application form
contained good background information. It clearly specified the
offence under investigation and named the suspect. The source
of the telephone number obtained was given as an
advertisement. In the ‘necessity’ section the application outlined
that the subscriber information would assist in locating the
suspect for a PACE interview, which although relevant
information, it in fact addresses the principle of proportionality.
The ‘proportionality’ section set out the investigative objectives
as locating the subject to facilitate a visit or letter. Collateral
intrusion stated that the only data sought was the correct
address for the suspect, but did not outline what collateral
intrusion there would be, if any.

To assist other applicants | spent some time clarifying with the
staff present how each section of the new application form
should be completed.

Firstly the new application form will merge the nature of enquiry
and necessity sections into one which should reduce the
repetition. | can advise that in essence necessity should be a
short explanation of the crime (relevant Act or legislation), the
suspect, victim or withess and the phone or communications
address and how all these three link together. The source of the

RESTRICTED 10



5.5

5.6

5.7

6.1

Page 101
RESTRICTED

telephone number or communications address should also be
outlined.

| can advise that in the proportionality section on the new
application form applicants should outline what they expect to
achieve from obtaining the data and how the level of infrusion is
justified when taking into consideration the benefit the data will
give to the investigation. Applicants should give an explanation
as to why specific date/time periods of data have been
requested (how these are proportionate). An explanation of
what is going to be done with the communications data once it
is acquired and how that action will benefit the investigation or
operation will assist with the justification of proportionality.

| can advise that although collateral intrusion is generally minimal
on a subscriber check, it is still important for the applicant to
consider what collateral intrusion may occur as a result of the
request and how this will be managed. In some cases it will be
clear that the suspect / trader has been contacted on the
actual telephone number by the complainant or a Trading
Standards Officer and therefore this reduces the potential for
collateral infrusion. Applicants should also mention whether it is
known that the telephone number (or other type of data) has
been used to advertise the business, either in the press / internet
or on business cards / flyers, as this would also be good evidence
to show that the frader / suspect is actually using the telephone
number and further reduce the potential for collateral intrusion.
Collateral intrusion becomes more relevant when applying for
service use data and applicants should outline how the time
periods requested impact on the collateral intrusion, whether
they are likely to obtain data which is outside the realm of their
investigation and outline their plans for managing it.

I recommend that the SPoC should follow this guidance in the
future when vetting applications and should provide advice to
applicants where necessary (Action Point 13).

Record keeping and security & storage of documents

The Code outlines that certain records must be retained by the
public authority and must be made available for annual
inspection by the Interception of Communications Commissioner
and retained to allow the Investigatory Powers Tribunal,
established under Part IV of the Act, to carry out its functions.
These records were made available to me during the inspection
and therefore it is evident that the Council is complying with the
items covered in the draft code of practice. The introduction of

RESTRICTED 11



6.2

7.2

7.3

Page 102
RESTRICTED

a central record will assist further, particularly if there is an
increase in the use of the powers.

The applications for communications data are currently stored in
a locked cabinet within a secure office environment. This
cabinet is kept permanently locked and access is limited. IT

-access is username and password protected.

Training of public authority staff

The Legal Services Department of the Council in cooperation
with Greenwich have run RIPA training days which were
aftended by all staff, including the Chief Executive. The days
raised awareness of RIPA issues including the acquisition of
communications data. Investigators and Enforcement Officers
also receive training which includes one day covering the RIPA
powers.

Training for Haringey Council has been supplied to the SPoC
officers by Bond Solon. Unfortunately | found that the SPoC
officers were not aware of many of the vital procedures which
should be followed, such as SPoC Reports, SPoC log sheets and
the SPoC retaining the ‘gold copy’ of data received. A
significant amount of time throughout the inspection was spent
explaining these issues. It is also evident that the SPoC has been
working in isolation ‘and has not kept themselves up to date with
developments, such as the changes to the application forms
which were designed to streamline the process and reduce the
bureaucracy. | would also advise the Council to regularly visit the
Home Office website which contains the most up to date
documents and also to contact the Home Office Covert
Investigation Policy Team (who hold the SPoC accreditation list) if
they require any advice on policy issues in this area. | would also
recommend they liaise with neighbouring Councils to share
good practice. They have worked closely with Surrey County
Council on aregional ‘Scam Busters’ scheme supported by the
Department of Trade and Industry and both Councils may
benefit in sharing experiences in relation to the acquisition of
communications data.

There are online local guidance notes available for applicants. |
examined these and found them quite informative. There was
information at 1.8 in the guidance which referred to S22(3)
Authorisations and | recommended that this be amended due to
the fact that the council is only acquiring data via Notices. In
the same regard the references to the urgent oral process at
1.12 are not relevant to the work of the Council. There will be a

RESTRICTED 12



7.4

9.1

9.2

" Page 103
RESTRICTED

requirement to amend the guidance to include adyvice for the
applicants and DPs in relation to the new application form and
how it should be completed. This would also provide an
opportunity to bring all departments who could benefit from the
use of the powers together and promote appropriate use of this
valuable investigative aide (Action Point 14).

The Council should acquire the latest version of the draft Code of
Practice, ensure that AOs have possession of a copy and if
possible provide a link from the guidance notes to it (Action Point
15).

Error reporting

There had been no errors reported by the Council. However the
one application they made contained did contain an error as
the S22(4) Notice did not specify the date of issue which
constitutes non-compliance with the draft Code. | request that
this error is reported to the Commissioner using the error reporting
form. Reference should be made to the fact that this error was
found during the inspection so that the IOCCO Secretariat
appreciate this fact and do not follow it up unnecessarily (Action
Point 14).

Summary and Requirement for Action

Any access to communications data by public authorities is an
intrusion into someone’s privacy. To be justified, such intrusion
must satisfy the principles of necessity and proportionality
derived from ECHR and embedded in RIPA. It is therefore vital
that the correct procedures and rules are followed. If the
procedures are not complied with, then any intrusion into a
person’s privacy may be unlawful by virtue of HRA and a possible
action, through the courts (UK or ECHR, European Court of
Human Rights), being brought by a member of the public.
Additionally anyone who thinks their data has been wrongly
acquired will have the right to go to the Investigatory Powers
Tribunal.

Overall | was satisfied that communications data is being
obtained lawfully and for the correct purpose. | was satisfied that
the one application which had been made was necessary and
proportionate. Furthermore | was satisfied with the considerations
recorded by the DP when he approved the application. | have
provided some advice in the report which should assist the
applicants and designated persons in the future. Adoption of the

RESTRICTED 13



9.3

9.4

2.5

9.6

Page 104
RESTRICTED

new application form should also streamline the processes and
make them less bureaucratic.

There were a number of omissions in relation to the role being
performed by the SPoC. Firstly | have recommended that the
AOs should ensure that they are completing SPoC Reports and
SPoC log sheets which will assist with the audit trail and ensure
that they are carrying out their role as outlined in the Code.
Secondly | have recommended that the SPoC should ensure that
it acts as the conduit between the public authority and the CSPs,
by serving the notices on the CSPs, receiving the data disclosed
by the CSPs and storing the original data within the SPoC.

Furthermore, it is worthy of note that when RIPA was infroduced
undertakings were given to both Parliament and the
Communications Service Providers (CSP's) that public authorities
would have one Single Point of Contact per public authority. It is
not for me to tell the Council how to run its business but a
preferred solution would be to create a central SPoC which can
administer the whole process on behalf of the Council. It would
appear fo me that the Trading Standards Department is perhaps
best placed to do this as it is the more frequent user of the data.
Given the current low volume of requests for data across the
whole of the council it would probably be more efficient and
cost effective to centralise the process. It would also assist
IOCCO to have one central SPoC because there is a
requirement under the draft Code of Practice for each public
authority to keep a central record of all applications and make
them available for inspection. | see no problem with the trained
AO's in the two departments working together so long as they
are using the same systems and processes to acquire and
disclose the data. Therefore | have recommended that if another
department, such as Environmental Crime Services, needs to
acquire communications data, that they use the SPoC within the
Trading Standards Team.

A number of other action points arise from the inspection and
they are listed in the Appendix to the report. It would be
appreciated if the report could be acknowledged and if you
would indicate whether the findings and action points are
accepted. It would be the intention of the Inspectorate to re-visit
Haringey Council within a 12 month period to complete a further
inspection.

It is clear that the current level of usage of RIPA powers is very
low and the Council should consider whether it can make more
use of communications data as a powerful investigative tool to

RESTRICTED 14



Page 105
RESTRICTED

prevent and detect crime or disorder. It is hoped that the advice
given during the inspection will promote increased use and
improve the systems and procedures.

9.7 | am extremely grateful to Anne Woods and her colleagues for
the excellent assistance and cooperation which | received
during this visit.

Richard Cloke
Inspector

RESTRICTED 15



Page 106

9 jo | ebed

8yl YHIm 8ouepioooe
Ul swuoy padinbal

ay} a30|dwoo 03 /|ge
aq [|IIM OUM SJ821J0
Buisuoyine pue
si9oy40 o1eudosdde
1sowl sy Buisn

Blep SuoIBOIUNWIWOD
Joj suoneoidde sy

‘'sseo0ud

ay} ebeuew

0} suesWw 8y} se

(¥ uonepuBWIWIODaI
01 esuodsal syl

Ul paul|IN0) ploosl

‘wes] spJepueis Buipel] syl ulyim Dods

8y} esn Aay} 1eU] ‘elep SUOIIBOIUNWILLIOD alinboe 0} spesu
‘S9OIAISS SWIID) [BIJUSWUIUOIIAUT SEB Yons ‘Juslupedsp Jayjoue
Jl Teyl puswiLIODal PINOM M 8iNning 8y Ul pue esueljdwod

abeuew 03 snunuoo [eJ1U9D 8y} asljiIn | pesiby 0 [oA8] poob Aprey e Buinsiyoe s Yl 8iNsSus 0] spesu
[ IDUNOD 9y llim j1ounod eyl | Ajjerued wes] spJepuels Buipel| 8y} uiyum Dods 8yl - Gy eied
sjuswebueny Dods

‘'sainpadsoid

vdld paepdn

ojul pajesodiooul

pue USIA uoijoadsul

oy} buimojjo}
SJ9D10 JUBAS|a 'ssa00.4d D0dS
[|e 01 pa1e|NalI0 BU] Ul SUOISSIWIO JUalIND SWOS SSaIppe [|IM pue A|gelspisuod
WO} MBN $59004d 8y} uljwEeaJls ||IM SIY} Se Wwio) uoneolidde
‘pojuswis|dwl] | pesiby mau 8y} 1dope 1ouno) AsbueH 1By} puswiwoosy — Z'y eled
suoljeoiddy

/002 1800120 18uleH ‘uoljepuswLIosal
uo pepnoul pue | siyj jo uondope ayi 'ssauisng
SJeoly40 Buisuoyine | wiuod 01 palepdn S} JO ©SIn02 8y} Buunp e1ep suoiledIUNWWOD alinboe
[le 01 pole|noalio Aolj0d vdid 0} siemod ydly asn Ajuo |im Asyy 1ey) Aoljod sy Bundope
Koljod peyepdn ‘peusweidw] | psalby | JOpISUOd pINoys [1ouno) AsBulieH 1.y} puswiLooal | — 2°g eled

j1ouno) AsbuuenH

NV1d NOILOV ANV LISIA NOLLO3SdNI — 301440 S HINOISSINWOD SNOILLVOINNWINOD 40 NOILJIOHIALNI
g XION3IddV




Page 107

9 J0 g abey

JO} Juswipedsp pes)
Sk 0B 0} 8nuIlu0d |jIMm
UOISIAI( JUBWSDI0ug
ay] ‘Aousbin

JO 8oU8sqe JO 8sed

Ul J8A09 O AJINuIIUOD
ainsus pue spiaoid
01 S1uswaiinbal
00dS aui

ul peurel; Ajpreudoldde
ale s190140

oM} Jey} eieudoidde
p8JspISU0D

sl }| "uone|sibe

se) /0/1/09T1dVH oeJ} deey 0} [IoUno) U} IO} J8ISes Il 8xew pjnoys siy] 'sDodg
JO NHN peisebbng j0 Ajiolew ayy ul padojensp sey 1eyy uoleINBLuod NYN
a|dwi ‘pojusweldw| | pesiby pJepuejs 8y} ssljdde D0dS 9y} 1BY} pUSWIWIODaY — /' Bied
suinjal pue
SpJooal Alesseosu
lle jo uons|dwiod
10} mojje
0} }Je1s JueAs|al
[le 01 9|qIsse00r
apew pue "9P0D Y} Ul PBUI[INO SE JSUOISSILIWOD 8y} 0] SOIISie]s
pajeslo ussq sey pue sp.iooal sy spirnoid 0} ASes 8J0W | 8}l 0] Sk WolsAs
pJ1028l [edjus8d 8y} ebeuew djey o} (1eeyspealds e uo Ajgeisyaid) piodsi
‘pejusweldwl | pealby [BJ1US0 B sulejuew [19UNoY 8u} Jey} puswWossy — 9'y eled
‘00dS 8y}

NVd NOILLOV ANV LISIA NOILLO3SdNI — 301440 S HINOISSINWOD SNOLLYOINNWIWOD 40 NOILdIDHI1NI

g XION3ddVv




Page 108

9 Jo ¢ ebed

salnpadso.d
‘pojuswsidu)

paaiby

H "O0dS 843 01 Xoeq pesojosip &g pinoys eyep ay} pue 4S9 ayi
uo s990110N AUB 9AI8S PINOYS OV 1BY} PUSWILLIODSY — | L' Bied

‘'saJnpeoo.id

Ydid paiepdn

O1ul pajelodiooul
pue JISIA uoijoadsul
oy} Buimojjoy
SJ921J0 JUBAS|al

[|e O} pa1e|noI0
WO} MaN
‘pajuswis|duw]

paalby

'$$9004d 89U} JO pUS 8Y} 0] LIS By} WOl OV Ul Aq uee)
SUOIJOB BY} |[E JO |Ied} IipNe Uk si 818y} ainsus o} uoneoldde
M8U 8} UIYlIM papnjoul 1 Jodal DodS 8yl — 01 eled

‘sseoo.d

oy} ebeuew

0} sueaw ayj se

(7 uonepuUsSWWODS
0} 8suodsal syl

Ul pauljIno) piooal
[eJiusd 8yl asijiin
M Iounod eyl
‘pajusws|du]

peaiby

‘ssaoo.id
9} JO pud 8y} 0} Uels 8y} Wwolj OV eyl Ag usye) suolloe ayi (e

JO |leJ} Hpne ue S| aJay)] ainsus 0y uoleoldde yoes oy 188ys Boj

D0dS ke ulejuiew pinoys OV 8yl 18yl puslIWLIOssy — §' eled

‘paydope
(uoneoydde

SJlj 8y} Wouy
9o1j0U 18414 ‘B8 Jo}Y)
FN/LO/H/OGTdVH
pue (80/,002

Joj uoieondde
11} 8y} 6o

"weyl
WIOJ} PaNSS] 82130U 8UO UBY] 8I0W aABY Yyolym suoiesrdde jo

NV1d NOILOV ANV 1ISIA NOILO3SdNI — 301440 S.HINOISSINWOO SNOILYOINNINWINOD 40 NOILdIOHIINI
g XIAN3ddV




Page 109

9 J0 ¢ abey

aJe suonesidde ||y ‘patepIsSuod
"swiio} pejeindod-aud Auedoud usaq aney Asuyy jey) Bunesisuowsp Jo suesw
Jo Buipiom piepuels ‘aoe|d 1s8q 8y} sI siy} se suojesidde [enpialpul 8y} 0} SJUSWILWIOD
asn jou ssop AsbuLieH ul Apealje — /N | peeiby | J1ey} Jojiel pinoys dd 8y} 1Byl Spuswiwiosss O000] - 9L’y eded | L1
uonoadsul *10149
8y} Buimojjoy ue $81N11}SU0D UOIJeWIOU] SIY} JO UOISSIWQO "peaplodal 8q os|e
s90I110U (Y)22sS pue pInoys seoljou jo Buinssi pue jeaoidde ayy Jo swiy 8y) JueAS|al
swio} uoljeoydde §| "9o11081d JO 89P0 Yelp ay} yum Ajdwoo o} JepUo ul seoljou
|le o} pajdde eq o (v)2es Aue pue wuoy uojeoydde ayy jo [eaoidde sisy; ajep pue
‘pojusws|dwl] | paeiby ubis Asy1 eyl ainsus sdq oy} 1eyl pUsSWILLIOOSY — 'y Bied | 0L
‘sesle pasu ay}
uaym uoljelspIsuod
Ojul Use} aq [Im ulod
SiY} Ing ‘uoljesuoyine
J1eyy a4inbals Aew
yoiym suoliesidde ‘lenoudde 4o} 4@ J8yioue o}
9y} Jo uspuadepul ‘uonebnsaaul Aue passed aq p|noo uojeoldde sy} AjoAljeUIS)E JO SUONBISPISUOD
AjpuaIoI4NS | Ul POAJOAUI BLLIODS] UM Jiey) ut §oldxe oq 1snw uosiad pajeubisep syl
ale s,4q |enusiod 0} 8Jom uosiad 10 8|04 8y} Bupjepspun Joy uoiresisnl Jvy) pue uonebiiseaul
yioq — a1ep 0} usasue pajeubisep syl BU} Ul JUSLUSAJOAUI JI8Y} Jey} pusuwiodal | uoljeledo ue uj
JouU sey uolenys siy | jipeloeus 8q 0 | pealby | paAjoAul AlJoauIp Bulluooag sd 9yl Jo UBAB Byl Ul - L P BIed | 6
sjeaouddy suosiaed pajeubisag
"uoljepusWILIOOa. "199ys 0| HodS sy
ayl Uuo paplodal 8q pjnoys suolioe 8say} ||y "ueoldde sy 01 Adoo
Yum souelduwod € pJemio} pinoys Dods 8y} pue Ajainoss ejep ayi jo ,Adoo
2Insue 0} papuswie p|oB, 4o euibuo 8y} pjoy uayl 0} DOdS 8y} Joy 8a110eid poob s

NV1d NOLLOV ANV LISIA NOILO3SdNI — 301440 S.HINOISSINWOD SNOILLYOINNNIWOD 40 NOILLdIDHILNI
g XION3ddV




Page 110

9 Jo G afed

"aple aAlleblisaAuUl 9|gen|eA SIy}

40 &sn sjeudoidde sjowoud pue usyieboy sismod Yy Jo ash sy}
WwLo4 Hysuaq pjnod oym siuswpedap (e bulq o1 Ajunpoddo

ue spirold osje pinom siy] "paie|dwiod aq pinoys J Moy

pue wuoj uoneolidde mau sy} 03 UolIB|a) Ul SdJ pue sjueoidde
BU} 40} 82IApE 8pNjoUl 0] 8oUBpPIND 8yl puswe 0] Juswa.inbal

"uoljepuUSBILLIODS B 9q [|IM 81ay] "[louno) 8y} JO MIOM 8y} O} JUBAS| JOU 8Je ZL°|
ay} yum Ajdwoo 1e sseo0.d [eJo Jusbin ey} 0} seousia)el oY) ‘spiebal swes
0} pspuswie 3y} U] 'se2I10N el elep Buuinboe Ajuo si 1louno) eyl 1ey; 108}
S8}0U 9oUBpINY 9y} 0} 8np pspuswe 8q P|NOYS SuUolesLoyINY () ZzS o1 sisjal

‘pojusweldwy | peslby yolym souepinb [eoo] ey} ul 8°| 1B UOljewIojUl 8y — €'/ eied | ‘¥l
Jeis Ajuoyine oygnd jo Bujures |

"sjueoldde

"2 uollepuswiwiogsl 0} ®2IApe 8pinoid pinoys pue suolieoldde Buijlea usym

0} ssuodsal 8989 24NN} ey Ul podal sy} JO UOIOSS SIY} Ul Pauljino souepinb
‘pejuswsijdw | peaiby 9yl MOJ|0} PINOYS DOdS 8y} 1Byl puswiwiodsy — /' G eled | ‘€L

suoneoljddy jo jusuon

'dSO 8yl uo panies
ale Asy} a10jeq S89110U () ggS Aue uo (swiy sy} ojedoidde

"2 UollBpuUSWILLIODS. 8loyMm pue) anss| Jo 91ep Byl pepiodal SBY d( 84l 1By} ainsus
0] esuodsai 88g Os|e p|noys OV 8YJ "8d110N 8y} 4o} aejdwal 8910 SWOoH

‘palusweldwy | pesiby MeUu 8y} sidope |1ouno?) sy} Jeyl pepuUsWILLOdsY — gL't Bled | 'ZL
SaoI10N

‘uoiebnseAul sy
JO sjuswialinbal sy} 01
Buipioooe pale|dwoos

NV'1d NOILOV ANV LISIA NOILO3SdNI — 301440 S.HINOISSINWOD SNOILYIINNIWWOD 40 NOILdIDHILNI
g XIAN3ddVv



Page 111

9 jo g ebed

‘pouodau Ajgreudoidde
pue painided

S| Blep ||e ainsus

01 uoloadsul ey}
Buimojjos soe|d Ui ind

"USIA Uoloadsul
ay} buunp
Jauoissiwon syl
0} papodai Jolig

"woy Burpodas sowe ayy Buisn Jauoissiluwos) syy 03 papodal

sainpaooid pasiney ‘pajusweldwl | peeJby | sI uoioadsul syl Bupnp punoy Jous syl 1ey) 1senbay — L'geied | ‘91
buipoday Joug
"pae|nalio
pue paureiqo "} 0} sejou souepIinb wody yull e epinoid ‘e|qissod Ji ‘pue Adod
89110B1d JO 8p0D e JO uoissessod aney SQV 1Y} 8Insus ‘901j0B.1d JO 8poD) Yeup
‘pajuswejduwl] | pesIby | 8y} JO UOISIaA 1sale| 8y} 8Jinboe pinoys 1ouno) ey — v/ Bied | ‘Sl

NV'1d NOILOV ANV LISIA NOILO3SdNI — 301440 S HANOISSINWOD SNOLLYOINNIWWOD 40 NOILdIDHILNI
g XIAN3ddV



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 MINUTES:
	6 UPDATE ON 2007/08 AUDIT AND INSPECTION PLAN:
	7 QUARTER 3 PROGRESS REPORT FOR INTERNAL AUDIT:
	8 AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS 2006/7:
	9 HOUSING BENEFIT QUARTER 3 PROGRESS REPORT:
	10 RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE:
	11 INTERCEPTION OF COMMUNICATION COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE INSPECTION REPORT:

